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Tata Textile Mills Limited (TTML) is one of the three premier textile spinning Companies of Tata Pakistan Textile Group set up 
with 44,400 spindles producing a range of yarn catering to both domestic and international customers. TTML has capability to 
process around 50 million lbs of cotton to produce 36 million lbs of yarn with revenues of approximately Rs 7 Billion. TTML also 
has a credible export pedigree with a footprint in 19 countries. 

TTML was incorporated in Pakistan in 1987 and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, has an equity base of Rs 4.5 
Billion. 

TTML is a proud recipient of numerous accolades including 5th Employer of the Year Award by Employer’s Federation of 
Pakistan (EFP) and Corporate Philanthropy Award by Pakistan Center for Philanthropy (PCP).  

With a keen focus on health, safety & environment, TTML is a reputable corporate citizen. The Company had developed in late 
1990’s Quality Management System based on ISO-9001 standard and since then maintaining it as base Management System 
across TATA PAKISTAN and integrating the requirement of other international and national standards on Occupational Health 
Safety, Environment Management and Energy Management Systems. Maintaining Certification on “OEKO Tex Standard 100” 
and recently gone through the audit process for certification on Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) and Organic Content 
Standard (OCS) to manufacture its products according to the standards our customers expect.

TTML is self-reliant as far as energy is concerned and continuously utilizes a mix of energy sources to have the most cost 
effective energy mix.  

TTML ensures reliable and trustworthy partners in its supply chain hence maintaining membership with world renowned names 
in textile like International Cotton Association (ICA), Cotton USA (CA) and Better Cotton Initiative (BCI). 

TTML has the capability to produce the following type of yarns
• 100% COTTON CARDED KNITTING & WEAVING YARNS
• 100% COTTON COMBED KNITTING & WEAVING YARNS
• 100% COTTON COMBED COMPACT KNITTING & WEAVING YARNS
• 100% COTTON CARDED WEAVING SIRO YARNS
• 100% COTTON COMBED COMPACT WEAVING SIRO YARNS
• 100 % COTTON CARDED SLUB YARNS
• COTTON CORE RING SPUN YARNS
• ZERO TWIST PVA CARDED & COMBED YARNS
• 100% COTTON PLIED CARDED & COMBED YARNS 

For further information please visit our website www.tatapakistan.com 

GROUP INFORMATION

TATA GROUP

Tata Group is a large well respected conglomerate in Pakistan with diversified interests in textiles, food and power generation. 
The group’s activities started in 1969 and since then has expanded into textile spinning business and has established it’s self 
as a premier brand. In recent years it has expanded into Food business. Tata group has sizable exports and contributes 
valuable foreign exchange to the national exchequer. 

TATA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (TTML)

TTML is a public limited company incorporated in 1987 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange and is a modern spinning 
unit consisting of 44,400 Spindles setup for the manufacturing of Cotton Yarn. The TATA Brand quickly became the 
standard for the yarn market.  TTML main office is located in Textile Plaza Karachi and its manufacturing facility is located 
in Muzaffargarh which is close to Multan. Management is continuously striving to diversify its product line and lately has 
added dual, slub and Lycra range of yarns. Management is taking further initiatives to enhance production, conserve 
energy consumption by introducing high fuel efficient gas generators and will install a 1 MW solar project to control the 
cost of power.

ISLAND TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (ITML)

ITML is a public limited company incorporated in 1970 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Tata Group took over the 
management of this running spinning unit in Kotri, Sindh in 1981 which quickly established a name in spinning of cotton 
yarns.  ITML office located at Textile Plaza, Karachi and its manufacturing facilities are located at Kotri Industrial Estate 
in the Province of Sindh. In view of emergent business needs, a strategic expansion plan was made and executed in 
2014 with the ground breaking of its 2nd unit. In 2015, after rigorous efforts 2nd unit of ISLAND TEXTILE MILLS LTD. 
which is the only state-of-the-art Reiter spinning mill of Pakistan. This plant is completely automated from Blow room to 
winding. 

SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (STML) 

STML is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan in 1968 and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Its office 
is located in Textile Plaza, Karachi and the manufacturing facility is located at Landhi Industrial Estate in the Province of 
Sindh. With the incorporation of STML Tata Group gained a foothold in the Synthetic Yarn Market in 4 subsequent 
decades of successful operation. In 2005 a complete renovation of STML was carried out and capacity enhanced to 
36,708 Spindles with latest machinery.

TATA ENERGY LIMITED (TEL)

TEL was incorporated in 1994 as a Public Company Limited. The principal activity of the company is generation and 
supply of electric power with 10 MW capacity. The office of the Company is situated at Textile Plaza, Karachi. TEL’s 
power generation capacity is installed at two locations in the years 1995 and 1998 respectively. The first one is situated 
at Landhi Industrial Area supplying electrical power to Salfi Textiles Mills Limited. The second one is situated at Kotri 
Industrial Area supplying Electrical power to Island Textiles Mills Limited. 

TATA BEST FOODS LIMITED (TBFL)

The Group has also diversified into Food  business. TBFL’s principal activity is processing of meat at its internationally 
approved facility located at Landhi, Karachi to prepare, process, preserve, pack and market meat and related products 
for export and local sale to restaurants, hotel chains and grocery stores. TBFL is a manufacturer-cum-exporter and 
playing a vital role in the modernization of the meat industry in Pakistan besides contributing valuable foreign exchange 
to the economy.

COMPANY PROFILE & BUSINESS AT A GLANCE
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approved facility located at Landhi, Karachi to prepare, process, preserve, pack and market meat and related products 
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COMPANY INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata - Chairman   
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata - Chief Executive
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata - Executive Director    
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Non Executive Director
Mr. Farooq Advani - Non Executive Director
Ms. Shahbano Hameed - Non Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Independent Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Chairman   
Mr. Farooq Advani - Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Member
Mr. Ghulam Raza Hemani - Secretary   

HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Chairman   
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata - Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Member
Mr. Farooq Advani - Member
Mr. Muhammad Ali Mirza - Secretary   

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER    
Mr. Haseeb Hafeezuddeen

COMPANY SECRETARY    
Mr. Muhammad Hussain

Internal Auditor 
Mr. Ghulam Raza Hemani  

AUDITORS     
M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

BANKERS     
Allied Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan  
Soneri Bank Limited
Samba Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab 
LEGAL ADVISOR    
Rajwana & Rajwana Advocates

REGISTERED OFFICE
6th Floor Textile Plaza,
M.A Jinnah Road Karachi.
Tel# 32412955-3 Lines 32426761-2-4
Fax# 32417710
Email: ttm.corporate@tatapakistan.com 
  

FACTORY LOCATION     
10th K.M. M.M. Road
Khanpur-Baggasher,
District Muzaffargarh

SHARE REGISTRAR    
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B 
Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., 
Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Tel# (Toll Free) 0800-CDCPL (23275)
Fax:  (92-21) 34326053

WEB     
www.tatapakistan.com
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS 

Anwar Ahmed Tata
Chairman

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata, holding a Master’s 
Degree in Commerce, is one of the founding 
members of Tata Pakistan and has invested over 
fifty years into developing the Company through 
manufacturing, sales management, marketing 
management and general management into what 
it is today. With his expertise and diversified 
experience, he has taken Tata Pakistan to a level 
which is appreciated by both local and 
international business communities.

Shahid Anwar Tata
Chief Executive

Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata holds a Bachelor’s degree 
in Commerce and has been with the family textile 
spinning business since Graduation. He is 
serving as Director and CEO for Tata Pakistan 
Group which comprises of three independent 
publically listed spinning mills, a power producing 
company and a food processing business. He is 
also serving as a Board Member of Textile 
Institute of Pakistan (TIP) and as a Vice 
Chairman of National Textile Foundation, 
Pakistan.

With over 30 years of experience and in-depth 
knowledge of textile business Mr. Shahid Anwar 
Tata is constantly striving and inspiring his team 
of professionals to embrace modern technology 
for greater efficiency, produce quality products 
while maintaining a fair and equitable treatment 
towards staff and workers.  

He has a strong desire to contribute back to the society and is actively involved in philanthropy and supports 
many institutions in health and education sectors such as, Bait-Ul-Sukoon Cancer Hospital, Indus Hospital, 
The Citizen Foundation, etc.
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Adeel Shahid Tata
Director

Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata is Finance graduate from 
Bentley College U.S.A. and has spent 10 years 
managing the textile business. He provides a new 
style of management to the group. He is dynamic 
and passionate about his work and brings freshness 
to the style of business. Further he has also done 
number of professional courses in supply chain, 
cotton management, risk management, creative 
thinking and maintains several professional 
memberships like APTMA, YPO, etc. to stay current 
with ways of working and technology.

Bilal Shahid Tata
Director

Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata holds a Master’s Degree in 
Business Administration from Cardiff University, UK. 
He has more than 10 years of experience in 
Business Management and is well versed in finance 
and strategy. He is also serving as a CEO of Tata 
Best Foods Limited which is a state of the art Meat 
Processing unit setup in Karachi for the purpose of 
processing meat for Export and Domestic markets. 
He has been instrumental in conceptualizing and 
setting up of this business and has been leading it 
from day one.
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Farooq Advani
Director

Mr. Farooq Advani brings with him over 45 years’ of experience of 
business and financial management in the Textile manufacturing, 
Power and Food businesses. He is a Fellow Member of Institute of 
Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP). 

He worked for in the areas of Accounts, Corporate Affairs, Sales 
Tax, Income Tax, HR, IT, Cost & Budget and Insurance. He has also 
served as the Director on the Board of Listed & unlisted Companies, 
Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Cost & Budget, 
Head of Information Technology and Project director of ERP 
Implementation. 

He has Core Competencies in Financial Analysis, Audit Compliance, 
Internal Control, Operating & Working Capital Matrics, Cash-flow 
Management and Modeling, Business Valuation, Cross Functional 
Team Leadership, Decision Making & Risk Analysis. 

Shahbano Hameed
Director

Ms. Shahbano Hameed holds M.Sc. Degree in Financial 
Management from UK. She has 14 years of work experience in 
strategy formulation and implementation strategy in the form of a 
well-executed plan to achieve the desired outcome. She has strong 
conceptual and analytical skills which allows her to make fit for 
purpose recommendations. She also has vast experience in 
negotiating and creating corporate solutions while achieving most 
favorable results in situations that require influencing on external 
partners. She is known to manage strategic relationships & 
recommending out of box solutions that represent win-win solutions 
for multiple stakeholders. She has served as Head of Corporate 
Solution-Easy Paisa, Telenor Pakistan, Vice President, Askari Bank 
Corporate Banking,, Head of Multinational Desk (MNC) Barclays 
Bank and as Assistant Vice President Allied Bank Corporate 
Banking

Muhammad Naseem

Director 

Mr. Muhammad Naseem holds a Master’s Degree in Business 
Administration and an LLB. He has more than 40 years of 
experience in business management. He has also completed his 
Director Certification Course from IBA. He is serving as a Director of 
the Board of Listed Companies.
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
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KEY MANAGEMENT STAFF 
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Haseeb Hafeezuddeen

Head of Marketing & Sales
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Ramzan

Head of Cotton Sourcing
Mr. Usman Kausar Lutfi

Head of Mills Operations 
Mr. Muhammad Riaz

Head of Technical Operations 
Mr. Tariq Haroon Dada

Head of Supply Chain 
Mr. Abdul Lateef Bawany

Head of Human Resource
Mr. Muhammad Ali Mirza

Head of Treasury
Mr. Owais Ahmed Abbasi

Head of Accounts & Company Secretary
Mr. Muhammad Hussain Rasheed

Head of Information Technology
Mr. Muhammad Yasir Khan

Chief Internal Auditor
Mr. Ghulam Raza Hemani
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VISION STATEMENT
We envision our credibility as one of the world’s leading companies known for its values, principally honest 

business practices and optimum quality standards in diversified product range with sustained growth.

MISSION STATEMENT
We shall remain committed to exceeding the highest expectations of our customers. We strive for the 

production of best quality yarns for high value products.

CULTURE
We are one team that is encouraging and supportive which is committed to the success of our clients. We 

pursue excellence through continuous improvement and effective, efficient execution. We are accountable for 

decisions we make are responsive and collaborate to achieve the best result. We communicate honestly 

creating an open, transparent, and trust-based environment. We care and have respect for our people, our 

clients and our community and we all lead by example, every day. 

VALUES
A Commitment to
• Ethical Practices    • Innovative and Quality Products
• Produce with Efficient Technology  • Help the needy
• Build Strong Communities   • Respect People and Laws 
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• To remain an ethical Company.
• Ensure a fair return to shareholders.
• Maintain our reputation as the quality leader in our markets.
• To capitalize on export opportunities and leverage them to take advantage of economies of scale.
• To acquire and invest in modern technology to increase productivity and operational excellence while 

reducing costs to remain competitive with international markets.
• Maintain focus on CSR, environmental and safety management in order to reap corporate benefits as 

good corporate citizen & employer.
• Provide proper working conditions, training and development of personnel aligned to the strategic needs 

of the company. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

• We take pride in uncompromising integrity through each individual’s effort towards quality product for our 
customers and sizable contributions to the National Exchequer.

• We are honest and ethical in our dealings at all times through compliance with the applicable laws & 
regulations.

• We endeavor to exceed the expectation of all stakeholders.
• We encourage employees to be creative and seek innovative solutions.
• We value the self-esteem of all its stakeholders be it employees, suppliers, customers or shareholders.
• We believe in fairness to all stakeholders.
• We are committed to promote coherent culture, diversity, effective team work, open communication, 

feedback and performance evaluation sustain equity and transparency of employees, which 
supplements mutual trust and respect among employees and with management. 

• We have established ourself as a quality product supplier 

OUR VALUES
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Muzaffargarh

Kotri

Karachi

PUNJAB:  Ali Pur, Kabirwala, Khanewal, Fazilpur, Haroonabad, 
Jahania, Lodhran, Vehari, R.Y.Khan  

SINDH:  Tandoadam, Sanghar, Khairpur, Mehrabpur, Salehpat, 
Kotri, Mirpurkhas, Shahdadpur

COTTON BUYING AREA  Karachi, Pakistan
HEAD OFFICE: 

 Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi
 Kotri Industrial Area, Jamshoro 
 Khanpur, Muzaffargarh

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS 

Ali pur

Rahim Yar Khan

Khairpur

Saleh Pat

Mehrabpur

Tando Adam
Shahdad Pur

Mirpur Khas

Fazilpur

Kabirwala

Jahanian

Vehari

Haroon abad
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OUR ROAD TO SUCCESS

The sponsors  of the company started off with a 
humble embroidery unit, called Naveena Industries 
in late 1960’s and now five decades later it has 
grown into a multi-unit yarn spinner under the 
umbrella of TATA PAKISTAN which enjoys 
considerable market position and repute. After 
steadily growing in the domestic market, we 
expanded into the international market and quickly 
became a supplier of choice for leading textile 
manufacturers. We have climbed the ladder of 
success by setting higher targets and achieving our 
goals with patience and consistency.

 2019
2019 is the year of Artificial Intelligence, Uster 
Sentinel (End down Monitoring) installed in Tata and 
Salfi Textile Mills. Pinter Caipo Slub and Slub-Lycra 
attachments are installed in Tata Textile Mills which 
is one of the specialized yarn of TATA group. New 
Savio Auto Winder is inducted in Tata Textile Mills to 
improve the quality of core yarns. Bobbin sorting 
machines and new cards are inducted in Island 
Textile Mills which is one step forward toward 
automation.

 2018
Japanese HFO 6MW power plant installed in Tata 
Textile Mills as a backup of WAPDA. As we are a big 
producer of Slub yarn, hence slub modification 
installed in Salfi Textile Mills. Also installed Bar Code 
System for Packing in Salfi Textile Mills. Received 5th 
employer of the year award from Employer 
Federation of Pakistan.

 2017
Construction of new residential colony for worker at 
Salfi Textile Mills. Purchase of 15 kanal land for 
132KV grid station at Tata Textile Mills. Dual core 
attachments are installed in Tata Textile Mill which 
also one of the crtial quality yarn that we are 
producing. Installation of 4 Italian Roving frames in 
Tata textile Mills. Latest Uster Tester-6 instrument is 
installed in Island Textile Mills for quality analysis.

 2016
As compact yarn demand is increases day by day, 
Suessen Compact system is installed on 9072 
spindles in Tata Textile Mills. Latest 3 Spanish 
Roving frames Electro Jet installed in Salfi Textile 
Mills and replace the old ones.

 2015

Inauguration of 2nd unit of Island Textile Mills Limited 
consisting of 26,784 spindles is the only state of the 
art Reiter spinning mills of Pakistan.

 2014

The ground breaking of the 2nd unit of Island Textile 
Mills Ltd. held as a strategic expansion plan. Salfi 
Textile Mills Ltd. achieved OEKO TEX Standard 100 
Certification and Tata Textile Mills Ltd. successfully 
passed the Corporate Social Responsibility Audit by 
SGS Pakistan.

 2013

Became a Member of “Better Cotton Initiative (BCI)”. 
Tata Best Foods achieved certification on “Global 
Standard for Food Safety’’ (BRC) and “Halal Food 
Management System” by Bureau Veritas Pakistan 
and SGS Pakistan respectively. All the Legacy 
System based Operations at Tata Pakistan got 
completely upgraded to ERP Systems.

 2012

Tata Best Food Ltd. started business operations. 
Machinery Upgradation – Installed latest Uster 
Quantum 3 clearers and Trutzschler Securomat. 
Now Tata Textile Mills Ltd. has become the only 
company in Pakistan with this technology.

 2011

The state of the art Tata Pakistan Corporate Office at 
6th Floor of Textile Plaza, Karachi became functional 
after its renovation.
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 2009

Tata Textile Mills Limited achieved OEKO TEX 
Standard 100 Certification. Tata Best Foods Ltd.  
initiated commercial business of Halal Meat Trading 
with U.A.E.

 2008

Ground Breaking of Tata Best Foods Ltd 
processing facility held in Karachi.

 2007

The production capacity of Salfi Textile Mills 
Limited got enhanced by 100%.

 2005

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. became the first Usterized 
Textile Mills in Pakistan. Achieved Supima 
Certifications. Completed renovation of Salfi 
Textile Mills Karachi having 36,324 Spindles with 
latest machinery.

 2004

Tata Textile Mills Limited, Unit 2 with 25,200 
Spindles & producing 100% US Cotton yarns 
started production.

 1999

All the Associated Companies of Tata Pakistan 
Group received Corporate ISO-9002 
Certification and is complying and maintaining 
its Management System based on ISO-9001.

 1997

Tata Textile Mills Limited received ISO-9002 
Certification being the first Spinning Mill in 
Pakistan  to get this certification.

 1991
Tata Textile Mills Limited, Muzaffargarh a most 
modern Spinning Unit, Consisting of 19,200 
Spindles, is setup for the manufacturing of cotton 
yarn. Its "Tata Brand” quickly became the 
standard for the yarn in the spinning industry.

 1983
Acquired a large spinning unit i.e. Salfi Textile 
Mills Limited, Karachi – Sindh. With its 
acquisition, the company gained a foothold in the 
synthetic yarn market.

 1981
The company took over the management of a 
running spinning unit i.e. Island Textile Mills 
limited, Kotri, Sindh and quickly established a 
name in the spinning of cotton yarns.

 1973
Dada Enterprises, a tannery business, was 
acquired in Pakistan . At present, it’s a leading 
exporter of Leather and Leather Garments.

 1969
Naveena Industries an embroidery unit was 
acquired in Pakistan.
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STRENGTHS 
• Strong controls environment and 

corporate governance 
• 48 years of business and spinning 

experience and strong market repute for 
quality products

• Ethical business practices 
• Self-power generation capability
• Excellent relationships with banks and 

business community
• Experienced technical staff  
• State-of-the-art plant and production 

facilities

OPPORTUNITIES 
• Devaluation of Rupee makes us more 

competitive in International markets.
• New government incentives for textile 

sector.
• Vertical integration into weaving and 

garments
• Expand into untapped markets with 

value added innovative products  
• Develop innovative product range 

utilizing experienced technical staff
• Greater MIS & manufacturing 

automation for efficiencies and faster 
decision making.

THREATS 
• Higher cost of doing business (energy, 

interest, taxes, inflation) 
• Slow and stuck up tax refunds overhang 

on liquidity.
• Political Instability
• Speculative cotton trade 
• Failure of cotton crop due to natural 

disasters
• Inconsistent govt. policies e.g. GIDC & 

Sales Tax
• Trade wars leading to uncertainty over 

export orders
• Fluctuating interest & exchange rates
• Availability of subsidized yarn by 

regional competitors

WEAKNESSES 
• Size of spinning capacity smaller 

compared to Chinese rivals
• Labor intensive operations
• Access to financing 
• Lower level of manufacturing automation 
• Commodity which is affected by 

business cyclicality   
• Cost of sales can be impacted by cotton 

volatility 
• Lack of vertical integration 
• Dependence on few countries for sales

SWOT ANALYSIS

S W

0 T
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SOCIAL

➢ High population growth rate
➢ Rising per capita income
➢ Growing middle class
➢ Increasing demand for cotton clothing 

TECHNOLOGICAL

➢ Need to invest in new technology to keep cost 
of production competitive with industry. 

➢ Seed R&D slow in Pakistan resulting in cotton 
crop being 40% lower than demand.     

ENVIRONMENTAL 

➢ Cotton is totally recyclable 
➢ Scarcity of water affects cotton crop output 

ETHICAL 

➢ Tax evasion & questionable business activities 
in Pakistan

➢ Inaccurate declarations of imports & under 
invoicing in Pakistan

➢ Bribe and connection culture in Pakistan

POLITICAL 

➢ Uncertainty about government policies
➢ Lack of implementation and very slow progress 

of tax reforms in Pakistan
➢ Improvement in law and order situation in 

Pakistan
➢ Growing Chinese influence
➢ Harsh economic circumstances due to IMF 

package have  impacted Industries

LEGAL

➢ Import barriers in international market

➢ Anti-dumping rules in international market & 
intensified international trade measures

➢ SRO’s culture is finishing in Pakistan coupled 
with inadequate tariff protection and incentives 
to promote exports 

➢ Slow court procedures in Pakistan holds up tax 
refunds

ECONOMIC

➢ Steep rise in Borrowing rates impacting cost of 
working capital

➢ Sharp devaluation impacts input cost of 
imported cotton

➢ Harsh economic measures will slow economy 
and GDP 

➢ Slowdown in China shifting production to 
Pakistan 

➢ Government slow to process tax refunds 
thereby increases borrowing

➢ Increasing tariff barriers in export markets
➢ Regional exchange rate fluctuation
➢ Increasing sea freight rates for exports
➢ Increasing minimum wage and labor costs
➢ Volatile commodity prices

SEASONALITY

➢ Purchase of cotton crop August to Dec puts 
high demand on working capital

➢ Exports slow down during Chinese new year 
holidays  

➢ Not able to utilize full benefit of devaluation as 
foreign buyers expect discounts

STEEPLES ANALYSIS
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Calendar Of Corporate Events

Notable Events For The Financial Year

BOD Meeting for Yearly Accounts - 2018 September 24, 2018

Annual General Meeting – 2018 October 22, 2018

BOD Meeting for first quarter ended September 30, 2018 October 25, 2018

BOD Meeting for Half year ended December 31, 2018 February 27, 2019

BOD Meeting for third quarter ended March 31, 2019 April 30, 2019

Tentative Dates for Next Financial Year 

BOD Meeting for approval of Annual Budget July 10, 2019

BOD Meeting for Yearly Accounts – 2019 October 22, 2019

BOD Meeting for first quarter ended September 30, 2019 October 29, 2019

Annual General Meeting – 2019 November 21, 2019

BOD Meeting for Half year ended December 31, 2019 February 27, 2020

BOD Meeting for third quarter ended March 31, 2020 April 28, 2020
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OBJECTIVES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

OBJECTIVES STRATEGY AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1 Keeping true to providing best corporate 
governance and ethical way of doing 
business 

• Circulation of ethical practice policies among staff and 
reinforcement of ethical practices across the 
organization

• Abide by the Code of Corporate Governance and new 
CCG initiatives of SECP 

• Ensuring that SOP’s, work instructions & job
descriptions are aligned with appropriate policies

• Zero tolerance towards fraudulent actions

2 Maintain quality of yarn and ensure best 
quality for customers 

• Retain/attain International and National
certifications

• Quality control & quality assurance
• Manufacture according to customer expectations 
• Ensure worker training and management seminars for 

latest quality initiatives
• Maintain effective contact with customers and obtain 

feedback on quality

3 Maximize sales and identify new markets • Review & monitor relationships with agents/brokers 
• Constantly reviewing pricing to ensure competiveness 

and selling opportunity and shifts in buying patterns
• Develop new yarn counts  

4 Maintain and increase manufacturing 
effectiveness 

• Identify opportunities for cost reduction 
• Invest in new technologies to achieve labor, cost and 

energy efficiencies 

5 Ensure improvement in all areas of 
operations be it sales, administration, finance 
or information technology

• Identify automation opportunities 
• Ensure availability of resources capex, financing, 

staffing, time, etc. to achieve efficiency projects

6 Maximize returns to shareholders through the 
efficient and effective use of financial 
resources 

• Make timely sales and collections
• Procure fit for purpose, lower cost quality raw materials 

while keeping holding periods to a minimum
• Efficient use of finance facilities to minimize finance 

cost  

7 Suitable human capital management through 
proper hiring, training, appraisals and 
counselling  

• Timely appraisals and performance feedbacks
• Develop appropriate training for all staff levels
• Reduce safety incidents 
• Appropriate succession planning for key positions  

The Company constantly strives to set and achieve its objectives by implementing strategies which focus on 
ethics, quality, being fair, being competitive, maintaining good relationships, sustainability, technology 
improvements, product diversity and seeking growth. 
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Stakeholder Engagement
Good relationships are maintained with all the stakeholders through effective and timely
communication besides having a customer-centric approach. 

Stakeholders Why they are Important Nature of Engagement Frequency
Shareholders 1. They Own the Company

2. They expect a return on 
their investment

3. Decisions are made that 
increase shareholder 
value

1. AGM
2. EOGM’s
3. Interim Reports
4. Annual Reports
5. Website

1. Annually
2. If/when needed
3. Quarterly
4. Annually
5. Continuously 

available
Customers 1. They buy our products 

which drives revenues
2. They expect quality and 

drive demand for our 
products

3. They are our business 
partners

1. Direct relationships
2. Customer gatherings
3. Satisfaction surveys
4. Website

1. Continuous
2. Regularly
3. Annually
4. Continuously 

available

Employees They deliver Tata’s success 
and Company could not 
function without them.

1. Interaction with 
management

2. Appraisals
3. Employees events
4. Website 

1. Daily

2. Annual/semi-annual
3. Regularly
4. Continuously  

available
Suppliers Reliable and reasonable 

provision of raw materials 
determines our ability to 
supply finished goods

1. Direct relationships
2. Meetings
3. Trade shows
4. Website

1. Daily
2. Regularly
3. Regularly
4. Continuously 

available

Government 
Bodies

Determine trade policies that 
could positively or negatively 
impact Tata

1. Issue specific meetings 
/ discussion / 
correspondence

2. Submission of statutory 
returns and reports

3. Website

1. As required 

2. As required

3. Continuously 
available

Conditions 
affects our 
operations

1. Provide manpower for our 
operations

2. Their living 
3. Our CSR initiatives are 

also aimed towards them

1. Tata TCF school
2. Tata health facility
3. Mosque
4. Website 

1. Continuous
2. Continuous
3. Continuous
4. Continuously 

available

Banks Provision of finance and trade 
facilities

1. Direct relationships
2. Meetings 
3. Financial reporting
4. Websites

1. Regular
2. As needed
3. Periodic
4. Continuously 

available
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RISK & OPPORTUNITY REPORT

Risk / 
Opportunity

Category

Major Business Risk / 
Opportunity

Sensitivity Source of 
Risk/ 

Opportunity

Mitigating Factors / Steps to 
create value

Financial Risk Devaluation of PKR High External • Ensuring a balanced ratio 
between export & 
domestic sales as needed

• Appropriate hedging 
instruments such as 
forward cover & currency 
options if/when needed

• Sourcing a greater share 
of raw cotton locally 
within the country 

• The Company mainly 
meets its working capital 
requirements through 
short-term financing 
facilities. In order to 
mitigate the risk of rising 
interest rates, 
management minimizes 
working capital 
requirements, negotiates 
prevailing market rates 
and maintains an efficient 
portfolio of sources of 
funds

Payment defaults by 
customers

Low External
Credit worthiness is 
assessed for each 
customer and credit limits 
are assigned according to 
our credit policy

Financial 
Opportunity

Devaluation of PKR 
could make exports 
more competitive in 
international markets 
& provide opportunities 
for inventory gain  

High External Maintaining an  
opportunistic position and 
supply flexibility to take 
advantage of devaluing 
PKR to increase exports 
to certain export markets

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

against foreign 
currencies may 
negatively impact 
Company's financial
performance   
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Risk / 
Opportunity

Category

Major Business Risk / 
Opportunity

Sensitivity Source of 
Risk/ 

Opportunity

Mitigating Factors / Steps to 
create value

Operational 
Risk Employee turnover 

amongst senior 
management positions

Medium-
Low

Internal Strong succession 
planning & HR policies, 
employee engagement 
initiatives, workplace 
satisfaction surveys, 
training/development, 
rotational policies and
compensation audits are 
in place.

Volatility in the 
international/Local 
price of Cotton 

High External 

Well versed and dedicated 
procurement department, 
buying experience along 
with a diversified supplier 
base and large volumes 
keep the company 
relatively insulated from 
volatility in cotton prices. 

Energy shortage in 
Pakistan

High External Tata has its own power 
generation capability. 
Management utilizes all 
energy sources to keep 
the energy mix cost at 
lowest level.

Work place incidents 
injuries & safety

Medium Internal The Company has 
formulated and 
implemented a ‘safety and 
security policy’ throughout 
its manufacturing and 
administrative facilities. 
Moreover, all assets are 
insured through reputable 
institutions in order to 
safeguard assets against 
any unforeseen event of 
damage, fire, the , act of 
terrorism etc.

Commercial 
Risk

Increased competition 
between local and 
international suppliers 
of the product.

Medium External

The Company believes 
that its years of 
experience, quality, 
research and 
development, brand 
image and customer 
loyalty are success 
factors to sustain it even 
in this fast shifting global 
economic scenario.

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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Risk / 
Opportunity

Category

Major Business Risk / 
Opportunity

Sensitivity Source of 
Risk/ 

Opportunity

Mitigating Factors / Steps to 
create value

Strategic Risk Economic and Political 
stability of the country

High External The Company believes in 
an open and transparent 
relationship with the 
Government, regulator 
and other political 
stakeholders. As part of 
the larger industry, 
Company through its 
representatives, provide 
valuable suggestions to 
the regulator, particularly 
during the budgetary 
process through APTMA. 
We regularly monitor 
economic and legal 
impacts of Government 
policies and political 
actions on the Company 
as well as the textile industry.  

Shift in production 
technologies may make 
Tata’s processes 
obsolete and its 
product and       prices 
non-competitive in local    
and/or international 
markets

Medium External Tata strongly believes     
in introducing new 
technologies to achieve 
production efficiencies and 
reduce cost and stay aligned 
to the international market. 
 

Risk Management

The management of the company follow the rigorous approach to risk management which is essential to 
running a successful and sustainable business. The board of directors of the company are closely connected 
to effective risk management. Risk assessment, reporting and control help to enhance governance and 
control policies, to keep company aligned with its objectives. Our board member have diversified skills, 
knowledge and experience which enable them to identify and manage the key risks that are likely to arise. 
They also steer the culture of an organization which promotes an appropriate balance between risk and 
opportunities.

Potential Opportunities

Pakistan is one of those countries where upper middle class and middle class population forms majority. This 
factor opens up the opportunity to sell knitted wear and garments to the local mainstream population of the 
country. The ever so competitive local and international market has made it difficult for companies to sustain. 
This provides our Company the opportunity to acquire smaller players of the market and increase its market 
share and economic efficiencies.

Key sources of uncertainty

- Adverse impact of policies formed by the regulators

- Natural catastrophes such as heavy rains and floods that could destroy local cotton crop

- Adverse interest rate and exchange rate movements

Political Instability

The political conditions have been unstable due to change in government & change in policies drives toward 
better governance.

Stable political situation in the country improves the overall business performance, investor confidence and 
also encourages foreigners to deal with some of the prestigious companies in the country, which may have 
impact on Company’s share price.

Exchange Rate

Tata has to import the cotton from various countries and its direct export have reduced to 23% from 80%, 
through which the entity is exposed to exchange rate risk. Any favorable or unfavorable movement in 
exchange rates might affect the company’s profitability and hence, affect the share price. The company has 
also adopted effective strategies to minimize the risk of exchange rates.

Interest Rate

The Company’s Finance Cost is 4% percent of the turnover. Any adverse interest rate movement might affect 
the company’s profitability and hence, affect the share price.

Availability of Raw Material

The Company’s performance is largely dependent upon the availability of raw material, which is highly 
sensitive to seasonal fluctuations. Thus, any negative or positive change in the crop yield will dampen the 
Company’s performance and influence the share price.

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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Risk Management

The management of the company follow the rigorous approach to risk management which is essential to 
running a successful and sustainable business. The board of directors of the company are closely connected 
to effective risk management. Risk assessment, reporting and control help to enhance governance and 
control policies, to keep company aligned with its objectives. Our board member have diversified skills, 
knowledge and experience which enable them to identify and manage the key risks that are likely to arise. 
They also steer the culture of an organization which promotes an appropriate balance between risk and 
opportunities.

Potential Opportunities

Pakistan is one of those countries where upper middle class and middle class population forms majority. This 
factor opens up the opportunity to sell knitted wear and garments to the local mainstream population of the 
country. The ever so competitive local and international market has made it difficult for companies to sustain. 
This provides our Company the opportunity to acquire smaller players of the market and increase its market 
share and economic efficiencies.

Key sources of uncertainty

- Adverse impact of policies formed by the regulators

- Natural catastrophes such as heavy rains and floods that could destroy local cotton crop

- Adverse interest rate and exchange rate movements

Political Instability

The political conditions have been unstable due to change in government & change in policies drives toward 
better governance.

Stable political situation in the country improves the overall business performance, investor confidence and 
also encourages foreigners to deal with some of the prestigious companies in the country, which may have 
impact on Company’s share price.

Exchange Rate

Tata has to import the cotton from various countries and its direct export have reduced to 23% from 80%, 
through which the entity is exposed to exchange rate risk. Any favorable or unfavorable movement in 
exchange rates might affect the company’s profitability and hence, affect the share price. The company has 
also adopted effective strategies to minimize the risk of exchange rates.

Interest Rate

The Company’s Finance Cost is 4% percent of the turnover. Any adverse interest rate movement might affect 
the company’s profitability and hence, affect the share price.

Availability of Raw Material

The Company’s performance is largely dependent upon the availability of raw material, which is highly 
sensitive to seasonal fluctuations. Thus, any negative or positive change in the crop yield will dampen the 
Company’s performance and influence the share price.

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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The Code of Conduct is equally applicable on employees as well as the Board of Directors of the Company. 
The Company constantly endeavors to do the following.

1. HONEST AND ETHICAL CONDUCT

a. The company expect all the employees, Officers and Directors to act in accordance with the highest 
standards of personal and professional integrity, honesty and ethical conduct, while working at the 
Company’s premises, at offsite locations, at Company’s sponsored business and social events, 
and/or at any other place where the Directors/Officers represent the Company. We consider honest 
conduct to be conduct that is free from fraud and/or deception. We consider ethical conduct to be 
conduct conforming to the accepted professional standards of conduct. Ethical conduct includes 
ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest as specified below between personal and 
professional relationships.

2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

a. Every employee should conduct his/her personal and business affairs in a manner such that neither 
a conflict, nor the appearance of a conflict, arises between those interests and the interests of the 
company.

b. An employee should avoid any situation in which he or she, or a family member, might profit 
personally either (directly or indirectly), from the company’s facilities, its products, or company’s 
relationships with its vendors or customers.

c. An employee should not permit himself/herself (or members of his / her family) to be obligated (other 
than in the course of normal business relationships) to any organization or individual with whom the 
company has a business relationship. 

d. In case an employee is offered or receives something of value which he/she believes may be 
impermissible under this Code, he / she should disclose the matter.

e. All employees shall avoid any kind of bribery, extortion and all other forms of corruption.

f. Conflict of interest shall be avoided and promptly disclosed where they exist and guidance should 
be sought from superiors.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

a. All employees, officers and Directors must comply with all applicable governmental laws, rules and 
regulations. Directors/Officers must acquire appropriate knowledge of the legal requirements 
relating to their duties sufficient to enable them to recognize potential dangers, and to know when to 
seek advice from the Finance and/or Legal Advisor /Legal Counsel. Violations of applicable 
governmental laws, rules and regulations may subject Directors/Officers to individual criminal and/or 
civil liability. Such individual violations may also subject the Company to civil and/or criminal liability 
and/ or the loss of business.

CODE OF CONDUCT 4. MISCELLANEOUS

a. All employee shall maintain the confidentiality of confidential information of the Company or that of 
any customer, supplier or business associate of the Company to which Company has a duty to 
maintain confidentiality, except when disclosure is authorized or legally mandated. 

b. All employee shall deal fairly with customers, suppliers and competitors. They should not take unfair 
advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of confidential, proprietary or trade 
secret information, misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair dealing-practices.

c. All employee should protect Company's assets and property and ensure its efficient use. Theft, 
carelessness, and waste of the Company's assets and property have a direct impact on the 
Company's profitability. Company's assets should be used only for legitimate business purposes.

d. Any question or interpretation under this Code of Ethics and Business Conduct will be handled by 
the Board or any person /committee authorized by the Board of the Company. The Board of 
Directors or any designated person/committee has the authority to waive compliance with this Code 
of business conduct. The person-seeking waiver of this Code shall make full disclosure of the 
particular circumstances to the Board or the designated person/ committee.

e. This Code of conduct is not intended to and does not create any rights for any employee, customer, 
client, supplier, competitor, shareholder or any other person or entity.

f. If any employee or Directors who knows of or suspects of a violation of applicable laws, rules or 
regulations or Code of conduct, he/she must immediately report the same to the Board of Directors 
or any designated person/committee thereof. Such person should as far as possible provide the 
details of suspected violations with all known particulars relating to the issue. 

g. Violations of Code of Ethics will result in disciplinary action, which may even include termination of 
services of the officer and disqualification from being a Board Member. The Company's Board or any 
Committee/person designated by the Board for this purpose shall determine appropriate action in 
response to violations.

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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The Code of Conduct is equally applicable on employees as well as the Board of Directors of the Company. 
The Company constantly endeavors to do the following.

1. HONEST AND ETHICAL CONDUCT

a. The company expect all the employees, Officers and Directors to act in accordance with the highest 
standards of personal and professional integrity, honesty and ethical conduct, while working at the 
Company’s premises, at offsite locations, at Company’s sponsored business and social events, 
and/or at any other place where the Directors/Officers represent the Company. We consider honest 
conduct to be conduct that is free from fraud and/or deception. We consider ethical conduct to be 
conduct conforming to the accepted professional standards of conduct. Ethical conduct includes 
ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest as specified below between personal and 
professional relationships.

2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

a. Every employee should conduct his/her personal and business affairs in a manner such that neither 
a conflict, nor the appearance of a conflict, arises between those interests and the interests of the 
company.

b. An employee should avoid any situation in which he or she, or a family member, might profit 
personally either (directly or indirectly), from the company’s facilities, its products, or company’s 
relationships with its vendors or customers.

c. An employee should not permit himself/herself (or members of his / her family) to be obligated (other 
than in the course of normal business relationships) to any organization or individual with whom the 
company has a business relationship. 

d. In case an employee is offered or receives something of value which he/she believes may be 
impermissible under this Code, he / she should disclose the matter.

e. All employees shall avoid any kind of bribery, extortion and all other forms of corruption.

f. Conflict of interest shall be avoided and promptly disclosed where they exist and guidance should 
be sought from superiors.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

a. All employees, officers and Directors must comply with all applicable governmental laws, rules and 
regulations. Directors/Officers must acquire appropriate knowledge of the legal requirements 
relating to their duties sufficient to enable them to recognize potential dangers, and to know when to 
seek advice from the Finance and/or Legal Advisor /Legal Counsel. Violations of applicable 
governmental laws, rules and regulations may subject Directors/Officers to individual criminal and/or 
civil liability. Such individual violations may also subject the Company to civil and/or criminal liability 
and/ or the loss of business.

4. MISCELLANEOUS

a. All employee shall maintain the confidentiality of confidential information of the Company or that of 
any customer, supplier or business associate of the Company to which Company has a duty to 
maintain confidentiality, except when disclosure is authorized or legally mandated. 

b. All employee shall deal fairly with customers, suppliers and competitors. They should not take unfair 
advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of confidential, proprietary or trade 
secret information, misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair dealing-practices.

c. All employee should protect Company's assets and property and ensure its efficient use. Theft, 
carelessness, and waste of the Company's assets and property have a direct impact on the 
Company's profitability. Company's assets should be used only for legitimate business purposes.

d. Any question or interpretation under this Code of Ethics and Business Conduct will be handled by 
the Board or any person /committee authorized by the Board of the Company. The Board of 
Directors or any designated person/committee has the authority to waive compliance with this Code 
of business conduct. The person-seeking waiver of this Code shall make full disclosure of the 
particular circumstances to the Board or the designated person/ committee.

e. This Code of conduct is not intended to and does not create any rights for any employee, customer, 
client, supplier, competitor, shareholder or any other person or entity.

f. If any employee or Directors who knows of or suspects of a violation of applicable laws, rules or 
regulations or Code of conduct, he/she must immediately report the same to the Board of Directors 
or any designated person/committee thereof. Such person should as far as possible provide the 
details of suspected violations with all known particulars relating to the issue. 

g. Violations of Code of Ethics will result in disciplinary action, which may even include termination of 
services of the officer and disqualification from being a Board Member. The Company's Board or any 
Committee/person designated by the Board for this purpose shall determine appropriate action in 
response to violations.

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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Assalam-o-Alaikum,

I am pleased to present the Audited Accounts along with the Auditor’s report for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Pre-tax profit reduced to Rs.108 million (2018 Pre-tax Profit of Rs. 321 million) due to sudden and frequent 
devaluations of Pak Rupee experienced during the year. Despite an 11.35% increase in turnover on sales 
volume of 33 million lbs. (2018 35.5 million lbs.) the profitability of the Company suffered amid a global 
economic slowdown.  

The Company’s profitability was affected by multiple factors including unprecedented devaluation of Rupee, 
which affected the cost of imported cotton. In addition, economic slow-down in Pakistan and China along with 
China-USA trade tensions affected yarn prices negatively. Profitability was further affected by higher interest 
cost and general impact of inflation leading to increased cost of locally procured goods and services. The 
China-USA trade conflict and Chinese economic slow-down impacted its yarn imports which left major yarn 
exporting countries, especially Pakistan and India, devastated. The Company had to place heavy reliance on 
imported cotton due to lower than targeted domestic crop size and as such the raw material margin was 
negatively impacted by the devaluation of Pak Rupee. Further a sharp increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 
13.75% significantly increased financial charges by 87% to Rs. 280.64 million (2018 Rs. 150.39 million).    

Although a number of Companies in the Textile Spinning Sector have posted very good results for the 
Financial Year, the management regrets that the Company was not able to achieve better results. The 
China-US trade dispute affected commodity prices, especially the cotton prices, which decreased by 20 cents 
and the Company was left with Cotton purchased at higher rates resulting in loss.   

Coming year.

The withdrawal of Sales Tax Zero Rating for the textile sector resulting in the imposition of 17 percent Sales 
Tax and exorbitant increase in rates of many other Income Tax Withholding schemes has disrupted the local 
yarn trade on which the Company places heavy reliance.  Hence, both the huge increase in taxes and global 
economic slow-down has adversely impacted our profitability.  Although, the Government has been able to 
bring down the current account deficit through steep devaluation of Pak Rupee, however, meager efforts have 
been expended towards trade development to enhance exports. Pakistan is still faced with a large fiscal deficit 
and the Government is forced to collect massive amount of taxes and borrow from whatever source they can. 
This is resulting in extreme liquidity shortage in the market, leaving precious little resources for the Private 
Sector. 

Cost of Energy

The cost of energy in Pakistan is extremely high as compared to the regional countries. The Government’s 
promise of charging Dollar 6.5 per MMBTU for Gas and 7.5 cents for electricity has not materialized and every 
month we have to take up a legal remedy to attain the above prices.

Raw Material

As the situation stands, the Pakistani crop has further deteriorated and the size of the crop is estimated 
around 9 Million bales which is about 2 Million bales less than last year, leading to very high prices in the Local 
Cotton market. This shortage and subsequent rise in Domestic Cotton prices will keep pressure on our 
Company’s profitability in this coming year.

Board performance and effectiveness 

An annual evaluation of the Board performance was conducted in compliance with the requirement of the 
Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that 
the Board performance is measured in the context of overall corporate objectives and governance structure 
of the Company. The Board, during the year, played a pivotal role in steering the Company forward in a 
progressively challenging landscape. Through the commitment and effective oversight of the Directors, your 
Company ensured transparency of corporate governance and compliance.

The Board performed its role and responsibilities for the overall management and supervision of the affairs of 
the Company and remained duly cognizant of its fiduciary responsibilities. It is also important to mention and 
highlight the key role played by the Audit Committee in directing the management towards areas of 
improvements and recommending effective solutions.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to acknowledge the contribution of all our employees in the continued success 
of the Company. I also wish to thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other stakeholders 
for their confidence and support. The Board looks forward with confidence to the year ahead.

 

Karachi:
Date: October 22, 2019

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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Assalam-o-Alaikum,

I am pleased to present the Audited Accounts along with the Auditor’s report for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Pre-tax profit reduced to Rs.108 million (2018 Pre-tax Profit of Rs. 321 million) due to sudden and frequent 
devaluations of Pak Rupee experienced during the year. Despite an 11.35% increase in turnover on sales 
volume of 33 million lbs. (2018 35.5 million lbs.) the profitability of the Company suffered amid a global 
economic slowdown.  

The Company’s profitability was affected by multiple factors including unprecedented devaluation of Rupee, 
which affected the cost of imported cotton. In addition, economic slow-down in Pakistan and China along with 
China-USA trade tensions affected yarn prices negatively. Profitability was further affected by higher interest 
cost and general impact of inflation leading to increased cost of locally procured goods and services. The 
China-USA trade conflict and Chinese economic slow-down impacted its yarn imports which left major yarn 
exporting countries, especially Pakistan and India, devastated. The Company had to place heavy reliance on 
imported cotton due to lower than targeted domestic crop size and as such the raw material margin was 
negatively impacted by the devaluation of Pak Rupee. Further a sharp increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 
13.75% significantly increased financial charges by 87% to Rs. 280.64 million (2018 Rs. 150.39 million).    

Although a number of Companies in the Textile Spinning Sector have posted very good results for the 
Financial Year, the management regrets that the Company was not able to achieve better results. The 
China-US trade dispute affected commodity prices, especially the cotton prices, which decreased by 20 cents 
and the Company was left with Cotton purchased at higher rates resulting in loss.   

Coming year.

The withdrawal of Sales Tax Zero Rating for the textile sector resulting in the imposition of 17 percent Sales 
Tax and exorbitant increase in rates of many other Income Tax Withholding schemes has disrupted the local 
yarn trade on which the Company places heavy reliance.  Hence, both the huge increase in taxes and global 
economic slow-down has adversely impacted our profitability.  Although, the Government has been able to 
bring down the current account deficit through steep devaluation of Pak Rupee, however, meager efforts have 
been expended towards trade development to enhance exports. Pakistan is still faced with a large fiscal deficit 
and the Government is forced to collect massive amount of taxes and borrow from whatever source they can. 
This is resulting in extreme liquidity shortage in the market, leaving precious little resources for the Private 
Sector. 

Cost of Energy

The cost of energy in Pakistan is extremely high as compared to the regional countries. The Government’s 
promise of charging Dollar 6.5 per MMBTU for Gas and 7.5 cents for electricity has not materialized and every 
month we have to take up a legal remedy to attain the above prices.

Raw Material

As the situation stands, the Pakistani crop has further deteriorated and the size of the crop is estimated 
around 9 Million bales which is about 2 Million bales less than last year, leading to very high prices in the Local 
Cotton market. This shortage and subsequent rise in Domestic Cotton prices will keep pressure on our 
Company’s profitability in this coming year.

Board performance and effectiveness 

An annual evaluation of the Board performance was conducted in compliance with the requirement of the 
Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that 
the Board performance is measured in the context of overall corporate objectives and governance structure 
of the Company. The Board, during the year, played a pivotal role in steering the Company forward in a 
progressively challenging landscape. Through the commitment and effective oversight of the Directors, your 
Company ensured transparency of corporate governance and compliance.

The Board performed its role and responsibilities for the overall management and supervision of the affairs of 
the Company and remained duly cognizant of its fiduciary responsibilities. It is also important to mention and 
highlight the key role played by the Audit Committee in directing the management towards areas of 
improvements and recommending effective solutions.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to acknowledge the contribution of all our employees in the continued success 
of the Company. I also wish to thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other stakeholders 
for their confidence and support. The Board looks forward with confidence to the year ahead.

 

Karachi:
Date: October 22, 2019

The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   
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GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

increase in financial charges by 86.62% i.e. increase from Rs.150 million to Rs.281 million. 

The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that 
emphasizes ethics, quality, competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in 
higher value products to the extent possible.

TTML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches 
for new markets and products.

TTML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement 
practices, diversified suppliers and following the market trends closely.    

As a socially responsible entity, we are constantly exploring ways to minimize our waste and are taking all 
necessary steps to reduce its impact on the environment.

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee 
training in order to foster a safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure 
customer satisfaction. 

Capital Structure

Debt to equity ratio on 30 June 2019 was 45:55 compared to 43:57 as on 30 June 2018 increased mainly to 
support temporary increase in working capital requirement.

Dividends

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 22, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Re.0.50 per share 
(2018: Re. 1.00 per share) amounting of Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million) subject to the approval of the 
members at the forthcoming annual general meeting..

PACRA CREDIT RATING

PACRA rating excersice as of June 30, 2019 has been revised and maintained at previous levels of “A2” for 
Short Term and “A-” Long Term. 

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
re-appointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory QCR rating from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP. The Board of Directors has recommended their 
re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Information on the pattern of holding is annexed.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial Relations

We recognize our employees as our most valuable assets. The management therefore ensures a harmonious 
working relationship with employees and strives to provide a congenial working environment both at head 
office and in the factories. Importance is placed on maintaining a good work-life balance.  The management 
also ensures compliance with all employment laws and labor legislations. In turn, employees work hard 
towards the achievement of their targets without disputes. 
Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to recognize and reward devotion and loyalty of employees who 
have a long tenure with the company. 
Gratuity

The company provides terminal benefit to employees in the form of non-contributory defined-benefit gratuity 
scheme. The value of the Gratuity liability at the end of the year was Rs.129.78 million.

Training

Training is essential for improving the competencies of employees so that they are able to help the company 
achieve its objectives. Keeping this in view, various technical and soft-skills training programs were conducted 
during FY 2018-19 which included Energy Management System, Energy System Optimization, Energy 
Conservation and Renewable Energy conducted by UNIDO for technical staff at the mills and at head office.  
Training for MS Excel Advanced, an essential tool for manipulation of data, were provided to various 
employees at the Corporate Office and Mills. Diploma on Cotton Grading and Classification, essential for 
purchase of good quality cotton and leads to good quality yarn, was imparted to our cotton sourcing team by 
Karachi Cotton Association to identify and grade cotton.

Health Safety & Environment

The Company endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages 
healthy work environment and practices and takes initiatives to remain working environment safe. Awareness 
training & drills are carried out consistently to remain abreast with latest development in HSE, ensure 
compliance with legal requirements and manage HSE challenges due to technological advancement and 
development. Objectives are defined to review the progress of HSE measures, initiatives and opportunity for 
development and improvement. Regular performance reviews are convened at appropriate levels with regular 
frequency covering following items: Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE’s), Regular Drills, Awareness 
& Training Sessions, HSE Monitoring / Audit Reports, Results of Environmental Test Reports, 
Incident/Accident Reporting and Confirmation of Regulatory Compliance and HSE Performance Report to 
Executive Management on Quarterly basis by EVP Technical Operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company realizes its responsibility towards the society and strives to contribute in various areas by 
improving the economic conditions of the people, protecting the environment through our initiatives and 
friendly policies and contributing in the well-being of the humanity in general. In this regard, the Company has 

shown has consistently shown commitment to make education more easily available and to provide financial 
support for students. Another goal is make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all 
patients regardless of their ability to pay. In addition to the above, the Company has been and is constantly 
engaged in number of philanthropic activities in areas of Education and Sports, Health Care Services and 
General Financial Aid.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The future outlook for the upcoming financial year seem quite challenging given the revenue targets set by the 
Government, high interest rates, withdrawal of SRO 1125 (1) of 2011 and the trade dispute between the global 
giants however, the government’s main focus is to document the economy and the aggressive steps being 
taken in this respect will hopefully bring about long term sustainability and growth of the Country. The steps 
which have already been taken will slow down the economic activities in the first two quarters of this financial 
year but it is expected to start picking up the pace. 

The Company has developed a strategy to overcome the challenges by focusing on the domestic market that 
is expanding capacity to cater to foreign brands, develop new products for the local market and value added 
yarn for the export market.  It is also hoped that the ongoing trade war between global giant once ended will 
have a positive impact on World Economy and Company’s exports in particular. In addition to the introduction 
of sales tax refunds bonds for export oriented Companies, it is hoped that government will come up with some 
other plan for the textile sector including but not limited to the resolution of GIDC matter, timely release of 
sales/Income tax and DLTL refunds to dilute the impact of the abolition of tax credits on capital investment & 
increase in turnover tax. This will hopefully boost the confidence of the textile sector and to allow the Company 
to compete in the global market. With the approval of the IMF bailout package, concessional loan obtained 
from friendly countries, strict policies to regulate the foreign exchange transactions and better balance of trade 
during this year, mainly on account of reduction in import bills, it is expected that rupee will find its stability and 
plateaued interest rates will start to reduce in the coming year. 

The Company is aggressively addressing its cost increases and will carry measured quantity and right 
mix of cotton stocks in an effort to reduce carrying cost. The Company will also devise strategies to maximize 
its profit margins and to generate positive cash flows. In addition, CAPEX is being planned to improve 
machine efficiency output and reduce energy costs which will provide positive cash flow benefit future years. 

Financial Data and Graphs 

Highlights of the operating/financial data and graphs are presented in the financial highlights section   

Corporate Governance Matters

All matters pertaining to the Policy, Board and Governance are addressed in the Corporate Governance 
Section and considered to be part of the Directors Report.  

Chairman's Review

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part 
of the Directors’ Report.

Acknowledgement

We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly 
engaged in upholding their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and 
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and business associates for standing by us during the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic 
conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order gratitude towards our customers who 
have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line.

PAKISTAN ECONOMY 
FY 2018-19 saw domestic GDP grow at a rate of 3.3% compared to 5.8% during the preceding year. Although 
the deep structural issues afflicting the economy had started re-surfacing towards the end of 2018, the fallout  

was felt widely across the country during the outgoing financial year and further exacerbated based on 
Government taking the difficult decisions required to get the economy back on a sustainable growth track and 
it is expected that economic activity will remain at the current level for the next two years. The formidable 
challenge that the new government now faces is raising aggregate demand in a high interest rate environment 
with limited fiscal space. 

Despite the tough conditions, we expect the government to not deter from pursuing sustainable policies in 
order to build a foundation for future economic and political stability. Documentation of the economy and 
enhancing the tax base is proving to be a painful undertaking in the short-term, however, the country as a 
whole and the organized sector in particular stand to benefit from such measures in the long run.

During FY19, cotton production declined by 17.5 percent, compared to last year. This prevented the textile 
sector from taking full advantage of the recent bouts of exchange rate depreciation, as exports barely grew 
from last year’s level. Higher production costs, especially the high cost of electricity, imported machinery and 
labor cost, amid depressed prices in the international market, have eaten into the margins of the industry. 
Leading domestic textile firms continued to shift their attention to the domestic markets, where the margins 
have tended to be higher compared to exports. As a result, the exportable surplus has waned. Therefore, the 
economy kept on missing out on a significant chunk of foreign exchange earnings that the textile sector could 
potentially have generated.

Pakistan’s cotton yarn exports declined 15.4 percent to US$ 835.7 million in Jul-Mar FY19. The decline was 
almost entirely driven by a 15.9 percent drop in shipments, as unit prices rose marginally. 

The unprecedented devaluation and start of serious economic slow-down coupled with China-USA trade 
issues has had a significant effect on the current year’s financial results. Despite the record highest ever sales 
of over Rs.6.727 billion i.e. 11.35% higher than last year, profit before tax for the year decreased by 66.33%. 
Unfortunately, during the current year, we placed heavy reliance on imported cotton and cotton prices 
increasing due to rupee devaluation while Global New York prices kept sliding downwards, so regrettably we 
could not achieve the advantage of devaluation had we purchased cotton locally.  This has been one of the 
major reasons for lower profits and what affected our financial results for the year under review. A sharp 
increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 13.75% was another factor that has affected our profitability with 

June-2019 June-2018 Variation
Amount in PKR Amount in PKR %Volumes 

Sales 6,727,419,432 6,041,555,707 11.35%
Cost of Sales (6,101,937,407) (5,407,032,219) 12.85%
Gross Profit 625,482,025 634,523,488 1.42%
Finance Cost 280,674,922 150,398,905 86.62%
Profit before taxation 108,235,965 321,433,192 -66.33%
Profit after taxation 32,809,511 246,103,513 -86.67%
Earnings per Share 1.89 14.21 -86.70%

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS
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GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

increase in financial charges by 86.62% i.e. increase from Rs.150 million to Rs.281 million. 

The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that 
emphasizes ethics, quality, competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in 
higher value products to the extent possible.

TTML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches 
for new markets and products.

TTML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement 
practices, diversified suppliers and following the market trends closely.    

As a socially responsible entity, we are constantly exploring ways to minimize our waste and are taking all 
necessary steps to reduce its impact on the environment.

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee 
training in order to foster a safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure 
customer satisfaction. 

Capital Structure

Debt to equity ratio on 30 June 2019 was 45:55 compared to 43:57 as on 30 June 2018 increased mainly to 
support temporary increase in working capital requirement.

Dividends

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 22, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Re.0.50 per share 
(2018: Re. 1.00 per share) amounting of Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million) subject to the approval of the 
members at the forthcoming annual general meeting..

PACRA CREDIT RATING

PACRA rating excersice as of June 30, 2019 has been revised and maintained at previous levels of “A2” for 
Short Term and “A-” Long Term. 

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
re-appointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory QCR rating from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP. The Board of Directors has recommended their 
re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Information on the pattern of holding is annexed.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial Relations

We recognize our employees as our most valuable assets. The management therefore ensures a harmonious 
working relationship with employees and strives to provide a congenial working environment both at head 
office and in the factories. Importance is placed on maintaining a good work-life balance.  The management 
also ensures compliance with all employment laws and labor legislations. In turn, employees work hard 
towards the achievement of their targets without disputes. 
Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to recognize and reward devotion and loyalty of employees who 
have a long tenure with the company. 
Gratuity

The company provides terminal benefit to employees in the form of non-contributory defined-benefit gratuity 
scheme. The value of the Gratuity liability at the end of the year was Rs.129.78 million.

Training

Training is essential for improving the competencies of employees so that they are able to help the company 
achieve its objectives. Keeping this in view, various technical and soft-skills training programs were conducted 
during FY 2018-19 which included Energy Management System, Energy System Optimization, Energy 
Conservation and Renewable Energy conducted by UNIDO for technical staff at the mills and at head office.  
Training for MS Excel Advanced, an essential tool for manipulation of data, were provided to various 
employees at the Corporate Office and Mills. Diploma on Cotton Grading and Classification, essential for 
purchase of good quality cotton and leads to good quality yarn, was imparted to our cotton sourcing team by 
Karachi Cotton Association to identify and grade cotton.

Health Safety & Environment

The Company endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages 
healthy work environment and practices and takes initiatives to remain working environment safe. Awareness 
training & drills are carried out consistently to remain abreast with latest development in HSE, ensure 
compliance with legal requirements and manage HSE challenges due to technological advancement and 
development. Objectives are defined to review the progress of HSE measures, initiatives and opportunity for 
development and improvement. Regular performance reviews are convened at appropriate levels with regular 
frequency covering following items: Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE’s), Regular Drills, Awareness 
& Training Sessions, HSE Monitoring / Audit Reports, Results of Environmental Test Reports, 
Incident/Accident Reporting and Confirmation of Regulatory Compliance and HSE Performance Report to 
Executive Management on Quarterly basis by EVP Technical Operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company realizes its responsibility towards the society and strives to contribute in various areas by 
improving the economic conditions of the people, protecting the environment through our initiatives and 
friendly policies and contributing in the well-being of the humanity in general. In this regard, the Company has 

shown has consistently shown commitment to make education more easily available and to provide financial 
support for students. Another goal is make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all 
patients regardless of their ability to pay. In addition to the above, the Company has been and is constantly 
engaged in number of philanthropic activities in areas of Education and Sports, Health Care Services and 
General Financial Aid.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The future outlook for the upcoming financial year seem quite challenging given the revenue targets set by the 
Government, high interest rates, withdrawal of SRO 1125 (1) of 2011 and the trade dispute between the global 
giants however, the government’s main focus is to document the economy and the aggressive steps being 
taken in this respect will hopefully bring about long term sustainability and growth of the Country. The steps 
which have already been taken will slow down the economic activities in the first two quarters of this financial 
year but it is expected to start picking up the pace. 

The Company has developed a strategy to overcome the challenges by focusing on the domestic market that 
is expanding capacity to cater to foreign brands, develop new products for the local market and value added 
yarn for the export market.  It is also hoped that the ongoing trade war between global giant once ended will 
have a positive impact on World Economy and Company’s exports in particular. In addition to the introduction 
of sales tax refunds bonds for export oriented Companies, it is hoped that government will come up with some 
other plan for the textile sector including but not limited to the resolution of GIDC matter, timely release of 
sales/Income tax and DLTL refunds to dilute the impact of the abolition of tax credits on capital investment & 
increase in turnover tax. This will hopefully boost the confidence of the textile sector and to allow the Company 
to compete in the global market. With the approval of the IMF bailout package, concessional loan obtained 
from friendly countries, strict policies to regulate the foreign exchange transactions and better balance of trade 
during this year, mainly on account of reduction in import bills, it is expected that rupee will find its stability and 
plateaued interest rates will start to reduce in the coming year. 

The Company is aggressively addressing its cost increases and will carry measured quantity and right 
mix of cotton stocks in an effort to reduce carrying cost. The Company will also devise strategies to maximize 
its profit margins and to generate positive cash flows. In addition, CAPEX is being planned to improve 
machine efficiency output and reduce energy costs which will provide positive cash flow benefit future years. 

Financial Data and Graphs 

Highlights of the operating/financial data and graphs are presented in the financial highlights section   

Corporate Governance Matters

All matters pertaining to the Policy, Board and Governance are addressed in the Corporate Governance 
Section and considered to be part of the Directors Report.  

Chairman's Review

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part 
of the Directors’ Report.

Acknowledgement

We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly 
engaged in upholding their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and 
productivity set by the giants of the Industry.  As a team we stand highly grateful towards our vendors, bankers 
and business associates for standing by us during the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic 
conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order gratitude towards our customers who 
have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line.

PAKISTAN ECONOMY 
FY 2018-19 saw domestic GDP grow at a rate of 3.3% compared to 5.8% during the preceding year. Although 
the deep structural issues afflicting the economy had started re-surfacing towards the end of 2018, the fallout  

was felt widely across the country during the outgoing financial year and further exacerbated based on 
Government taking the difficult decisions required to get the economy back on a sustainable growth track and 
it is expected that economic activity will remain at the current level for the next two years. The formidable 
challenge that the new government now faces is raising aggregate demand in a high interest rate environment 
with limited fiscal space. 

Despite the tough conditions, we expect the government to not deter from pursuing sustainable policies in 
order to build a foundation for future economic and political stability. Documentation of the economy and 
enhancing the tax base is proving to be a painful undertaking in the short-term, however, the country as a 
whole and the organized sector in particular stand to benefit from such measures in the long run.

During FY19, cotton production declined by 17.5 percent, compared to last year. This prevented the textile 
sector from taking full advantage of the recent bouts of exchange rate depreciation, as exports barely grew 
from last year’s level. Higher production costs, especially the high cost of electricity, imported machinery and 
labor cost, amid depressed prices in the international market, have eaten into the margins of the industry. 
Leading domestic textile firms continued to shift their attention to the domestic markets, where the margins 
have tended to be higher compared to exports. As a result, the exportable surplus has waned. Therefore, the 
economy kept on missing out on a significant chunk of foreign exchange earnings that the textile sector could 
potentially have generated.

Pakistan’s cotton yarn exports declined 15.4 percent to US$ 835.7 million in Jul-Mar FY19. The decline was 
almost entirely driven by a 15.9 percent drop in shipments, as unit prices rose marginally. 

The unprecedented devaluation and start of serious economic slow-down coupled with China-USA trade 
issues has had a significant effect on the current year’s financial results. Despite the record highest ever sales 
of over Rs.6.727 billion i.e. 11.35% higher than last year, profit before tax for the year decreased by 66.33%. 
Unfortunately, during the current year, we placed heavy reliance on imported cotton and cotton prices 
increasing due to rupee devaluation while Global New York prices kept sliding downwards, so regrettably we 
could not achieve the advantage of devaluation had we purchased cotton locally.  This has been one of the 
major reasons for lower profits and what affected our financial results for the year under review. A sharp 
increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 13.75% was another factor that has affected our profitability with 
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

increase in financial charges by 86.62% i.e. increase from Rs.150 million to Rs.281 million. 

The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that 
emphasizes ethics, quality, competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in 
higher value products to the extent possible.

TTML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches 
for new markets and products.

TTML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement 
practices, diversified suppliers and following the market trends closely.    

As a socially responsible entity, we are constantly exploring ways to minimize our waste and are taking all 
necessary steps to reduce its impact on the environment.

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee 
training in order to foster a safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure 
customer satisfaction. 

Capital Structure

Debt to equity ratio on 30 June 2019 was 45:55 compared to 43:57 as on 30 June 2018 increased mainly to 
support temporary increase in working capital requirement.

Dividends

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 22, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Re.0.50 per share 
(2018: Re. 1.00 per share) amounting of Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million) subject to the approval of the 
members at the forthcoming annual general meeting..

PACRA CREDIT RATING

PACRA rating excersice as of June 30, 2019 has been revised and maintained at previous levels of “A2” for 
Short Term and “A-” Long Term. 

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
re-appointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory QCR rating from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP. The Board of Directors has recommended their 
re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Information on the pattern of holding is annexed.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial Relations

We recognize our employees as our most valuable assets. The management therefore ensures a harmonious 
working relationship with employees and strives to provide a congenial working environment both at head 
office and in the factories. Importance is placed on maintaining a good work-life balance.  The management 
also ensures compliance with all employment laws and labor legislations. In turn, employees work hard 
towards the achievement of their targets without disputes. 
Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to recognize and reward devotion and loyalty of employees who 
have a long tenure with the company. 
Gratuity

The company provides terminal benefit to employees in the form of non-contributory defined-benefit gratuity 
scheme. The value of the Gratuity liability at the end of the year was Rs.129.78 million.

Training

Training is essential for improving the competencies of employees so that they are able to help the company 
achieve its objectives. Keeping this in view, various technical and soft-skills training programs were conducted 
during FY 2018-19 which included Energy Management System, Energy System Optimization, Energy 
Conservation and Renewable Energy conducted by UNIDO for technical staff at the mills and at head office.  
Training for MS Excel Advanced, an essential tool for manipulation of data, were provided to various 
employees at the Corporate Office and Mills. Diploma on Cotton Grading and Classification, essential for 
purchase of good quality cotton and leads to good quality yarn, was imparted to our cotton sourcing team by 
Karachi Cotton Association to identify and grade cotton.

Health Safety & Environment

The Company endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages 
healthy work environment and practices and takes initiatives to remain working environment safe. Awareness 
training & drills are carried out consistently to remain abreast with latest development in HSE, ensure 
compliance with legal requirements and manage HSE challenges due to technological advancement and 
development. Objectives are defined to review the progress of HSE measures, initiatives and opportunity for 
development and improvement. Regular performance reviews are convened at appropriate levels with regular 
frequency covering following items: Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE’s), Regular Drills, Awareness 
& Training Sessions, HSE Monitoring / Audit Reports, Results of Environmental Test Reports, 
Incident/Accident Reporting and Confirmation of Regulatory Compliance and HSE Performance Report to 
Executive Management on Quarterly basis by EVP Technical Operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company realizes its responsibility towards the society and strives to contribute in various areas by 
improving the economic conditions of the people, protecting the environment through our initiatives and 
friendly policies and contributing in the well-being of the humanity in general. In this regard, the Company has 

shown has consistently shown commitment to make education more easily available and to provide financial 
support for students. Another goal is make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all 
patients regardless of their ability to pay. In addition to the above, the Company has been and is constantly 
engaged in number of philanthropic activities in areas of Education and Sports, Health Care Services and 
General Financial Aid.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The future outlook for the upcoming financial year seem quite challenging given the revenue targets set by the 
Government, high interest rates, withdrawal of SRO 1125 (1) of 2011 and the trade dispute between the global 
giants however, the government’s main focus is to document the economy and the aggressive steps being 
taken in this respect will hopefully bring about long term sustainability and growth of the Country. The steps 
which have already been taken will slow down the economic activities in the first two quarters of this financial 
year but it is expected to start picking up the pace. 

The Company has developed a strategy to overcome the challenges by focusing on the domestic market that 
is expanding capacity to cater to foreign brands, develop new products for the local market and value added 
yarn for the export market.  It is also hoped that the ongoing trade war between global giant once ended will 
have a positive impact on World Economy and Company’s exports in particular. In addition to the introduction 
of sales tax refunds bonds for export oriented Companies, it is hoped that government will come up with some 
other plan for the textile sector including but not limited to the resolution of GIDC matter, timely release of 
sales/Income tax and DLTL refunds to dilute the impact of the abolition of tax credits on capital investment & 
increase in turnover tax. This will hopefully boost the confidence of the textile sector and to allow the Company 
to compete in the global market. With the approval of the IMF bailout package, concessional loan obtained 
from friendly countries, strict policies to regulate the foreign exchange transactions and better balance of trade 
during this year, mainly on account of reduction in import bills, it is expected that rupee will find its stability and 
plateaued interest rates will start to reduce in the coming year. 

The Company is aggressively addressing its cost increases and will carry measured quantity and right 
mix of cotton stocks in an effort to reduce carrying cost. The Company will also devise strategies to maximize 
its profit margins and to generate positive cash flows. In addition, CAPEX is being planned to improve 
machine efficiency output and reduce energy costs which will provide positive cash flow benefit future years. 

Financial Data and Graphs 

Highlights of the operating/financial data and graphs are presented in the financial highlights section   

Corporate Governance Matters

All matters pertaining to the Policy, Board and Governance are addressed in the Corporate Governance 
Section and considered to be part of the Directors Report.  

Chairman's Review

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part 
of the Directors’ Report.

Acknowledgement

We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly 
engaged in upholding their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and 
productivity set by the giants of the Industry.  As a team we stand highly grateful towards our vendors, bankers 
and business associates for standing by us during the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic 
conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order gratitude towards our customers who 
have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line.

PAKISTAN ECONOMY 
FY 2018-19 saw domestic GDP grow at a rate of 3.3% compared to 5.8% during the preceding year. Although 
the deep structural issues afflicting the economy had started re-surfacing towards the end of 2018, the fallout  

was felt widely across the country during the outgoing financial year and further exacerbated based on 
Government taking the difficult decisions required to get the economy back on a sustainable growth track and 
it is expected that economic activity will remain at the current level for the next two years. The formidable 
challenge that the new government now faces is raising aggregate demand in a high interest rate environment 
with limited fiscal space. 

Despite the tough conditions, we expect the government to not deter from pursuing sustainable policies in 
order to build a foundation for future economic and political stability. Documentation of the economy and 
enhancing the tax base is proving to be a painful undertaking in the short-term, however, the country as a 
whole and the organized sector in particular stand to benefit from such measures in the long run.

During FY19, cotton production declined by 17.5 percent, compared to last year. This prevented the textile 
sector from taking full advantage of the recent bouts of exchange rate depreciation, as exports barely grew 
from last year’s level. Higher production costs, especially the high cost of electricity, imported machinery and 
labor cost, amid depressed prices in the international market, have eaten into the margins of the industry. 
Leading domestic textile firms continued to shift their attention to the domestic markets, where the margins 
have tended to be higher compared to exports. As a result, the exportable surplus has waned. Therefore, the 
economy kept on missing out on a significant chunk of foreign exchange earnings that the textile sector could 
potentially have generated.

Pakistan’s cotton yarn exports declined 15.4 percent to US$ 835.7 million in Jul-Mar FY19. The decline was 
almost entirely driven by a 15.9 percent drop in shipments, as unit prices rose marginally. 

The unprecedented devaluation and start of serious economic slow-down coupled with China-USA trade 
issues has had a significant effect on the current year’s financial results. Despite the record highest ever sales 
of over Rs.6.727 billion i.e. 11.35% higher than last year, profit before tax for the year decreased by 66.33%. 
Unfortunately, during the current year, we placed heavy reliance on imported cotton and cotton prices 
increasing due to rupee devaluation while Global New York prices kept sliding downwards, so regrettably we 
could not achieve the advantage of devaluation had we purchased cotton locally.  This has been one of the 
major reasons for lower profits and what affected our financial results for the year under review. A sharp 
increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 13.75% was another factor that has affected our profitability with 
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

increase in financial charges by 86.62% i.e. increase from Rs.150 million to Rs.281 million. 

The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that 
emphasizes ethics, quality, competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in 
higher value products to the extent possible.

TTML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches 
for new markets and products.

TTML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement 
practices, diversified suppliers and following the market trends closely.    

As a socially responsible entity, we are constantly exploring ways to minimize our waste and are taking all 
necessary steps to reduce its impact on the environment.

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee 
training in order to foster a safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure 
customer satisfaction. 

Capital Structure

Debt to equity ratio on 30 June 2019 was 45:55 compared to 43:57 as on 30 June 2018 increased mainly to 
support temporary increase in working capital requirement.

Dividends

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 22, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Re.0.50 per share 
(2018: Re. 1.00 per share) amounting of Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million) subject to the approval of the 
members at the forthcoming annual general meeting..

PACRA CREDIT RATING

PACRA rating excersice as of June 30, 2019 has been revised and maintained at previous levels of “A2” for 
Short Term and “A-” Long Term. 

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
re-appointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory QCR rating from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP. The Board of Directors has recommended their 
re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Information on the pattern of holding is annexed.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial Relations

We recognize our employees as our most valuable assets. The management therefore ensures a harmonious 
working relationship with employees and strives to provide a congenial working environment both at head 
office and in the factories. Importance is placed on maintaining a good work-life balance.  The management 
also ensures compliance with all employment laws and labor legislations. In turn, employees work hard 
towards the achievement of their targets without disputes. 
Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to recognize and reward devotion and loyalty of employees who 
have a long tenure with the company. 
Gratuity

The company provides terminal benefit to employees in the form of non-contributory defined-benefit gratuity 
scheme. The value of the Gratuity liability at the end of the year was Rs.129.78 million.

Training

Training is essential for improving the competencies of employees so that they are able to help the company 
achieve its objectives. Keeping this in view, various technical and soft-skills training programs were conducted 
during FY 2018-19 which included Energy Management System, Energy System Optimization, Energy 
Conservation and Renewable Energy conducted by UNIDO for technical staff at the mills and at head office.  
Training for MS Excel Advanced, an essential tool for manipulation of data, were provided to various 
employees at the Corporate Office and Mills. Diploma on Cotton Grading and Classification, essential for 
purchase of good quality cotton and leads to good quality yarn, was imparted to our cotton sourcing team by 
Karachi Cotton Association to identify and grade cotton.

Health Safety & Environment

The Company endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages 
healthy work environment and practices and takes initiatives to remain working environment safe. Awareness 
training & drills are carried out consistently to remain abreast with latest development in HSE, ensure 
compliance with legal requirements and manage HSE challenges due to technological advancement and 
development. Objectives are defined to review the progress of HSE measures, initiatives and opportunity for 
development and improvement. Regular performance reviews are convened at appropriate levels with regular 
frequency covering following items: Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE’s), Regular Drills, Awareness 
& Training Sessions, HSE Monitoring / Audit Reports, Results of Environmental Test Reports, 
Incident/Accident Reporting and Confirmation of Regulatory Compliance and HSE Performance Report to 
Executive Management on Quarterly basis by EVP Technical Operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company realizes its responsibility towards the society and strives to contribute in various areas by 
improving the economic conditions of the people, protecting the environment through our initiatives and 
friendly policies and contributing in the well-being of the humanity in general. In this regard, the Company has 

shown has consistently shown commitment to make education more easily available and to provide financial 
support for students. Another goal is make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all 
patients regardless of their ability to pay. In addition to the above, the Company has been and is constantly 
engaged in number of philanthropic activities in areas of Education and Sports, Health Care Services and 
General Financial Aid.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The future outlook for the upcoming financial year seem quite challenging given the revenue targets set by the 
Government, high interest rates, withdrawal of SRO 1125 (1) of 2011 and the trade dispute between the global 
giants however, the government’s main focus is to document the economy and the aggressive steps being 
taken in this respect will hopefully bring about long term sustainability and growth of the Country. The steps 
which have already been taken will slow down the economic activities in the first two quarters of this financial 
year but it is expected to start picking up the pace. 

The Company has developed a strategy to overcome the challenges by focusing on the domestic market that 
is expanding capacity to cater to foreign brands, develop new products for the local market and value added 
yarn for the export market.  It is also hoped that the ongoing trade war between global giant once ended will 
have a positive impact on World Economy and Company’s exports in particular. In addition to the introduction 
of sales tax refunds bonds for export oriented Companies, it is hoped that government will come up with some 
other plan for the textile sector including but not limited to the resolution of GIDC matter, timely release of 
sales/Income tax and DLTL refunds to dilute the impact of the abolition of tax credits on capital investment & 
increase in turnover tax. This will hopefully boost the confidence of the textile sector and to allow the Company 
to compete in the global market. With the approval of the IMF bailout package, concessional loan obtained 
from friendly countries, strict policies to regulate the foreign exchange transactions and better balance of trade 
during this year, mainly on account of reduction in import bills, it is expected that rupee will find its stability and 
plateaued interest rates will start to reduce in the coming year. 

The Company is aggressively addressing its cost increases and will carry measured quantity and right 
mix of cotton stocks in an effort to reduce carrying cost. The Company will also devise strategies to maximize 
its profit margins and to generate positive cash flows. In addition, CAPEX is being planned to improve 
machine efficiency output and reduce energy costs which will provide positive cash flow benefit future years. 

Financial Data and Graphs 

Highlights of the operating/financial data and graphs are presented in the financial highlights section   

Corporate Governance Matters

All matters pertaining to the Policy, Board and Governance are addressed in the Corporate Governance 
Section and considered to be part of the Directors Report.  

Chairman's Review

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part 
of the Directors’ Report.

Acknowledgement

We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly 
engaged in upholding their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and 
productivity set by the giants of the Industry.  As a team we stand highly grateful towards our vendors, bankers 
and business associates for standing by us during the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic 
conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order gratitude towards our customers who 
have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line.

PAKISTAN ECONOMY 
FY 2018-19 saw domestic GDP grow at a rate of 3.3% compared to 5.8% during the preceding year. Although 
the deep structural issues afflicting the economy had started re-surfacing towards the end of 2018, the fallout  

was felt widely across the country during the outgoing financial year and further exacerbated based on 
Government taking the difficult decisions required to get the economy back on a sustainable growth track and 
it is expected that economic activity will remain at the current level for the next two years. The formidable 
challenge that the new government now faces is raising aggregate demand in a high interest rate environment 
with limited fiscal space. 

Despite the tough conditions, we expect the government to not deter from pursuing sustainable policies in 
order to build a foundation for future economic and political stability. Documentation of the economy and 
enhancing the tax base is proving to be a painful undertaking in the short-term, however, the country as a 
whole and the organized sector in particular stand to benefit from such measures in the long run.

During FY19, cotton production declined by 17.5 percent, compared to last year. This prevented the textile 
sector from taking full advantage of the recent bouts of exchange rate depreciation, as exports barely grew 
from last year’s level. Higher production costs, especially the high cost of electricity, imported machinery and 
labor cost, amid depressed prices in the international market, have eaten into the margins of the industry. 
Leading domestic textile firms continued to shift their attention to the domestic markets, where the margins 
have tended to be higher compared to exports. As a result, the exportable surplus has waned. Therefore, the 
economy kept on missing out on a significant chunk of foreign exchange earnings that the textile sector could 
potentially have generated.

Pakistan’s cotton yarn exports declined 15.4 percent to US$ 835.7 million in Jul-Mar FY19. The decline was 
almost entirely driven by a 15.9 percent drop in shipments, as unit prices rose marginally. 

The unprecedented devaluation and start of serious economic slow-down coupled with China-USA trade 
issues has had a significant effect on the current year’s financial results. Despite the record highest ever sales 
of over Rs.6.727 billion i.e. 11.35% higher than last year, profit before tax for the year decreased by 66.33%. 
Unfortunately, during the current year, we placed heavy reliance on imported cotton and cotton prices 
increasing due to rupee devaluation while Global New York prices kept sliding downwards, so regrettably we 
could not achieve the advantage of devaluation had we purchased cotton locally.  This has been one of the 
major reasons for lower profits and what affected our financial results for the year under review. A sharp 
increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 13.75% was another factor that has affected our profitability with 
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

increase in financial charges by 86.62% i.e. increase from Rs.150 million to Rs.281 million. 

The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that 
emphasizes ethics, quality, competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in 
higher value products to the extent possible.

TTML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches 
for new markets and products.

TTML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement 
practices, diversified suppliers and following the market trends closely.    

As a socially responsible entity, we are constantly exploring ways to minimize our waste and are taking all 
necessary steps to reduce its impact on the environment.

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee 
training in order to foster a safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure 
customer satisfaction. 

Capital Structure

Debt to equity ratio on 30 June 2019 was 45:55 compared to 43:57 as on 30 June 2018 increased mainly to 
support temporary increase in working capital requirement.

Dividends

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 22, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Re.0.50 per share 
(2018: Re. 1.00 per share) amounting of Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million) subject to the approval of the 
members at the forthcoming annual general meeting..

PACRA CREDIT RATING

PACRA rating excersice as of June 30, 2019 has been revised and maintained at previous levels of “A2” for 
Short Term and “A-” Long Term. 

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
re-appointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory QCR rating from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of Ethics of International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by ICAP. The Board of Directors has recommended their 
re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Information on the pattern of holding is annexed.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial Relations

We recognize our employees as our most valuable assets. The management therefore ensures a harmonious 
working relationship with employees and strives to provide a congenial working environment both at head 
office and in the factories. Importance is placed on maintaining a good work-life balance.  The management 
also ensures compliance with all employment laws and labor legislations. In turn, employees work hard 
towards the achievement of their targets without disputes. 
Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided to recognize and reward devotion and loyalty of employees who 
have a long tenure with the company. 
Gratuity

The company provides terminal benefit to employees in the form of non-contributory defined-benefit gratuity 
scheme. The value of the Gratuity liability at the end of the year was Rs.129.78 million.

Training

Training is essential for improving the competencies of employees so that they are able to help the company 
achieve its objectives. Keeping this in view, various technical and soft-skills training programs were conducted 
during FY 2018-19 which included Energy Management System, Energy System Optimization, Energy 
Conservation and Renewable Energy conducted by UNIDO for technical staff at the mills and at head office.  
Training for MS Excel Advanced, an essential tool for manipulation of data, were provided to various 
employees at the Corporate Office and Mills. Diploma on Cotton Grading and Classification, essential for 
purchase of good quality cotton and leads to good quality yarn, was imparted to our cotton sourcing team by 
Karachi Cotton Association to identify and grade cotton.

Health Safety & Environment

The Company endeavors to keep its work force, infrastructure & operations safe and secure and encourages 
healthy work environment and practices and takes initiatives to remain working environment safe. Awareness 
training & drills are carried out consistently to remain abreast with latest development in HSE, ensure 
compliance with legal requirements and manage HSE challenges due to technological advancement and 
development. Objectives are defined to review the progress of HSE measures, initiatives and opportunity for 
development and improvement. Regular performance reviews are convened at appropriate levels with regular 
frequency covering following items: Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE’s), Regular Drills, Awareness 
& Training Sessions, HSE Monitoring / Audit Reports, Results of Environmental Test Reports, 
Incident/Accident Reporting and Confirmation of Regulatory Compliance and HSE Performance Report to 
Executive Management on Quarterly basis by EVP Technical Operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company realizes its responsibility towards the society and strives to contribute in various areas by 
improving the economic conditions of the people, protecting the environment through our initiatives and 
friendly policies and contributing in the well-being of the humanity in general. In this regard, the Company has 

shown has consistently shown commitment to make education more easily available and to provide financial 
support for students. Another goal is make health care more accessible without any discrimination, to all 
patients regardless of their ability to pay. In addition to the above, the Company has been and is constantly 
engaged in number of philanthropic activities in areas of Education and Sports, Health Care Services and 
General Financial Aid.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The future outlook for the upcoming financial year seem quite challenging given the revenue targets set by the 
Government, high interest rates, withdrawal of SRO 1125 (1) of 2011 and the trade dispute between the global 
giants however, the government’s main focus is to document the economy and the aggressive steps being 
taken in this respect will hopefully bring about long term sustainability and growth of the Country. The steps 
which have already been taken will slow down the economic activities in the first two quarters of this financial 
year but it is expected to start picking up the pace. 

The Company has developed a strategy to overcome the challenges by focusing on the domestic market that 
is expanding capacity to cater to foreign brands, develop new products for the local market and value added 
yarn for the export market.  It is also hoped that the ongoing trade war between global giant once ended will 
have a positive impact on World Economy and Company’s exports in particular. In addition to the introduction 
of sales tax refunds bonds for export oriented Companies, it is hoped that government will come up with some 
other plan for the textile sector including but not limited to the resolution of GIDC matter, timely release of 
sales/Income tax and DLTL refunds to dilute the impact of the abolition of tax credits on capital investment & 
increase in turnover tax. This will hopefully boost the confidence of the textile sector and to allow the Company 
to compete in the global market. With the approval of the IMF bailout package, concessional loan obtained 
from friendly countries, strict policies to regulate the foreign exchange transactions and better balance of trade 
during this year, mainly on account of reduction in import bills, it is expected that rupee will find its stability and 
plateaued interest rates will start to reduce in the coming year. 

The Company is aggressively addressing its cost increases and will carry measured quantity and right 
mix of cotton stocks in an effort to reduce carrying cost. The Company will also devise strategies to maximize 
its profit margins and to generate positive cash flows. In addition, CAPEX is being planned to improve 
machine efficiency output and reduce energy costs which will provide positive cash flow benefit future years. 

Financial Data and Graphs 

Highlights of the operating/financial data and graphs are presented in the financial highlights section   

Corporate Governance Matters

All matters pertaining to the Policy, Board and Governance are addressed in the Corporate Governance 
Section and considered to be part of the Directors Report.  

Chairman's Review

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part 
of the Directors’ Report.

Acknowledgement

We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly 
engaged in upholding their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and 
productivity set by the giants of the Industry.  As a team we stand highly grateful towards our vendors, bankers 
and business associates for standing by us during the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic 
conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order gratitude towards our customers who 
have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line.

    ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Karachi:
Date: October 22, 2019

PAKISTAN ECONOMY 
FY 2018-19 saw domestic GDP grow at a rate of 3.3% compared to 5.8% during the preceding year. Although 
the deep structural issues afflicting the economy had started re-surfacing towards the end of 2018, the fallout  

was felt widely across the country during the outgoing financial year and further exacerbated based on 
Government taking the difficult decisions required to get the economy back on a sustainable growth track and 
it is expected that economic activity will remain at the current level for the next two years. The formidable 
challenge that the new government now faces is raising aggregate demand in a high interest rate environment 
with limited fiscal space. 

Despite the tough conditions, we expect the government to not deter from pursuing sustainable policies in 
order to build a foundation for future economic and political stability. Documentation of the economy and 
enhancing the tax base is proving to be a painful undertaking in the short-term, however, the country as a 
whole and the organized sector in particular stand to benefit from such measures in the long run.

During FY19, cotton production declined by 17.5 percent, compared to last year. This prevented the textile 
sector from taking full advantage of the recent bouts of exchange rate depreciation, as exports barely grew 
from last year’s level. Higher production costs, especially the high cost of electricity, imported machinery and 
labor cost, amid depressed prices in the international market, have eaten into the margins of the industry. 
Leading domestic textile firms continued to shift their attention to the domestic markets, where the margins 
have tended to be higher compared to exports. As a result, the exportable surplus has waned. Therefore, the 
economy kept on missing out on a significant chunk of foreign exchange earnings that the textile sector could 
potentially have generated.

Pakistan’s cotton yarn exports declined 15.4 percent to US$ 835.7 million in Jul-Mar FY19. The decline was 
almost entirely driven by a 15.9 percent drop in shipments, as unit prices rose marginally. 

The unprecedented devaluation and start of serious economic slow-down coupled with China-USA trade 
issues has had a significant effect on the current year’s financial results. Despite the record highest ever sales 
of over Rs.6.727 billion i.e. 11.35% higher than last year, profit before tax for the year decreased by 66.33%. 
Unfortunately, during the current year, we placed heavy reliance on imported cotton and cotton prices 
increasing due to rupee devaluation while Global New York prices kept sliding downwards, so regrettably we 
could not achieve the advantage of devaluation had we purchased cotton locally.  This has been one of the 
major reasons for lower profits and what affected our financial results for the year under review. A sharp 
increase in discount rate from 6.75% to 13.75% was another factor that has affected our profitability with 

ADEEL SHAHID TATA
DIRECTOR

SHAHID ANWAR TATA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

Governance Framework

The main philosophy of business followed by the sponsors of Tata Pakistan for the last 30 years has been to 
create value for all stakeholders through fair and sound business practices, which translates into policies 
approved by the Board and implemented throughout the company to enhance the economic and social values 
of all stakeholders of the company. Our Governance strategy is to ensure that the Company follows the 
direction defined by its Core Values, current regulatory framework and industry best practices. The Board, 
discharges its responsibilities as defined by the “Code of Corporate Governance” (CCG), listing requirements 
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and the Corporate Financial Reporting Framework of Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Our approach towards corporate governance ensures ethical 
behavior, transparency, accountability in all that we do and to attaining a fair value for the shareholders.

Compliance Statement

Living up to its standards, the Board of Directors has, throughout the year 2018-19, complied with the Code of 
Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial 
Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Directors confirm that 
that the following has been complied with:

a) The financial statements have been prepared which fairly represent the state of affairs of the 
company, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

b) Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent business judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been disclosed and 
explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. The Internal Audit function is based on a combined system led by the Chief Internal 
Auditor supported by in-house staff as well as M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There is no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as per regulations.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills in 
various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The Board is headed 
by Chairman Mr. Anwar Tata, a Non- Executive Director and out of seven directors, one is an independent 
directors. The current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. At present, four (4) Directors have acquired the 
formal Directors Training Certificates, while all the other directors possess sufficient skills and experience of 
Board room as described in the Code of Corporate Governance. To further its role of providing oversight and 

strategic guidelines to the company, the Board has formulated role and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer. The Board has constituted two Sub Committees, namely Board Audit Committee (BAC) and 
Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC). The composition, role and responsibilities of the 
Committees are clearly defined in their respective Terms of References.

All the Board members are given appropriate documents in advance of each meeting which normally includes 
a detailed analysis of business and matters, where the Board will be required to make a decision or give its 
approval. During the year 2018-19, the Board had four (4) meetings during this year to review the quarterly 
results. The average attendance of the directors in Board meetings during the year was 89%.

The Board of Directors has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

Board Evaluation

As required by the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 the Board has 
developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. During the year a 
comprehensive questioner was circulated among all members of the Board for evaluation of performance of 
the Board of Directors.

The Board Performance Evaluation will be considered the following process:

• Each Board Member will be asked to complete the Evaluation Questioners Form by selecting the 
appropriate rating that most closely reflects his performance and the Board’s as a whole related to 
each practice

• The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (consist of director, detail is below) will review 
the performance of each Director and a Board as whole.

• In addition to Board Members completing the form as a self-evaluation, Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee may ask individuals who interact with the Board Members to provide 
feedback. 

• The result of all Board Members will be consolidated into a summarized document for discussion 
and review by the Board of Directors.

• The Performance of Board will be reviewed twice in a year and the result will be compiled for year 
as whole.

Changes in the Board 

During the year, one casual vacancy occurred in the Board which was filled within 90 days with the 
appointment of Mr. Farooq Advani as Director in place of Mr. Asif Saleem who resigned.

Composition of Board 

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills 
in various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The 
current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, diversity in backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. The composition of the Board is in 

compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, 2017 applicable 
on listed entities which is given below:
Total Number of Directors

a) Male 6
b) Female 1

Composition: 
i. Independent Directors 1
ii. Executive Directors 2
iii. Non-Executive Director 4
The names of the directors as at June 30, 2019 are as follows 
1) Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata  Chairman
2) Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Director / Chief Executive Officer
3) Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata Director
4) Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Director
5) Mr. Farooq Advani Director
6) Ms. Shahbano Hameed (NIT) Director
7) Mr. Muhammad Naseem  Director

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted two sub committees namely Audit Committee and Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee. The role and responsibilities of the Committees are clearly defined in their 
respective Terms of Reference. The composition of both these committees is disclosed as follows:

Audit Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Farooq Advani Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata Member 

Human Recourse and Remuneration Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Membe
Mr. Farooq Advani Member

Detail of Board and its Committee Meetings

During the year under review, four Board of Directors Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings and one 
Human Resource & Remuneration committee meeting were held. The attendance of the directors is as follow:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

Governance Framework

The main philosophy of business followed by the sponsors of Tata Pakistan for the last 30 years has been to 
create value for all stakeholders through fair and sound business practices, which translates into policies 
approved by the Board and implemented throughout the company to enhance the economic and social values 
of all stakeholders of the company. Our Governance strategy is to ensure that the Company follows the 
direction defined by its Core Values, current regulatory framework and industry best practices. The Board, 
discharges its responsibilities as defined by the “Code of Corporate Governance” (CCG), listing requirements 
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and the Corporate Financial Reporting Framework of Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Our approach towards corporate governance ensures ethical 
behavior, transparency, accountability in all that we do and to attaining a fair value for the shareholders.

Compliance Statement

Living up to its standards, the Board of Directors has, throughout the year 2018-19, complied with the Code of 
Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial 
Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Directors confirm that 
that the following has been complied with:

a) The financial statements have been prepared which fairly represent the state of affairs of the 
company, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

b) Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent business judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been disclosed and 
explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. The Internal Audit function is based on a combined system led by the Chief Internal 
Auditor supported by in-house staff as well as M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There is no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as per regulations.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills in 
various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The Board is headed 
by Chairman Mr. Anwar Tata, a Non- Executive Director and out of seven directors, one is an independent 
directors. The current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. At present, four (4) Directors have acquired the 
formal Directors Training Certificates, while all the other directors possess sufficient skills and experience of 
Board room as described in the Code of Corporate Governance. To further its role of providing oversight and 

strategic guidelines to the company, the Board has formulated role and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer. The Board has constituted two Sub Committees, namely Board Audit Committee (BAC) and 
Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC). The composition, role and responsibilities of the 
Committees are clearly defined in their respective Terms of References.

All the Board members are given appropriate documents in advance of each meeting which normally includes 
a detailed analysis of business and matters, where the Board will be required to make a decision or give its 
approval. During the year 2018-19, the Board had four (4) meetings during this year to review the quarterly 
results. The average attendance of the directors in Board meetings during the year was 89%.

The Board of Directors has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

Board Evaluation

As required by the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 the Board has 
developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. During the year a 
comprehensive questioner was circulated among all members of the Board for evaluation of performance of 
the Board of Directors.

The Board Performance Evaluation will be considered the following process:

• Each Board Member will be asked to complete the Evaluation Questioners Form by selecting the 
appropriate rating that most closely reflects his performance and the Board’s as a whole related to 
each practice

• The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (consist of director, detail is below) will review 
the performance of each Director and a Board as whole.

• In addition to Board Members completing the form as a self-evaluation, Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee may ask individuals who interact with the Board Members to provide 
feedback. 

• The result of all Board Members will be consolidated into a summarized document for discussion 
and review by the Board of Directors.

• The Performance of Board will be reviewed twice in a year and the result will be compiled for year 
as whole.

Changes in the Board 

During the year, one casual vacancy occurred in the Board which was filled within 90 days with the 
appointment of Mr. Farooq Advani as Director in place of Mr. Asif Saleem who resigned.

Composition of Board 

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills 
in various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The 
current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, diversity in backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. The composition of the Board is in 

compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, 2017 applicable 
on listed entities which is given below:
Total Number of Directors

a) Male 6
b) Female 1

Composition: 
i. Independent Directors 1
ii. Executive Directors 2
iii. Non-Executive Director 4
The names of the directors as at June 30, 2019 are as follows 
1) Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata  Chairman
2) Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Director / Chief Executive Officer
3) Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata Director
4) Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Director
5) Mr. Farooq Advani Director
6) Ms. Shahbano Hameed (NIT) Director
7) Mr. Muhammad Naseem  Director

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted two sub committees namely Audit Committee and Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee. The role and responsibilities of the Committees are clearly defined in their 
respective Terms of Reference. The composition of both these committees is disclosed as follows:

Audit Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Farooq Advani Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata Member 

Human Recourse and Remuneration Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Membe
Mr. Farooq Advani Member

Detail of Board and its Committee Meetings

During the year under review, four Board of Directors Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings and one 
Human Resource & Remuneration committee meeting were held. The attendance of the directors is as follow:
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

Governance Framework

The main philosophy of business followed by the sponsors of Tata Pakistan for the last 30 years has been to 
create value for all stakeholders through fair and sound business practices, which translates into policies 
approved by the Board and implemented throughout the company to enhance the economic and social values 
of all stakeholders of the company. Our Governance strategy is to ensure that the Company follows the 
direction defined by its Core Values, current regulatory framework and industry best practices. The Board, 
discharges its responsibilities as defined by the “Code of Corporate Governance” (CCG), listing requirements 
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and the Corporate Financial Reporting Framework of Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Our approach towards corporate governance ensures ethical 
behavior, transparency, accountability in all that we do and to attaining a fair value for the shareholders.

Compliance Statement

Living up to its standards, the Board of Directors has, throughout the year 2018-19, complied with the Code of 
Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial 
Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Directors confirm that 
that the following has been complied with:

a) The financial statements have been prepared which fairly represent the state of affairs of the 
company, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

b) Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent business judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been disclosed and 
explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. The Internal Audit function is based on a combined system led by the Chief Internal 
Auditor supported by in-house staff as well as M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There is no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as per regulations.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills in 
various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The Board is headed 
by Chairman Mr. Anwar Tata, a Non- Executive Director and out of seven directors, one is an independent 
directors. The current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. At present, four (4) Directors have acquired the 
formal Directors Training Certificates, while all the other directors possess sufficient skills and experience of 
Board room as described in the Code of Corporate Governance. To further its role of providing oversight and 

strategic guidelines to the company, the Board has formulated role and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer. The Board has constituted two Sub Committees, namely Board Audit Committee (BAC) and 
Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC). The composition, role and responsibilities of the 
Committees are clearly defined in their respective Terms of References.

All the Board members are given appropriate documents in advance of each meeting which normally includes 
a detailed analysis of business and matters, where the Board will be required to make a decision or give its 
approval. During the year 2018-19, the Board had four (4) meetings during this year to review the quarterly 
results. The average attendance of the directors in Board meetings during the year was 89%.

The Board of Directors has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance, the listing requirements of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

Board Evaluation

As required by the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 the Board has 
developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. During the year a 
comprehensive questioner was circulated among all members of the Board for evaluation of performance of 
the Board of Directors.

The Board Performance Evaluation will be considered the following process:

• Each Board Member will be asked to complete the Evaluation Questioners Form by selecting the 
appropriate rating that most closely reflects his performance and the Board’s as a whole related to 
each practice

• The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (consist of director, detail is below) will review 
the performance of each Director and a Board as whole.

• In addition to Board Members completing the form as a self-evaluation, Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee may ask individuals who interact with the Board Members to provide 
feedback. 

• The result of all Board Members will be consolidated into a summarized document for discussion 
and review by the Board of Directors.

• The Performance of Board will be reviewed twice in a year and the result will be compiled for year 
as whole.

Changes in the Board 

During the year, one casual vacancy occurred in the Board which was filled within 90 days with the 
appointment of Mr. Farooq Advani as Director in place of Mr. Asif Saleem who resigned.

Composition of Board 

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience and skills 
in various professions, with the leadership and vision to provide oversight to the company. The 
current Board composition reflects a good mix of experience, diversity in backgrounds, skills and 
qualifications. All directors have many years of experience, and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance. The composition of the Board is in 

compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, 2017 applicable 
on listed entities which is given below:
Total Number of Directors

a) Male 6
b) Female 1

Composition: 
i. Independent Directors 1
ii. Executive Directors 2
iii. Non-Executive Director 4
The names of the directors as at June 30, 2019 are as follows 
1) Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata  Chairman
2) Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Director / Chief Executive Officer
3) Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata Director
4) Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Director
5) Mr. Farooq Advani Director
6) Ms. Shahbano Hameed (NIT) Director
7) Mr. Muhammad Naseem  Director

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted two sub committees namely Audit Committee and Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee. The role and responsibilities of the Committees are clearly defined in their 
respective Terms of Reference. The composition of both these committees is disclosed as follows:

Audit Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Farooq Advani Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata Member 

Human Recourse and Remuneration Committee 
Mr. Muhammad Naseem Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata  Membe
Mr. Farooq Advani Member

Detail of Board and its Committee Meetings

During the year under review, four Board of Directors Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings and one 
Human Resource & Remuneration committee meeting were held. The attendance of the directors is as follow:
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The Directors’ of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

GLOBAL MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

World Economic Outlook of IMF has indicated global growth at 3.3% in 2019, down from 3.6% in 2018 due to 
lower global expansion in the second half of 2018 caused by U.S.-China trade tensions, macroeconomic 
stress in Turkey and Argentina and tighter credit policies in China however, growth is expected to level out at 
3.6% over the medium term beyond 2020. China is expected to slow down to 5.5% by 2024 resulting from 
China’s growth decline, increase in trade tensions with the United States, slow-down in Euro Zone, a no-deal 
Brexit withdrawal of UK from EU, weak economic data pointing to a global growth slowdown and further 
slowdown in Eurozone. In light of this, the imperative is to take actions that boost potential output growth, 
improve inclusiveness, strengthen resilience, resolve trade disagreements cooperatively in order to stabilize 
a slowing global economy. For us, this will mean developing more value added yarns, exploring newer export 
markets and to make further inroads into the local market. 

GLOBAL COTTON SCENARIO  

The Global Cotton Market remains in turmoil from impact of the weaker Chinese demand, changing supply 
chains and the need to move a very large US and Brazilian crop amid weak demand. There has been 
projection of lower global cotton use in 2019/2020 caused by a large drop in Chinese consumption and slower 
demand at the consumer level in Europe. Overall, global cotton consumption for 2019/2020 is estimated at 
120 million bales however, this is only a 2.4 million bales reduction from 2017/2018 versus a 13 million bale 
reduction during the global financial crisis of 2008. World trade is estimated at 40 million bales vs 2015/2016 
when trade fell to 35 million bales on a consumption of 113 million bales.  Given higher production and 
marginally lower demand it is likely that cotton prices will remain stable hence we should purchase cotton 
throughout the year thereby maintaining normal stocks to meet production requirements.    

YARN INDUSTRY IN PAKISTAN 

Spinning industry provides the raw material for the knitting and weaving industry and it focuses on improving 
yarn quality that will ensure competitiveness and higher yarn prices. The spinning industry developments are 
targeted towards higher productivity with effective quality control by selecting suitable equipment and spinning 
conditions to match with the raw materials. Pakistan has the inherent advantage of being the 5th largest 
producer of cotton in the world with large spinning capacity in Asia. In fact, Pakistan contributes 5% to the 
global spinning capacity after China and India. Pakistan’s textile sector contributes 8.5% to Pakistan’s total 
economic output of $300 billion and spinning supports all value-added processes of weaving, knitting, 
processing, garments and made-ups. Pakistan's spinning sector caters to the requirements of the domestic 
industry and about one-third of the total production of yarn is exported to different destinations. 

Production of yarn

At present spinning sector comprises of approximately 400 spinning mills in the country with 10 million 
spindles in operation. The production of yarn is approximately 2.3 million MT. The production of yarn share in 
coarse counts is 47%, medium counts 24%, whereas fine and super counts 5% and mixed polyester 24% 
respectively. 

Exports of cotton yarn

Cotton yarn exports have been showing a declining for many years and have decreased from a high of US$ 
2.25 billion in 2012-13 to only US$ 1.14 billion in in 2018-19 with a reduction of 16% over the same period last 
year and cumulative decline of almost 50% since 2013.  Both domestic and foreign factors played a role in the 
lower quantum exports during the period. On the domestic front, yarn production was basically unchanged 
from last year, at 2.3 million MT. However, demand for yarn by spinners has been rising in response to higher 
demand by local garment manufacturers. The stagnant production amid higher demand boosted domestic 
yarn prices. As a result, it made more business sense for domestic spinners to cater to the local demand 
instead of exports. Pakistan has been reliant on a single country China for its yarn exports in the lower counts. 
The slowdown of imports to China, Bangladesh and Hong Kong due to reduced demand has adversely 
affected the competitive position of Pakistani yarn. The average unit price realization of Pakistani cotton yarn 
in the international markets is low compared to that of its competitors due to cotton quality which is the result 
of unsatisfactory storage/handling of seed cotton by growers, malpractices of ginners involving a mixing of 
cotton varieties, low standards of ginning, addition of excess moisture just before pressing lint into bales and 
production of mostly coarse/medium count yarns. 

Raw material

Pakistan is among the leading cotton producing countries, however its cotton production is on downward side 
and managed to produce only 10.8 million bales 25% less than target of 14.4 million against a total 
requirement of around 16 million bales. Pakistan therefore depends on imported cotton to meet its needs but 
the government has imposed duty on import of cotton. Government of Pakistan and the Textile Ministry needs 
to invest heavily in seed technology and work closely with farmers to bring them up to date with modern 
farming techniques to enhance the output of major cash crop across the cotton growing areas of the country.

Challenges

The textile spinning industry currently faces massive challenges. This year added new uncertainties mainly 
due to abrupt devaluation and exchange losses which resulted in higher cost of raw materials, interest rate 
hike from 6.75% to 13.75% resulting in inflation and affecting the sourcing of the Company, withdrawal of the 
export rebate for spinning segment reduced incentive to export. The trade war among world economies was 
another reason which resulted in fewer orders from China which is Pakistan’s largest market.  The company 
was able to sell its yarn locally but had to provide significantly higher credit in the local market which results 
in higher financing cost. Non-conducive government taxation policies which tend to favor composite units 
rather than standalone companies is another reason which is hurting exports. The Finance Act of 2019 has 
introduced some unfavorable taxation policies including removal of zero rating which provides for charging of 
17% sales tax on local sales and payment of 10% sales tax on local purchase of cotton which will further 
impact liquidity at a time of high interest rates. 10% BMR tax credit on investments has also been withdrawn 
reducing incentive to invest and boost capacity to earn foreign exchange. The government is also not 
providing timely Sales Tax, Income Tax and Export Rebate refunds and a secondary market for refund bonds 
has not developed so liquidity remains tied up at very high interest rates. Collectively all these factors are 
damaging the textile sector and its ability to earn valuable foreign exchange.   

Name of Director
Number of Meeting Attended

Board 
Meeting

Audit 
Committee

Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata 3 N/A 1
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata 4 3 1
Mr. Muhammad Naseem 4 4 1
Mr. Farooq Advani** 3 3 -
Ms. Shahbano Hamid (NIT) 2 N/A N/A
Mr. Asif Saleem * 1 1 N/A

(Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Meetings due to their pre-occupations)
* Resigned from the Board on October 16, 2018 
** Appointed by the Board of Director on October 16, 2018

Directors’ Remuneration 
Through the Articles of the Company, the Board of Directors is authorized to fix remuneration of the Directors. 
In this regard, the Board of Directors have developed a comprehensive Remuneration policy for 
Non-executive and Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act 2017 and 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017. Non-executive directors including 
the independent director are entitled only for fee for attending the meetings.

Directors’ Training 

The Directors of the Company are adequately trained to perform their duties and are aware of their powers 
and responsibilities under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations of PSX Rule book.

Detail of Share Trading 

Apart from the following transactions, the Chief Executive, Directors, Chief Financial Officer, 
Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit, other Executives and their spouse(s) and minor children 
did not carry out any transaction in the shares of the company during the year.

Role and Responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO

The Board of Directors provides the overall direction for the Company operations and provides oversight for 
various policies and monitors the management in the light of operational and financial plans. The roles of 
Board and the Chief Executive Officer have been clearly defined where the Board is responsible for strategic 
guidance and providing directions for sustainable business. The Chairman and the Chief Executive have 
separate and distinct roles. The Chairman has all the powers vested in him under the Code of Corporate.

 
 Opening Balance 

(July 1, 2018) 
Purchase Sale Closing Balance 

(June 30, 2019) 
Farooq Advani - 500 - 500 
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Governance and presides over all Board meetings. The Chief Executive performs his duties under the powers 
vested by the law and the Board and recommends and implements the business plans and is responsible for 
overall control and operation of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualification and 
experience as prescribed in the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company Secretary possesses the 
requisite qualification and experience as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017. The appointment, 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CFO, the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit were determined by the Board of Directors. The removal of CFO and Company Secretary 
whenever applicable is made with the approval of Board of Directors.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate Practice

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable manufacturing processes, transparent reporting to the 
shareholders and in the best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure success and better results for all 
stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in the meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, review corporate operations and formulate and review all 
significant policies. The Board firmly adheres to the best ethical practices and fully recognizes its 
responsibilities for protection and efficient utilization of company assets for legitimate business objectives and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chairman ensures that the discussions held during the Board 
meetings and the consequent decisions arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the directors within 14 
days. The CFO and the Company Secretary attended all the meetings of the Board as required by the Code 
of Corporate Governance. All periodic financial statements and other working papers for the consideration of 
the Board/ Committees are circulated to the directors well before the meetings so as to give sufficient time to 
the directors to make decisions on an informed basis. This year the Board has held four meetings, agendas 
of which were duly circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial results

The quarterly un-audited financial statements and the half-yearly financial statements (reviewed by the 
Auditors) were duly circulated within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days respectively along with the Directors’ 
Report. Annual financial statements, Board of Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other statutory 
statements and information are being circulated for consideration and approval by the shareholders within 122 
days from the close of the financial year however, we are taking measures to reduce this time. Periodic 
financial statements of the Company are circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO. 
Half-yearly and annual accounts are initialed by the external auditors before presenting it to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Risk & Opportunity Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, which includes identification and assessment of various risks 
followed by coordinated application of resources, to economically minimize, monitor and control the impact of 
such risks and maximize the realization of opportunities. Management periodically reviews major financial and 
operating risks faced by the business. The Audit Committee is responsible for the Risk Management. Despite 
the facts that the Company’s financial performance during the year was not encouraging as compared to last 

year and yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and 
international cotton pricing, international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and 
exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future financial results of the Company. For more 
details on risk & opportunity management, refer Risk & Opporturnity Report in this Financial Statements.
Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. All policies and 
control procedures are documented in manuals. 

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. The Audit 
Committee receives the Audit reports by the Internal and External auditors, and after detailed deliberations, 
and suggesting improvements, periodic reports are submitted to the Board of Directors. The Company places 
a high value on transparency, both internally and externally, in its corporate management. It focuses 
consistently on the implementation of efficient management practices for the purpose of achieving clear and 
quantifiable commitments. The Company has a Cost & Management Accountant posted as Head of Internal 
Audit, who is being assisted by M/s EY Ford Rhodes and in-house executives to carry out the Internal Control 
functions.

The management has placed an explicit internal control framework with clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well defined policies and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit Committee and the Board 
to have clear understanding of risk areas and to place effective controls to mitigate these risks. 

Whistleblowing & Speak-up Policy 

The Company is committed to do business in ethical and compliance manner. For the purpose, Company has 
implemented whistle blower policy to encourage the employees and other parties (customers and vendors 
etc.) to report without any fear of retaliation, an unethical behaviors, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, 
violation of the company’s policies & values, violation of law by any employee.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent conflict of interests between directors, employees and the 
Company. In this regard, a clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in the Code of Conduct duly 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company annually circulates and obtains a confirmation from all 
employees and Directors that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. Further, the Directors and 
key employees are reminded of insider trading and avoiding in the dealing of shares during the closed period. 
Every Director is required to bring to the attention of the board complete details regarding any material 
transaction which has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither 
participate in discussions nor vote on such matters. The complete details of all transaction with related parties 
are submitted to the Audit Committee who recommends them to the Board for approval in each quarter. These 
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social 
responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs.13.32 million in Education Sector by 

collaborating with The Citizen Foundation with an aim to provide quality education to a deprived and neglected 
area of Khanpur-Baggasher, thus lifting them from poverty. The Company has also contributed Rs.1.46 million 
in Health Sector by collaborating with The Aga Khan Hospital & Medical College Foundation and The Indus 
Hospital, for health and well-being of the poor people of the country.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a fair return 
for our shareholders. We are committed to work for the betterment and prosperity of our stakeholders. 
Management has endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work atmosphere by adopting practices and 
creating working conditions which are safe and healthy for our employees, vendors, contractors, suppliers and 
customers.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient operational procedures, effective internal controls, ethical 
behavior, and energy conservation are an integral part of our business model. We also believe that employees 
are most critical in the progress, growth and sustainability of any organization.

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of significant importance for the company. Building 
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with regulatory requirements and terms and conditions are one of 
the main business principles by which we abide. To bring an accurate understanding of the company’s 
management policies and business activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make full disclosure of all 
material information to all stakeholders by various announcements on its website, to the Stock Exchange and 
other sources available to help investors to make informed decisions. It encourages full participation of the 
members in the Annual General Meetings by sending corporate results and sufficient information following the 
prescribed timeline so as to enable the shareholders to participate on an informed basis. While increasing 
management transparency, it aims to strengthen its relationships and trust with shareholders and 
investors. Our stakeholders include but are not limited to customers, employees, government, 
shareholders, suppliers, local communities and bankers.
Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” that sets out principles for providing shareholders and 
prospective investors with necessary information to allow them to make well informed investment decisions 
and ensure a level playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very important and are properly reviewed to minimize the recurrence 
of similar issues in future. The following principles are adhered to with regards to investor grievances:

a) Investors are treated fairly at all times.

b) Complaints raised are dealt with in a courteous and timely manner.

c) Various modes of communication like email, telephone, meetings and raising matters at the Annual 
General Meeting are available to investors to raise grievances.

d) Queries and complaints are treated fairly and efficiently.
e) Employees work in good faith and without prejudice towards the interest of the creditors.

f) Detailed company information regarding financial highlights, investor information, and other 
requisite information specified under the relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is updated on regular basis.

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by shareholders on company published financial statements 
during the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 22, 2018, no significant 
issues were raised.
Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders, where disclosure 
is required under the reporting framework and the statement of shares held by the directors and 
executives as on 30th June 2019 is annexed.
MECHANISM FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD

Formal Reporting Line 
The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various departments/divisions, each of 
which is led by a divisional head. These divisional heads are responsible for their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

Employees 

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their suggestions. We follow an open 
door policy and employees are free to send emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The 
employees can give suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed in the meetings of the 
Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the relevant Board Committees. The Company also 
has a speak-up policy to enable employees to raise serious concerns to the management regarding 
the business or Company without fear and repercussions. The CEO also meets the all departmental 
and divisional heads on frequent basis through which they are provided an opportunity to express 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at capturing free and 
first hand suggestions.

Shareholders 
Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies’ Act 2017 which is attended by the Board, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO and the 
senior management of the Company. The interactive session with the shareholders allows the 
shareholders to ask questions on financial, economic, social and other issues and also give 
suggestions and recommendations. The CEO responds to all questions. The Company has also 
provided contact details of all relevant personals for general and specific queries on its website.
Managing Conflict of Interest

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company circulates the Code of Conduct to all 

employees and Directors. Further, the Directors and key employees are reminded of insider trading 
and to avoid dealing in shares during closed period. Every Director is required to bring to the attention 
of the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which has a conflict of interest for 
prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither participate in discussions nor vote on 
such matters. The complete details of all transactions with related parties are provided to the Board 
for approval. These transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the 
Company.
Safety of company records

Tata Pakistan has a proper “Document & Record Control Policy” for retaining, maintaining and 
retrieving administrative control of all documents and data that relate to the Company and has taken 
the following concrete measures to ensure safety/security of the records. All important documents 
such as, minutes and proceedings of the Board & its sub-committees, annual general meetings, 
statutory certificates, title documents of the company’s property and all other important 
communications and records are kept in a fire proof secure safe. All other important accounting 
records are outsourced with a record management company.
Human Resources Management

A comprehensive set of policies has been implemented to cover all aspects related to HR. The main focus of 
the policies is to train, motivate and retain valuable human assets for the future growth of the Company. In 
order to maintain continuity of the business operations, particularly at senior management and key managerial 
levels, a Well-defined Succession Policy is in practice.
Information Technology Policy

A well-defined Information Technology Policy is place to help achieve efficient and effective use of I.T 
resources for the company so as to establish priorities, strategy delivery, increase productivity and deliver 
right services to users. The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, COO, CFO and Head of Departments 
who are responsible for taking major I.T decisions. The I.T Head is responsible for ensuring communication of 
I.T security policies to all users of Group Companies. Further, external auditors review I.T controls & policies 
annually. The Policy on Information Technology is focused upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system acquisition development and maintenance, business continuity 
management, incident management, website and ERP.
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Governance and presides over all Board meetings. The Chief Executive performs his duties under the powers 
vested by the law and the Board and recommends and implements the business plans and is responsible for 
overall control and operation of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualification and 
experience as prescribed in the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company Secretary possesses the 
requisite qualification and experience as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017. The appointment, 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CFO, the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit were determined by the Board of Directors. The removal of CFO and Company Secretary 
whenever applicable is made with the approval of Board of Directors.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate Practice

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable manufacturing processes, transparent reporting to the 
shareholders and in the best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure success and better results for all 
stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in the meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, review corporate operations and formulate and review all 
significant policies. The Board firmly adheres to the best ethical practices and fully recognizes its 
responsibilities for protection and efficient utilization of company assets for legitimate business objectives and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chairman ensures that the discussions held during the Board 
meetings and the consequent decisions arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the directors within 14 
days. The CFO and the Company Secretary attended all the meetings of the Board as required by the Code 
of Corporate Governance. All periodic financial statements and other working papers for the consideration of 
the Board/ Committees are circulated to the directors well before the meetings so as to give sufficient time to 
the directors to make decisions on an informed basis. This year the Board has held four meetings, agendas 
of which were duly circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial results

The quarterly un-audited financial statements and the half-yearly financial statements (reviewed by the 
Auditors) were duly circulated within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days respectively along with the Directors’ 
Report. Annual financial statements, Board of Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other statutory 
statements and information are being circulated for consideration and approval by the shareholders within 122 
days from the close of the financial year however, we are taking measures to reduce this time. Periodic 
financial statements of the Company are circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO. 
Half-yearly and annual accounts are initialed by the external auditors before presenting it to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Risk & Opportunity Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, which includes identification and assessment of various risks 
followed by coordinated application of resources, to economically minimize, monitor and control the impact of 
such risks and maximize the realization of opportunities. Management periodically reviews major financial and 
operating risks faced by the business. The Audit Committee is responsible for the Risk Management. Despite 
the facts that the Company’s financial performance during the year was not encouraging as compared to last 

year and yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and 
international cotton pricing, international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and 
exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future financial results of the Company. For more 
details on risk & opportunity management, refer Risk & Opporturnity Report in this Financial Statements.
Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. All policies and 
control procedures are documented in manuals. 

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. The Audit 
Committee receives the Audit reports by the Internal and External auditors, and after detailed deliberations, 
and suggesting improvements, periodic reports are submitted to the Board of Directors. The Company places 
a high value on transparency, both internally and externally, in its corporate management. It focuses 
consistently on the implementation of efficient management practices for the purpose of achieving clear and 
quantifiable commitments. The Company has a Cost & Management Accountant posted as Head of Internal 
Audit, who is being assisted by M/s EY Ford Rhodes and in-house executives to carry out the Internal Control 
functions.

The management has placed an explicit internal control framework with clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well defined policies and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit Committee and the Board 
to have clear understanding of risk areas and to place effective controls to mitigate these risks. 

Whistleblowing & Speak-up Policy 

The Company is committed to do business in ethical and compliance manner. For the purpose, Company has 
implemented whistle blower policy to encourage the employees and other parties (customers and vendors 
etc.) to report without any fear of retaliation, an unethical behaviors, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, 
violation of the company’s policies & values, violation of law by any employee.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent conflict of interests between directors, employees and the 
Company. In this regard, a clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in the Code of Conduct duly 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company annually circulates and obtains a confirmation from all 
employees and Directors that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. Further, the Directors and 
key employees are reminded of insider trading and avoiding in the dealing of shares during the closed period. 
Every Director is required to bring to the attention of the board complete details regarding any material 
transaction which has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither 
participate in discussions nor vote on such matters. The complete details of all transaction with related parties 
are submitted to the Audit Committee who recommends them to the Board for approval in each quarter. These 
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social 
responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs.13.32 million in Education Sector by 

collaborating with The Citizen Foundation with an aim to provide quality education to a deprived and neglected 
area of Khanpur-Baggasher, thus lifting them from poverty. The Company has also contributed Rs.1.46 million 
in Health Sector by collaborating with The Aga Khan Hospital & Medical College Foundation and The Indus 
Hospital, for health and well-being of the poor people of the country.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a fair return 
for our shareholders. We are committed to work for the betterment and prosperity of our stakeholders. 
Management has endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work atmosphere by adopting practices and 
creating working conditions which are safe and healthy for our employees, vendors, contractors, suppliers and 
customers.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient operational procedures, effective internal controls, ethical 
behavior, and energy conservation are an integral part of our business model. We also believe that employees 
are most critical in the progress, growth and sustainability of any organization.

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of significant importance for the company. Building 
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with regulatory requirements and terms and conditions are one of 
the main business principles by which we abide. To bring an accurate understanding of the company’s 
management policies and business activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make full disclosure of all 
material information to all stakeholders by various announcements on its website, to the Stock Exchange and 
other sources available to help investors to make informed decisions. It encourages full participation of the 
members in the Annual General Meetings by sending corporate results and sufficient information following the 
prescribed timeline so as to enable the shareholders to participate on an informed basis. While increasing 
management transparency, it aims to strengthen its relationships and trust with shareholders and 
investors. Our stakeholders include but are not limited to customers, employees, government, 
shareholders, suppliers, local communities and bankers.
Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” that sets out principles for providing shareholders and 
prospective investors with necessary information to allow them to make well informed investment decisions 
and ensure a level playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very important and are properly reviewed to minimize the recurrence 
of similar issues in future. The following principles are adhered to with regards to investor grievances:

a) Investors are treated fairly at all times.

b) Complaints raised are dealt with in a courteous and timely manner.

c) Various modes of communication like email, telephone, meetings and raising matters at the Annual 
General Meeting are available to investors to raise grievances.

d) Queries and complaints are treated fairly and efficiently.
e) Employees work in good faith and without prejudice towards the interest of the creditors.

f) Detailed company information regarding financial highlights, investor information, and other 
requisite information specified under the relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is updated on regular basis.

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by shareholders on company published financial statements 
during the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 22, 2018, no significant 
issues were raised.
Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders, where disclosure 
is required under the reporting framework and the statement of shares held by the directors and 
executives as on 30th June 2019 is annexed.
MECHANISM FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD

Formal Reporting Line 
The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various departments/divisions, each of 
which is led by a divisional head. These divisional heads are responsible for their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

Employees 

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their suggestions. We follow an open 
door policy and employees are free to send emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The 
employees can give suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed in the meetings of the 
Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the relevant Board Committees. The Company also 
has a speak-up policy to enable employees to raise serious concerns to the management regarding 
the business or Company without fear and repercussions. The CEO also meets the all departmental 
and divisional heads on frequent basis through which they are provided an opportunity to express 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at capturing free and 
first hand suggestions.

Shareholders 
Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies’ Act 2017 which is attended by the Board, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO and the 
senior management of the Company. The interactive session with the shareholders allows the 
shareholders to ask questions on financial, economic, social and other issues and also give 
suggestions and recommendations. The CEO responds to all questions. The Company has also 
provided contact details of all relevant personals for general and specific queries on its website.
Managing Conflict of Interest

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company circulates the Code of Conduct to all 

employees and Directors. Further, the Directors and key employees are reminded of insider trading 
and to avoid dealing in shares during closed period. Every Director is required to bring to the attention 
of the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which has a conflict of interest for 
prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither participate in discussions nor vote on 
such matters. The complete details of all transactions with related parties are provided to the Board 
for approval. These transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the 
Company.
Safety of company records

Tata Pakistan has a proper “Document & Record Control Policy” for retaining, maintaining and 
retrieving administrative control of all documents and data that relate to the Company and has taken 
the following concrete measures to ensure safety/security of the records. All important documents 
such as, minutes and proceedings of the Board & its sub-committees, annual general meetings, 
statutory certificates, title documents of the company’s property and all other important 
communications and records are kept in a fire proof secure safe. All other important accounting 
records are outsourced with a record management company.
Human Resources Management

A comprehensive set of policies has been implemented to cover all aspects related to HR. The main focus of 
the policies is to train, motivate and retain valuable human assets for the future growth of the Company. In 
order to maintain continuity of the business operations, particularly at senior management and key managerial 
levels, a Well-defined Succession Policy is in practice.
Information Technology Policy

A well-defined Information Technology Policy is place to help achieve efficient and effective use of I.T 
resources for the company so as to establish priorities, strategy delivery, increase productivity and deliver 
right services to users. The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, COO, CFO and Head of Departments 
who are responsible for taking major I.T decisions. The I.T Head is responsible for ensuring communication of 
I.T security policies to all users of Group Companies. Further, external auditors review I.T controls & policies 
annually. The Policy on Information Technology is focused upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system acquisition development and maintenance, business continuity 
management, incident management, website and ERP.



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

43www.tatapakistan.com

Governance and presides over all Board meetings. The Chief Executive performs his duties under the powers 
vested by the law and the Board and recommends and implements the business plans and is responsible for 
overall control and operation of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualification and 
experience as prescribed in the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company Secretary possesses the 
requisite qualification and experience as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017. The appointment, 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CFO, the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit were determined by the Board of Directors. The removal of CFO and Company Secretary 
whenever applicable is made with the approval of Board of Directors.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate Practice

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable manufacturing processes, transparent reporting to the 
shareholders and in the best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure success and better results for all 
stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in the meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, review corporate operations and formulate and review all 
significant policies. The Board firmly adheres to the best ethical practices and fully recognizes its 
responsibilities for protection and efficient utilization of company assets for legitimate business objectives and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chairman ensures that the discussions held during the Board 
meetings and the consequent decisions arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the directors within 14 
days. The CFO and the Company Secretary attended all the meetings of the Board as required by the Code 
of Corporate Governance. All periodic financial statements and other working papers for the consideration of 
the Board/ Committees are circulated to the directors well before the meetings so as to give sufficient time to 
the directors to make decisions on an informed basis. This year the Board has held four meetings, agendas 
of which were duly circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial results

The quarterly un-audited financial statements and the half-yearly financial statements (reviewed by the 
Auditors) were duly circulated within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days respectively along with the Directors’ 
Report. Annual financial statements, Board of Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other statutory 
statements and information are being circulated for consideration and approval by the shareholders within 122 
days from the close of the financial year however, we are taking measures to reduce this time. Periodic 
financial statements of the Company are circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO. 
Half-yearly and annual accounts are initialed by the external auditors before presenting it to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Risk & Opportunity Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, which includes identification and assessment of various risks 
followed by coordinated application of resources, to economically minimize, monitor and control the impact of 
such risks and maximize the realization of opportunities. Management periodically reviews major financial and 
operating risks faced by the business. The Audit Committee is responsible for the Risk Management. Despite 
the facts that the Company’s financial performance during the year was not encouraging as compared to last 

year and yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and 
international cotton pricing, international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and 
exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future financial results of the Company. For more 
details on risk & opportunity management, refer Risk & Opporturnity Report in this Financial Statements.
Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. All policies and 
control procedures are documented in manuals. 

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. The Audit 
Committee receives the Audit reports by the Internal and External auditors, and after detailed deliberations, 
and suggesting improvements, periodic reports are submitted to the Board of Directors. The Company places 
a high value on transparency, both internally and externally, in its corporate management. It focuses 
consistently on the implementation of efficient management practices for the purpose of achieving clear and 
quantifiable commitments. The Company has a Cost & Management Accountant posted as Head of Internal 
Audit, who is being assisted by M/s EY Ford Rhodes and in-house executives to carry out the Internal Control 
functions.

The management has placed an explicit internal control framework with clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well defined policies and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit Committee and the Board 
to have clear understanding of risk areas and to place effective controls to mitigate these risks. 

Whistleblowing & Speak-up Policy 

The Company is committed to do business in ethical and compliance manner. For the purpose, Company has 
implemented whistle blower policy to encourage the employees and other parties (customers and vendors 
etc.) to report without any fear of retaliation, an unethical behaviors, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, 
violation of the company’s policies & values, violation of law by any employee.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent conflict of interests between directors, employees and the 
Company. In this regard, a clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in the Code of Conduct duly 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company annually circulates and obtains a confirmation from all 
employees and Directors that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. Further, the Directors and 
key employees are reminded of insider trading and avoiding in the dealing of shares during the closed period. 
Every Director is required to bring to the attention of the board complete details regarding any material 
transaction which has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither 
participate in discussions nor vote on such matters. The complete details of all transaction with related parties 
are submitted to the Audit Committee who recommends them to the Board for approval in each quarter. These 
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social 
responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs.13.32 million in Education Sector by 

collaborating with The Citizen Foundation with an aim to provide quality education to a deprived and neglected 
area of Khanpur-Baggasher, thus lifting them from poverty. The Company has also contributed Rs.1.46 million 
in Health Sector by collaborating with The Aga Khan Hospital & Medical College Foundation and The Indus 
Hospital, for health and well-being of the poor people of the country.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a fair return 
for our shareholders. We are committed to work for the betterment and prosperity of our stakeholders. 
Management has endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work atmosphere by adopting practices and 
creating working conditions which are safe and healthy for our employees, vendors, contractors, suppliers and 
customers.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient operational procedures, effective internal controls, ethical 
behavior, and energy conservation are an integral part of our business model. We also believe that employees 
are most critical in the progress, growth and sustainability of any organization.

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of significant importance for the company. Building 
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with regulatory requirements and terms and conditions are one of 
the main business principles by which we abide. To bring an accurate understanding of the company’s 
management policies and business activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make full disclosure of all 
material information to all stakeholders by various announcements on its website, to the Stock Exchange and 
other sources available to help investors to make informed decisions. It encourages full participation of the 
members in the Annual General Meetings by sending corporate results and sufficient information following the 
prescribed timeline so as to enable the shareholders to participate on an informed basis. While increasing 
management transparency, it aims to strengthen its relationships and trust with shareholders and 
investors. Our stakeholders include but are not limited to customers, employees, government, 
shareholders, suppliers, local communities and bankers.
Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” that sets out principles for providing shareholders and 
prospective investors with necessary information to allow them to make well informed investment decisions 
and ensure a level playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very important and are properly reviewed to minimize the recurrence 
of similar issues in future. The following principles are adhered to with regards to investor grievances:

a) Investors are treated fairly at all times.

b) Complaints raised are dealt with in a courteous and timely manner.

c) Various modes of communication like email, telephone, meetings and raising matters at the Annual 
General Meeting are available to investors to raise grievances.

d) Queries and complaints are treated fairly and efficiently.
e) Employees work in good faith and without prejudice towards the interest of the creditors.

f) Detailed company information regarding financial highlights, investor information, and other 
requisite information specified under the relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is updated on regular basis.

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by shareholders on company published financial statements 
during the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 22, 2018, no significant 
issues were raised.
Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders, where disclosure 
is required under the reporting framework and the statement of shares held by the directors and 
executives as on 30th June 2019 is annexed.
MECHANISM FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD

Formal Reporting Line 
The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various departments/divisions, each of 
which is led by a divisional head. These divisional heads are responsible for their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

Employees 

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their suggestions. We follow an open 
door policy and employees are free to send emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The 
employees can give suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed in the meetings of the 
Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the relevant Board Committees. The Company also 
has a speak-up policy to enable employees to raise serious concerns to the management regarding 
the business or Company without fear and repercussions. The CEO also meets the all departmental 
and divisional heads on frequent basis through which they are provided an opportunity to express 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at capturing free and 
first hand suggestions.

Shareholders 
Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies’ Act 2017 which is attended by the Board, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO and the 
senior management of the Company. The interactive session with the shareholders allows the 
shareholders to ask questions on financial, economic, social and other issues and also give 
suggestions and recommendations. The CEO responds to all questions. The Company has also 
provided contact details of all relevant personals for general and specific queries on its website.
Managing Conflict of Interest

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company circulates the Code of Conduct to all 

employees and Directors. Further, the Directors and key employees are reminded of insider trading 
and to avoid dealing in shares during closed period. Every Director is required to bring to the attention 
of the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which has a conflict of interest for 
prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither participate in discussions nor vote on 
such matters. The complete details of all transactions with related parties are provided to the Board 
for approval. These transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the 
Company.
Safety of company records

Tata Pakistan has a proper “Document & Record Control Policy” for retaining, maintaining and 
retrieving administrative control of all documents and data that relate to the Company and has taken 
the following concrete measures to ensure safety/security of the records. All important documents 
such as, minutes and proceedings of the Board & its sub-committees, annual general meetings, 
statutory certificates, title documents of the company’s property and all other important 
communications and records are kept in a fire proof secure safe. All other important accounting 
records are outsourced with a record management company.
Human Resources Management

A comprehensive set of policies has been implemented to cover all aspects related to HR. The main focus of 
the policies is to train, motivate and retain valuable human assets for the future growth of the Company. In 
order to maintain continuity of the business operations, particularly at senior management and key managerial 
levels, a Well-defined Succession Policy is in practice.
Information Technology Policy

A well-defined Information Technology Policy is place to help achieve efficient and effective use of I.T 
resources for the company so as to establish priorities, strategy delivery, increase productivity and deliver 
right services to users. The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, COO, CFO and Head of Departments 
who are responsible for taking major I.T decisions. The I.T Head is responsible for ensuring communication of 
I.T security policies to all users of Group Companies. Further, external auditors review I.T controls & policies 
annually. The Policy on Information Technology is focused upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system acquisition development and maintenance, business continuity 
management, incident management, website and ERP.
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Governance and presides over all Board meetings. The Chief Executive performs his duties under the powers 
vested by the law and the Board and recommends and implements the business plans and is responsible for 
overall control and operation of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualification and 
experience as prescribed in the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company Secretary possesses the 
requisite qualification and experience as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017. The appointment, 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CFO, the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit were determined by the Board of Directors. The removal of CFO and Company Secretary 
whenever applicable is made with the approval of Board of Directors.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate Practice

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable manufacturing processes, transparent reporting to the 
shareholders and in the best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure success and better results for all 
stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in the meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, review corporate operations and formulate and review all 
significant policies. The Board firmly adheres to the best ethical practices and fully recognizes its 
responsibilities for protection and efficient utilization of company assets for legitimate business objectives and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chairman ensures that the discussions held during the Board 
meetings and the consequent decisions arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the directors within 14 
days. The CFO and the Company Secretary attended all the meetings of the Board as required by the Code 
of Corporate Governance. All periodic financial statements and other working papers for the consideration of 
the Board/ Committees are circulated to the directors well before the meetings so as to give sufficient time to 
the directors to make decisions on an informed basis. This year the Board has held four meetings, agendas 
of which were duly circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial results

The quarterly un-audited financial statements and the half-yearly financial statements (reviewed by the 
Auditors) were duly circulated within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days respectively along with the Directors’ 
Report. Annual financial statements, Board of Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other statutory 
statements and information are being circulated for consideration and approval by the shareholders within 122 
days from the close of the financial year however, we are taking measures to reduce this time. Periodic 
financial statements of the Company are circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO. 
Half-yearly and annual accounts are initialed by the external auditors before presenting it to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Risk & Opportunity Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, which includes identification and assessment of various risks 
followed by coordinated application of resources, to economically minimize, monitor and control the impact of 
such risks and maximize the realization of opportunities. Management periodically reviews major financial and 
operating risks faced by the business. The Audit Committee is responsible for the Risk Management. Despite 
the facts that the Company’s financial performance during the year was not encouraging as compared to last 

year and yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and 
international cotton pricing, international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and 
exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future financial results of the Company. For more 
details on risk & opportunity management, refer Risk & Opporturnity Report in this Financial Statements.
Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. All policies and 
control procedures are documented in manuals. 

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. The Audit 
Committee receives the Audit reports by the Internal and External auditors, and after detailed deliberations, 
and suggesting improvements, periodic reports are submitted to the Board of Directors. The Company places 
a high value on transparency, both internally and externally, in its corporate management. It focuses 
consistently on the implementation of efficient management practices for the purpose of achieving clear and 
quantifiable commitments. The Company has a Cost & Management Accountant posted as Head of Internal 
Audit, who is being assisted by M/s EY Ford Rhodes and in-house executives to carry out the Internal Control 
functions.

The management has placed an explicit internal control framework with clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well defined policies and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit Committee and the Board 
to have clear understanding of risk areas and to place effective controls to mitigate these risks. 

Whistleblowing & Speak-up Policy 

The Company is committed to do business in ethical and compliance manner. For the purpose, Company has 
implemented whistle blower policy to encourage the employees and other parties (customers and vendors 
etc.) to report without any fear of retaliation, an unethical behaviors, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, 
violation of the company’s policies & values, violation of law by any employee.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent conflict of interests between directors, employees and the 
Company. In this regard, a clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in the Code of Conduct duly 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company annually circulates and obtains a confirmation from all 
employees and Directors that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. Further, the Directors and 
key employees are reminded of insider trading and avoiding in the dealing of shares during the closed period. 
Every Director is required to bring to the attention of the board complete details regarding any material 
transaction which has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither 
participate in discussions nor vote on such matters. The complete details of all transaction with related parties 
are submitted to the Audit Committee who recommends them to the Board for approval in each quarter. These 
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social 
responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs.13.32 million in Education Sector by 

collaborating with The Citizen Foundation with an aim to provide quality education to a deprived and neglected 
area of Khanpur-Baggasher, thus lifting them from poverty. The Company has also contributed Rs.1.46 million 
in Health Sector by collaborating with The Aga Khan Hospital & Medical College Foundation and The Indus 
Hospital, for health and well-being of the poor people of the country.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a fair return 
for our shareholders. We are committed to work for the betterment and prosperity of our stakeholders. 
Management has endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work atmosphere by adopting practices and 
creating working conditions which are safe and healthy for our employees, vendors, contractors, suppliers and 
customers.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient operational procedures, effective internal controls, ethical 
behavior, and energy conservation are an integral part of our business model. We also believe that employees 
are most critical in the progress, growth and sustainability of any organization.

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of significant importance for the company. Building 
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with regulatory requirements and terms and conditions are one of 
the main business principles by which we abide. To bring an accurate understanding of the company’s 
management policies and business activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make full disclosure of all 
material information to all stakeholders by various announcements on its website, to the Stock Exchange and 
other sources available to help investors to make informed decisions. It encourages full participation of the 
members in the Annual General Meetings by sending corporate results and sufficient information following the 
prescribed timeline so as to enable the shareholders to participate on an informed basis. While increasing 
management transparency, it aims to strengthen its relationships and trust with shareholders and 
investors. Our stakeholders include but are not limited to customers, employees, government, 
shareholders, suppliers, local communities and bankers.
Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” that sets out principles for providing shareholders and 
prospective investors with necessary information to allow them to make well informed investment decisions 
and ensure a level playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very important and are properly reviewed to minimize the recurrence 
of similar issues in future. The following principles are adhered to with regards to investor grievances:

a) Investors are treated fairly at all times.

b) Complaints raised are dealt with in a courteous and timely manner.

c) Various modes of communication like email, telephone, meetings and raising matters at the Annual 
General Meeting are available to investors to raise grievances.

d) Queries and complaints are treated fairly and efficiently.
e) Employees work in good faith and without prejudice towards the interest of the creditors.

f) Detailed company information regarding financial highlights, investor information, and other 
requisite information specified under the relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is updated on regular basis.

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by shareholders on company published financial statements 
during the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 22, 2018, no significant 
issues were raised.
Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders, where disclosure 
is required under the reporting framework and the statement of shares held by the directors and 
executives as on 30th June 2019 is annexed.
MECHANISM FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD

Formal Reporting Line 
The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various departments/divisions, each of 
which is led by a divisional head. These divisional heads are responsible for their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

Employees 

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their suggestions. We follow an open 
door policy and employees are free to send emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The 
employees can give suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed in the meetings of the 
Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the relevant Board Committees. The Company also 
has a speak-up policy to enable employees to raise serious concerns to the management regarding 
the business or Company without fear and repercussions. The CEO also meets the all departmental 
and divisional heads on frequent basis through which they are provided an opportunity to express 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at capturing free and 
first hand suggestions.

Shareholders 
Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies’ Act 2017 which is attended by the Board, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO and the 
senior management of the Company. The interactive session with the shareholders allows the 
shareholders to ask questions on financial, economic, social and other issues and also give 
suggestions and recommendations. The CEO responds to all questions. The Company has also 
provided contact details of all relevant personals for general and specific queries on its website.
Managing Conflict of Interest

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company circulates the Code of Conduct to all 

employees and Directors. Further, the Directors and key employees are reminded of insider trading 
and to avoid dealing in shares during closed period. Every Director is required to bring to the attention 
of the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which has a conflict of interest for 
prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither participate in discussions nor vote on 
such matters. The complete details of all transactions with related parties are provided to the Board 
for approval. These transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the 
Company.
Safety of company records

Tata Pakistan has a proper “Document & Record Control Policy” for retaining, maintaining and 
retrieving administrative control of all documents and data that relate to the Company and has taken 
the following concrete measures to ensure safety/security of the records. All important documents 
such as, minutes and proceedings of the Board & its sub-committees, annual general meetings, 
statutory certificates, title documents of the company’s property and all other important 
communications and records are kept in a fire proof secure safe. All other important accounting 
records are outsourced with a record management company.
Human Resources Management

A comprehensive set of policies has been implemented to cover all aspects related to HR. The main focus of 
the policies is to train, motivate and retain valuable human assets for the future growth of the Company. In 
order to maintain continuity of the business operations, particularly at senior management and key managerial 
levels, a Well-defined Succession Policy is in practice.
Information Technology Policy

A well-defined Information Technology Policy is place to help achieve efficient and effective use of I.T 
resources for the company so as to establish priorities, strategy delivery, increase productivity and deliver 
right services to users. The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, COO, CFO and Head of Departments 
who are responsible for taking major I.T decisions. The I.T Head is responsible for ensuring communication of 
I.T security policies to all users of Group Companies. Further, external auditors review I.T controls & policies 
annually. The Policy on Information Technology is focused upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system acquisition development and maintenance, business continuity 
management, incident management, website and ERP.
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Governance and presides over all Board meetings. The Chief Executive performs his duties under the powers 
vested by the law and the Board and recommends and implements the business plans and is responsible for 
overall control and operation of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualification and 
experience as prescribed in the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company Secretary possesses the 
requisite qualification and experience as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017. The appointment, 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of CFO, the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit were determined by the Board of Directors. The removal of CFO and Company Secretary 
whenever applicable is made with the approval of Board of Directors.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate Practice

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable manufacturing processes, transparent reporting to the 
shareholders and in the best practices of Corporate Governance to ensure success and better results for all 
stakeholders. The Board members actively participate in the meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, review corporate operations and formulate and review all 
significant policies. The Board firmly adheres to the best ethical practices and fully recognizes its 
responsibilities for protection and efficient utilization of company assets for legitimate business objectives and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chairman ensures that the discussions held during the Board 
meetings and the consequent decisions arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the directors within 14 
days. The CFO and the Company Secretary attended all the meetings of the Board as required by the Code 
of Corporate Governance. All periodic financial statements and other working papers for the consideration of 
the Board/ Committees are circulated to the directors well before the meetings so as to give sufficient time to 
the directors to make decisions on an informed basis. This year the Board has held four meetings, agendas 
of which were duly circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial results

The quarterly un-audited financial statements and the half-yearly financial statements (reviewed by the 
Auditors) were duly circulated within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days respectively along with the Directors’ 
Report. Annual financial statements, Board of Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other statutory 
statements and information are being circulated for consideration and approval by the shareholders within 122 
days from the close of the financial year however, we are taking measures to reduce this time. Periodic 
financial statements of the Company are circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO. 
Half-yearly and annual accounts are initialed by the external auditors before presenting it to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Risk & Opportunity Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, which includes identification and assessment of various risks 
followed by coordinated application of resources, to economically minimize, monitor and control the impact of 
such risks and maximize the realization of opportunities. Management periodically reviews major financial and 
operating risks faced by the business. The Audit Committee is responsible for the Risk Management. Despite 
the facts that the Company’s financial performance during the year was not encouraging as compared to last 

year and yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and 
international cotton pricing, international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and 
exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future financial results of the Company. For more 
details on risk & opportunity management, refer Risk & Opporturnity Report in this Financial Statements.
Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. All policies and 
control procedures are documented in manuals. 

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. The Audit 
Committee receives the Audit reports by the Internal and External auditors, and after detailed deliberations, 
and suggesting improvements, periodic reports are submitted to the Board of Directors. The Company places 
a high value on transparency, both internally and externally, in its corporate management. It focuses 
consistently on the implementation of efficient management practices for the purpose of achieving clear and 
quantifiable commitments. The Company has a Cost & Management Accountant posted as Head of Internal 
Audit, who is being assisted by M/s EY Ford Rhodes and in-house executives to carry out the Internal Control 
functions.

The management has placed an explicit internal control framework with clear structures, authority limits, and 
accountabilities, well defined policies and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit Committee and the Board 
to have clear understanding of risk areas and to place effective controls to mitigate these risks. 

Whistleblowing & Speak-up Policy 

The Company is committed to do business in ethical and compliance manner. For the purpose, Company has 
implemented whistle blower policy to encourage the employees and other parties (customers and vendors 
etc.) to report without any fear of retaliation, an unethical behaviors, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, 
violation of the company’s policies & values, violation of law by any employee.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent conflict of interests between directors, employees and the 
Company. In this regard, a clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in the Code of Conduct duly 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Company annually circulates and obtains a confirmation from all 
employees and Directors that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. Further, the Directors and 
key employees are reminded of insider trading and avoiding in the dealing of shares during the closed period. 
Every Director is required to bring to the attention of the board complete details regarding any material 
transaction which has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither 
participate in discussions nor vote on such matters. The complete details of all transaction with related parties 
are submitted to the Audit Committee who recommends them to the Board for approval in each quarter. These 
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Tata Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social 
responsibility. During the year under review the Company contributed Rs.13.32 million in Education Sector by 

collaborating with The Citizen Foundation with an aim to provide quality education to a deprived and neglected 
area of Khanpur-Baggasher, thus lifting them from poverty. The Company has also contributed Rs.1.46 million 
in Health Sector by collaborating with The Aga Khan Hospital & Medical College Foundation and The Indus 
Hospital, for health and well-being of the poor people of the country.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a fair return 
for our shareholders. We are committed to work for the betterment and prosperity of our stakeholders. 
Management has endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work atmosphere by adopting practices and 
creating working conditions which are safe and healthy for our employees, vendors, contractors, suppliers and 
customers.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient operational procedures, effective internal controls, ethical 
behavior, and energy conservation are an integral part of our business model. We also believe that employees 
are most critical in the progress, growth and sustainability of any organization.

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of significant importance for the company. Building 
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with regulatory requirements and terms and conditions are one of 
the main business principles by which we abide. To bring an accurate understanding of the company’s 
management policies and business activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make full disclosure of all 
material information to all stakeholders by various announcements on its website, to the Stock Exchange and 
other sources available to help investors to make informed decisions. It encourages full participation of the 
members in the Annual General Meetings by sending corporate results and sufficient information following the 
prescribed timeline so as to enable the shareholders to participate on an informed basis. While increasing 
management transparency, it aims to strengthen its relationships and trust with shareholders and 
investors. Our stakeholders include but are not limited to customers, employees, government, 
shareholders, suppliers, local communities and bankers.
Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” that sets out principles for providing shareholders and 
prospective investors with necessary information to allow them to make well informed investment decisions 
and ensure a level playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very important and are properly reviewed to minimize the recurrence 
of similar issues in future. The following principles are adhered to with regards to investor grievances:

a) Investors are treated fairly at all times.

b) Complaints raised are dealt with in a courteous and timely manner.

c) Various modes of communication like email, telephone, meetings and raising matters at the Annual 
General Meeting are available to investors to raise grievances.

d) Queries and complaints are treated fairly and efficiently.
e) Employees work in good faith and without prejudice towards the interest of the creditors.

f) Detailed company information regarding financial highlights, investor information, and other 
requisite information specified under the relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is updated on regular basis.

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by shareholders on company published financial statements 
during the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 22, 2018, no significant 
issues were raised.
Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders, where disclosure 
is required under the reporting framework and the statement of shares held by the directors and 
executives as on 30th June 2019 is annexed.
MECHANISM FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD

Formal Reporting Line 
The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various departments/divisions, each of 
which is led by a divisional head. These divisional heads are responsible for their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

Employees 

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their suggestions. We follow an open 
door policy and employees are free to send emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The 
employees can give suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed in the meetings of the 
Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the relevant Board Committees. The Company also 
has a speak-up policy to enable employees to raise serious concerns to the management regarding 
the business or Company without fear and repercussions. The CEO also meets the all departmental 
and divisional heads on frequent basis through which they are provided an opportunity to express 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at capturing free and 
first hand suggestions.

Shareholders 
Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies’ Act 2017 which is attended by the Board, CEO, Company Secretary, CFO and the 
senior management of the Company. The interactive session with the shareholders allows the 
shareholders to ask questions on financial, economic, social and other issues and also give 
suggestions and recommendations. The CEO responds to all questions. The Company has also 
provided contact details of all relevant personals for general and specific queries on its website.
Managing Conflict of Interest

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company circulates the Code of Conduct to all 

employees and Directors. Further, the Directors and key employees are reminded of insider trading 
and to avoid dealing in shares during closed period. Every Director is required to bring to the attention 
of the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which has a conflict of interest for 
prior approval of the Board. The interested Directors neither participate in discussions nor vote on 
such matters. The complete details of all transactions with related parties are provided to the Board 
for approval. These transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual financial statement of the 
Company.
Safety of company records

Tata Pakistan has a proper “Document & Record Control Policy” for retaining, maintaining and 
retrieving administrative control of all documents and data that relate to the Company and has taken 
the following concrete measures to ensure safety/security of the records. All important documents 
such as, minutes and proceedings of the Board & its sub-committees, annual general meetings, 
statutory certificates, title documents of the company’s property and all other important 
communications and records are kept in a fire proof secure safe. All other important accounting 
records are outsourced with a record management company.
Human Resources Management

A comprehensive set of policies has been implemented to cover all aspects related to HR. The main focus of 
the policies is to train, motivate and retain valuable human assets for the future growth of the Company. In 
order to maintain continuity of the business operations, particularly at senior management and key managerial 
levels, a Well-defined Succession Policy is in practice.
Information Technology Policy

A well-defined Information Technology Policy is place to help achieve efficient and effective use of I.T 
resources for the company so as to establish priorities, strategy delivery, increase productivity and deliver 
right services to users. The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, COO, CFO and Head of Departments 
who are responsible for taking major I.T decisions. The I.T Head is responsible for ensuring communication of 
I.T security policies to all users of Group Companies. Further, external auditors review I.T controls & policies 
annually. The Policy on Information Technology is focused upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system acquisition development and maintenance, business continuity 
management, incident management, website and ERP.
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Report of the Audit Committee on adherence to the Code of Corporate Governance

The Board Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the company 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and reports that:

The company has adhered in full, without any material departure, with both the mandatory and voluntary 
provisions of the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, Code of Corporate Governance and 
Company’s Code of Conduct.

The company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has 
also been reviewed and certified by the auditors of the company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except those disclosed in financial 
statements. Applicable accounting standards were followed in preparation of the financial statements of the 
company on a going concern basis for the financial year ended 30 June 2019, which present fairly the state 
of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equity of the company for the year under 
review.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have reviewed the financial statements of the 
company and the Chairman and Board of Directors Report. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, accuracy of reporting, compliance with regulations and applicable 
accounting standards and establishment and maintenance of internal controls and systems of the company.

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper, accurate and adequate 
accounting records have been maintained by the company in accordance with the Companies Act 2017.

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act 2017 
and applicable International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards notified 
by the SECP.

All direct and indirect trading in and holdings of the company’s shares by Directors Executives or their 
spouses were notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, number of shares, form of 
share certificates and nature of transaction. All such transactions have been disclosed.

Internal Audit Function

The internal control framework was effectively implemented by appointing Head of Internal Audit in 
compliance of the Code of Corporate Governance, who is assisted by the internal auditors M/s EY Ford 
Rhodes and in house executives. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the Board 
Audit Committee.

The company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for 
effectiveness and control.

The Board Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance and financial reporting 
objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the company and the shareholders wealth through effective financial, 
operational and compliance controls and risk management at all levels within the company.

Coordination between the external and internal auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution 
to the company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and 
regulations.

External Auditors

The statutory auditors of the company, Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, have completed their 
audit of the company’s financial statements and the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 33rd Annual 
General Meeting for the year 2019.

The final Management Letter is required to be submitted within 45 days of the date of the Auditors’ Report on 
the financial statements under the listing regulations and shall therefore accordingly be discussed in the next 
Board Audit Committee meeting.

The Audit firm has been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the International Federation 
of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by ICAP. The auditors have indicated their 
willingness to continue as auditors.

Being eligible for reappointment under the listing regulations, the Board Audit Committee recommends their 
reappointment for the financial year ending 30 June 2020 on terms & remuneration negotiated by the Chief 
Executive Officer.
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Report of the Audit Committee on adherence to the Code of Corporate Governance

The Board Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the company 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and reports that:

The company has adhered in full, without any material departure, with both the mandatory and voluntary 
provisions of the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, Code of Corporate Governance and 
Company’s Code of Conduct.

The company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has 
also been reviewed and certified by the auditors of the company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except those disclosed in financial 
statements. Applicable accounting standards were followed in preparation of the financial statements of the 
company on a going concern basis for the financial year ended 30 June 2019, which present fairly the state 
of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equity of the company for the year under 
review.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have reviewed the financial statements of the 
company and the Chairman and Board of Directors Report. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, accuracy of reporting, compliance with regulations and applicable 
accounting standards and establishment and maintenance of internal controls and systems of the company.

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper, accurate and adequate 
accounting records have been maintained by the company in accordance with the Companies Act 2017.

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act 2017 
and applicable International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards notified 
by the SECP.

All direct and indirect trading in and holdings of the company’s shares by Directors Executives or their 
spouses were notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, number of shares, form of 
share certificates and nature of transaction. All such transactions have been disclosed.

Internal Audit Function

The internal control framework was effectively implemented by appointing Head of Internal Audit in 
compliance of the Code of Corporate Governance, who is assisted by the internal auditors M/s EY Ford 
Rhodes and in house executives. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the Board 
Audit Committee.

The company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for 
effectiveness and control.

The Board Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance and financial reporting 
objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the company and the shareholders wealth through effective financial, 
operational and compliance controls and risk management at all levels within the company.

Coordination between the external and internal auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution 
to the company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and 
regulations.

External Auditors

The statutory auditors of the company, Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, have completed their 
audit of the company’s financial statements and the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 33rd Annual 
General Meeting for the year 2019.

The final Management Letter is required to be submitted within 45 days of the date of the Auditors’ Report on 
the financial statements under the listing regulations and shall therefore accordingly be discussed in the next 
Board Audit Committee meeting.

The Audit firm has been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the International Federation 
of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by ICAP. The auditors have indicated their 
willingness to continue as auditors.

Being eligible for reappointment under the listing regulations, the Board Audit Committee recommends their 
reappointment for the financial year ending 30 June 2020 on terms & remuneration negotiated by the Chief 
Executive Officer.

Karachi
Dated: October 22, 2019

Muhammad Naseem
Chairman 

Board Audit Committee
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
 (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following

a. Male: 6

b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follow:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed 
companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on 
which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors 
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. During the year the Board did not arrange any training program for its directors, all the remaining 
directors have obtained DTP in prior years except for two directors which are exempt from DTP as per 
the certificate of exemption issued by the Commission.

Name of Company: Tata Textile Mills Limited.
Year ended:             June 30, 2019

Category Names
Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Naseem

Executive Director Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata 

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata 
Ms. Shahbano Hameed
Mr. Farooq Advani
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10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorse the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
 a. Audit Committee
  i. Mr. Muhammad Naseem -Chairman 
  ii. Mr. Farooq Advani -Member
  iii. Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata -Member
 b. HR and Remuneration Committee
  i. Mr. Muhammad Naseem -Chairman
  ii. Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata  -Member
  iii. Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata -Member
  v. Mr. Farooq Advani -Member
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to 

the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as following:
 a. Audit Committee - Quarterly
 b. HR and Remuneration Committee - Annual
15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function supervised by a qualified Head of Internal 

Audit who is considered suitably experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the company. During the year some of the internal audit activities were outsourced to 
Professional Firm who provided the services under supervision of Head of Internal Audit.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of 
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory listing 
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Karachi
Dated:  October 22, 2019

ADEEL SHAHID TATA
DIRECTOR

SHAHID ANWAR TATA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Gross Profit Ratio % 9.30 10.50 6.79 4.65 8.92 12.35
Net Profit / (Loss) to sales % 0.49 4.07 0.84 (3.96) 0.02 1.91
EBITDA Margin to sales % 8.70 10.40 6.71 1.61 5.16 9.21
Operating leverge ratio % (1.55) 7.56 205.38 44.08 14.34 (2.13)
Return on Equity % 0.73 6.58 1.51 (6.90) 0.05 4.10
Return on capital employed % 7.20 10.33 5.64 (1.68) 4.93 13.01

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
Current Ratio Times 1.26 1.32 1.17 1.19 1.27 1.13
Quick/Acid test Ratio Times 0.48 0.72 0.56 0.49 0.60 0.33
Cash on current liabilities Times 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.08
Cash flow from operations to sales Times 0.09 0.11 0.08 0.02 0.06 0.10

INVESTMENT / MARKET RATIOS
Earning per Shares Rs 1.89 14.21 2.45 (11.22) 0.07 5.83
Price/Earning ratio Times 13.99 2.60 15.54 (2.32) 435.74 7.46
Price to Book ratio % 10.27 17.15 23.43 15.98 20.70 30.55
Dividend Yield ratio % 1.89 2.70 0.00 0.00 3.42 2.30
Dividend Payout ratio % 26.40 7.04 0.00 0.00 1,492.25 17.15
Dividend Cover ratio Times 3.79 14.21 0.00 0.00 0.07 5.83
Cash Dividend per Share Rs 0.50 1.00 - - 1.00 1.00
Book Value per Share as at June 30th 258.02 215.73 162.21 162.66 141.05 142.39
Market Value per Share as at June 30th Rs 26.50 37.00 38.00 26.00 29.20 43.50

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS
Financial Leverage ratio Times 0.60 0.52 0.66 0.38 0.60 0.60
Weighted average cost of debt % 11.32% 7.20% 6.16% 7.62% 5.01% 14.09%
Debt to equity ratio % 45:55 43:57 46:54 37:63 44:56 43:57
Interest Cover / Time Interest earned ratio Times 1.39 3.14 1.83 (0.49) 1.56 1.53

ACTIVITY / TURNOVER RATIOS
Total Assets Turnover ratio Times 0.83 0.93 0.97 1.10 1.16 1.22
Fixed Assets Turnover ratio Times 1.43 1.53 1.70 1.69 2.21 2.07
No. of days in Inventory Days 122 74 87 67 82 95
No. of days in Receivables Days 33 46 29 23 47 18
No. of days in Payables Days 16 24 17 23 18 17
Operating cycle Days 139 97 100 64 109 94
Inventory Turnover Ratio Times 2.99 4.96 4.19 5.46 4.44 3.86
Debtors Turnover Ratio Times 10.94 7.77 12.26 15.70 7.63 20.56
Return on assets % 0.41 3.78 0.82 (4.34) 0.03 2.32
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COMMENTS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Over six years, the asset base of the Company elevated mainly due to investment in property, plant and 
equipment, stock-in-trade and trade debtors which is aligned with upward ward movement of exchange rates 
to put up with growing demand of business.

The shareholder’s equity consists of share capital, reserves and revaluation surplus, pursuant to a change as 
per Companies Act, 2017. The increase in equity over the past six years primarily due to an increase in 
retained earnings of the Company and revaluation surplus.

The non-current liabilities of the Company have geared-up in the past six years, principally due to the 
long-term loans obtained for BMR purposes in order to remain competitive. The current liabilities have 
increased mainly to fund working capital requirements on account of stocks, receivables and stuck up income 
and sales tax refunds. 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The turnover enhanced over past six years pursuant to an increase in selling prices and hence a similar 
impact was ensued in terms of augmented cost of sales.

In 2019, the Company benefitted from the highest turnover in absolute and stood at Rs 6.7 billion but was 
simultaneously impacted by the sudden exchange devaluations which impacted the cost of raw materials 
consequently gross margin was impacted. 

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses have reduced by 35% over the last six years mainly due to 
conversion from export to local sales. 

Finance cost increased by 87% mainly on account of sudden hike in interest rates by SBP which was part 
several unprecedented measures being taken by the Government to manage the economy under direction of 
IMF and increase in short-term running finance to cater to the rising financing needs required to fund working 
capital requirements.

A decline in other income is on account of withdrawal export rebate scheme by the government. 

The impact of the afore-stated, together with taxes translated into reduced profitability in the current year.

CASHFLOW ANALYSIS
The Company’s BMR is financed mainly from long-term borrowing and the working capital requirement is 
fulfilled through short term running finance from reputable banks. The Company mostly generated money 
from its operating activities until this year, when due to an escalation in the working capital requirements, 
resulted in cash being used up in operating activities used to finance Stock-in-trade and trade debtors. The 
cash used in investing activities comprises mainly of investment in capital expenditure for BMR purposes. The 
financing activities of the Company comprises mainly of long-term loans obtained and short term financing 
obtained to fund working capital. 

RATIO ANALYSIS
PROFITABILTY RATIOS
The Company exhibited healthy gross profit of Rs 625 million despite escalation in raw material costs and 
gross profit ratio in current year was higher than average of last six years mainly due to improved local pricing 
and exchange devaluation benefits. 
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INVESTMENT / MARKET RATIOS
The earnings per share of 1.89 the Company is lower than bumper profit last year but in line with 2.20 average 
of last six years. 

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
The current ratio was slightly lower than last year but still better than the average of last six years. Slight 
reduction was due to higher short term borrowing to fund working capital requirements. This current ratio 
depicts that the Company is liquid to pay-off its short-term debts on timely basis.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS
The gearing level of the Company demonstrated an upward trend mainly due to higher short term borrowing 
to fund working capital requirements.

ACTIVITY/ TURNOVER RATIOS
The operating cycle demonstrated a fluctuating trend over past six years ranging from 139 days in 2019, being 
the highest to 64 days in 2016, being the lowest. Stock days on hand increased to capitalize on buying 
opportunities which later turned around due to trade conflict between the trading giants. Payable days were 
slightly lower but in line with past trend and practice. 
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Analysis of the Financial Position

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Property, plant and equipment           3,935          2,945          2,891          2,287          2,557          
Other non current assets 4                  3                  4                  6                  7                  
Current assets           2,564          2,239          1,580          2,068          1,792          
Total assets           6,503          5,187          4,475          4,361          4,356          

Shareholders' equity           3,737          2,810          2,819          2,445          2,467          
Non current liabilities 830             470             324             293             298             
Current portion of long term financing 118             62               64               54               52               
Short term borrowings           1,362          1,564          855             1,229          1,210          
Other current liabilities 456             281             413             340             329             
Total equity & liabilities           6,503          5,187          4,475          4,361          4,356          

Vertical Analysis
Property, Plant and Equipment            60.5            56.8            64.6            52.4            58.7            
Other non current assets 0.1              0.1              0.1              0.1              0.2              
Current assets            39.4            43.2            35.3            47.4            41.1            
Total assets          100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         

Shareholders' equity            57.5            54.2            63.0            56.1            56.6            
Non current liabilities            12.8            9.1              7.2              6.7              6.8              
Current portion of long term financing 1.8              1.2              1.4              1.2              1.2              
Short term borrowings            20.9            30.2            19.1            28.2            27.8            
Other current liabilities 7.0              5.4              9.2              7.8              7.6              
Total equity & liabilities          100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         

------------------- Rupees in million -------------------

Percentage

Horizontal Analysis
Property, Plant and Equipment            33.6            1.9              26.4            (10.6)           4.2              
Other non current assets           33.3            (25.0)           (33.3)           (14.3)           (17.6)           
Current assets            14.5            41.7            (23.6)           15.4            (8.9)             
Total assets            25.4            15.9            2.6              0.1              (1.7)             

Shareholders' equity            33.0            (0.3)             15.3            (0.9)             2.4              
Non current liabilities            76.6            45.1            10.6            (1.7)             (8.7)             
Current portion of long term financing            90.3            (3.1)             18.5            3.9              (30.0)           
Short term borrowings            (12.9)           82.9            (30.4)           1.6              (4.8)             
Other current liabilities 62.3            (32.0)           21.5            3.3              (5.8)             
Total equity & liabilities            25.4            15.9            2.6              0.1              (1.7)             

Percentage

2019

4,682
31               

3,376
8,089

4,472
933             
96               

2,154
434             

8,089

57.9 
0.4              

41.7 
100.0

55.3 
11.5 
1.2              

26.6 
5.4              

100.0

19.0 
675.0
31.7 
24.4 

19.7 
12.4 

(18.6)
58.2 
(4.8)             
24.4 
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Analysis of the Comprehensive Income

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Revenue from contract with customers - net 6,042           5,014           4,907           5,066           5,297           
Cost of sales (5,407)         (4,674)         (4,679)         (4,614)         (4,643)         
Gross profit 635             340             228             452             654             
Administration, selling and distribution expenses (231)             (210)             (269)             (291)             (335)             
Other operating expenses (39)               (10)               (17)               (28)               (23)               
Other operating income 108              65                6                   2                   63                
Operating profit/(loss) before financing cost 473             185             (52)              135             359             
Finance cost (150)             (101)             (108)             (87)               (235)             
Profit/(loss) before taxation 323             84               (160)            48               124             
Taxation (75)               (41)               (34)               (47)               (24)               
Profit/(loss) after taxation 248             43               (194)            1                 100             

Vertical Analysis
Net sales 100.0           100.0           100.0           100.0           100.0           
Cost of sales (89.5)            (93.2)            (95.4)            (91.1)            (87.7)            
Gross profit 10.5            6.8              4.7              8.9              12.4            
Administration, selling and distribution expenses (3.8)              (4.2)              (5.5)              (5.7)              (6.3)              
Other operating expenses (0.7)              (0.2)              (0.4)              (0.6)              (0.4)              
Other operating income 1.8               1.3               0.1               0.0               1.2               
Operating profit/(loss) before financing cost 7.8              3.7              (1.1)             2.7              6.8              
Finance cost (2.5)              (2.0)              (2.2)              (1.7)              (4.4)              
Profit/(loss) before taxation 5.4              1.7              (3.3)             1.0              2.3              
Taxation (1.2)              (0.8)              (0.7)              (0.9)              (0.5)              
Profit/(loss) after taxation 4.1              0.9              (3.9)             0.0              1.9              

Horizontal Analysis
Net sales 20.5             2.2               (3.1)              (4.4)              14.8             
Cost of sales 15.7             (0.1)              1.4               (0.6)              23.3             
Gross profit 86.8            49.1            (49.6)           (30.9)           (23.2)           
Administration, selling and distribution expenses 10.0             (21.9)            (7.6)              (13.1)            13.5             
Other operating expenses 290.0           (41.2)            (39.3)            21.7             (39.7)            
Other operating income 66.2             983.3           200.0           (96.8)            806.1           
Operating profit/(loss) before financing cost 155.7          (455.8)         (138.5)         (62.4)           (31.6)           
Finance cost 48.5             (6.5)              24.1             (63.0)            27.3             
Profit/(loss) before taxation 284.5          (152.5)         (433.3)         (61.3)           (63.6)           
Taxation 82.9             20.6             (27.7)            95.8             109.8           
Profit/(loss) after taxation 476.7          (122.2)         (19,500.0)    (99.0)           (69.6)           

---------------------------------- Rupees in million---------------------------------- 

Percentage

Percentage

2019

6,727           

(6,102)         

625             

(217)             

(26)               

6                   

388             

(281)             

107             

(75)               
32               

100.0           

(90.7)            

9.3              

(3.2)              

(0.4)              

0.1               

5.8              

(4.2)              

1.6              

(1.1)              
0.5              

11.3             

12.9             

(1.6)             

(6.1)              

(33.3)            

(94.4)            

(18.0)           

87.3             

(66.9)           

-               

(87.1)           
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Analysis of the Cash Flows 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 345             (545)           497             (180)           428             

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing activities (404)           (209)           (89)              136             (45)              

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities 53               87               (460)           (328)           330             

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5)                (667)           (52)              (371)           713             

Vertical Analysis

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (6,437.4)     81.7            (952.5)        48.4            60.1            

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing activities 7,532.5      31.4            171.5         (36.7)          (6.4)             

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities (995.1)        (13.1)          881.1         88.4            46.3            

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         100.0         

Horizontal Analysis

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (163.3)        (209.7)        (376.8)        (141.9)        (358.7)        

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing activities 92.9            134.0         (165.6)        (401.1)        (74.6)          

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities (38.8)          (118.9)        40.1            (199.5)        22.3            

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (99.2)          1,178.8      (86.0)          (152.1)        (1,060.0)     

------------------- Rupees in million -------------------

Percentage

Percentage

2019

(534)           

(154)           

817             

129             

(414.5)        

(119.4)        

633.9         

100.0         

(254.9)        

(61.9)          

1,432.3      

(2,505.2)     
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Return on Equity
0.73%

Ownership Ratio
55.27% 

Return on Assets
0.41% 

Total Assets
8,089 m  

Owner's Equity
4,470m

Assets
Turnover 0.83

Net Profit Margin
0.49% 

Owner's Equity
4,470m 

Total Liabilities
3,618m  

Total Assets
8,089m 

Net Profit
32m 

N-Current Liab.
933m

Current Liab.
2,685m 

Total Costs
6,695m 

Net Sales
6,727m 

N-Cur Assets
4,713m

Current Assets 
3,376m 

Net Sales
6,727m

DuPont Analysis
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Statement of Value Additions and its Distribution

84.95%

2.29%

6.48%

1.11%

0.53%

4.15%

0.36%

2019

82.07%

3.18%

6.72%

1.22%

0.40%

2.44%

3.71%

2018

Cost of sales Administrative, distribution and others

Employees Income tax

Sales tax Financial charges

Distribution within business

Other operating income 6,280                 0.09% 107,525            1.74%
6,769,459         100.00% 6,173,635        100.00%

Distribution within business 24,147               0.36% 228,778            3.71%
6,769,459         100.00% 6,173,635        100.00%

2019 2018
Statement of Value Additions and its Distribution

Rs. In '000' % Rs. In '000' %
Wealth generated
Sales including sales tax 6,763,179         99.91% 6,066,110         98.26%

Wealth distribution
Cost of sales 5,750,528         84.95% 5,066,402         82.07%
Administrative, distribution and others 155,284             2.29% 196,069            3.18%
Employees 438,977             6.48% 414,778            6.72%
Income tax 75,427               1.11% 75,330              1.22%
Sales tax 35,759               0.53% 24,554              0.40%
Financial charges 280,675             4.15% 150,399            2.44%
Dividend to shareholders 8,662                 0.13% 17,325              0.28%
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Rs. In '000' Rs. In '000'
4,928,710 78.85% 4,068,902 77.29%

96,547 1.54% 84,671 1.61%
77,171 1.23% 78,171 1.48%

528,809 8.46% 457,869 8.70%
351,409 5.62% 340,630 6.47%
189,992 3.04% 149,791 2.85%
52,908 0.85% 60,575 1.15%
25,088 0.40% 23,645 0.45%

Analysis of Costs

Raw Material Consumed
Stores and Spares
Packing Material
Power and Fuel
Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation
Ijara Rental
Others
Total 6,250,634 100.00% 5,264,254 100.00%

2019 2018

78.85%

1.54%
1.23%

8.46%

5.62%

3.04%

0.85%
0.40%

2019

77.29%

1.61%1.48%

8.70%

6.47%

2.85%

1.15%
0.45%

2018

Raw Material Consumed Stores and Spares

Packing Material Power and Fuel

Salaries, wages and benefits Depreciation

Ijara Rental Others
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CONVERSION COST 2019 2018

 ...Rs in Million…
Salaries, wages and benefits 351 341
Electricity, gas and water 529 458
Depreciation and amortisation 190 150
Operational supplies and consumables 238 234
Repairs and maintenance 5 5
Others 9 8
Total 1,322 1,195

2019 2018  

Salaries, wages and benefits Electricity, gas and water

Depreciation and amortisation Operational supplies and consumables

Repairs and maintenance Others

Total
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Gross Profit

Gross Profit (Rs. in million)

(Rs. in million)

-300
-200
-100

 100
 200
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Tata Textile Mills 
Limited will be held on Thursday, the November 21, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. at 5th Floor, Textile Plaza, M. 
A. Jinnah Road, Karachi to transact the following businesses: 
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of the las t Annual General Meeting held on October 22, 2018.
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended June 30, 2019 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.
3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2020. The present auditors, 

M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, retiring and being eligible, have offered themselves 
for reappointment. 

4. To consider, declare and approve final cash dividend @ 5% (i.e. Re.0.50 per share), for the year ended 
June 30, 2019 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolution
5. To consider and pass the following ordinary resolutions:

a) “RESOLVED that the transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated 
companies as disclosed in Note No. 35 of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2019 be and are hereby ratified and approved.”

b) “RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
approve all the transactions carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with 
associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 and in this connection the 
Chief Executive Officer be and is hereby also authorized to take any and all necessary actions and 
sign/execute any and all such documents/indentures as may be required in this regard on behalf of 
the Company.”

Special Resolution
6. To consider and approve the adoption of revised Article of Association and if thought fit, to pass the 

following resolution as Special Resolutions, with or without modification so as to conform to the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2017 and other Rules / Regulations made thereunder from time to time.

 “Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, 
be and are hereby adopted.”

 “Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all 
acts, deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

 “Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) suggests 
any correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby 
authorized to make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and 
spirit.”

7. To transact any other ordinary business or businesses with the permission of the Chairman.
 Statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Special Business is 

being annexed.
By Order of the Board of Directors

Muhammad Hussain
Company Secretary  

Karachi:
Dated: October 30, 2019



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

70 www.tatapakistan.com

Notes:
1. The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from November 14, 

2019 to November 21, 2019 (both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at the office of Share 
Register, M/s CDC Share Registrar Service Limited, CDC, House, 99-B, Block S.M.C.H.S., Main 
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi by the close of business on November 13, 2019 will be considered in time to 
attend and vote at the meeting. 

2. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her 
proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order, must be received at the Company’s 
Registered Office duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. 

3. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her 
Original CNIC or Passport to prove his/her identity and in case of Proxy must enclose additionally an 
attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members should bring the Board 
of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee. 

4. Members are requested to notify their change of address, Zakat declaration (CZ-50) and tax exemption 
certificate (if any) immediately to Company’s Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Ltd.

5. Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a 
copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-submission, 
all future dividend payments may be withheld.

6. CNIC / NTN Pursuant to the directive of the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), CNIC 
of members are mandatorily required to be mentioned on Tax/ Zakat certificate. Members are therefore 
requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC (if not already provided) to Company’s Share Registrar M/s 
CDC Share Registrar Service Limited.

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS & BONUS SHARES Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their 
dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their physical shares, are advised to contact Company’s Share 
Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Ltd. to collect/ enquire about their unclaimed dividend or 
pending shares, if any. Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after 
having completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three (3) years from the 
date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and in case of shares, 
shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

8. E-DIVIDEND As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in case of a Public listed company, any 
dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to 
update their bank account details in the Central Depository System through respective participants. In 
case of physical shares, to provide bank account details to our Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Ltd. on E-Dividend mandate form. Please note that after 31st October 2017 all cash dividends, 
declared by the Company, will only be remitted to designated bank accounts and not otherwise, so please 
ensure an early update of your particulars to avoid any inconvenience in future.

9. E-Voting Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 
143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

10. Video Conference Pursuant to SECP Circular No 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if the Company 
receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a 
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the 
date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to 
availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please provide the information to the Share 
Registrar Office of the Company i.e. Messrs. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, 
Shahrahe- Faisal, Karachi PABX No. (+9221) 111-111-500 and email info@cdcpak.com

11. CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS With reference to SRO 787(I/2014 

of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

13.
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments

1

General
Updated/replaced  in 

Whole Article of 
Association

Companies Ordinance 1984 Companies Act 2017

Code of Corporate Governance
Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) 
Regulations 2017

Stock Exchange Pakistan Stock Exchange

2

2
Interpretation

Code of Corporate Governance” means 
under the Listing Requirements as 
directed by the Commission in 
accordance with section 34 (4) of the 
Securities and Exchange Ordinance.

Code of Corporate Governance” 
means the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulation 2017

“Commission” means the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
established under section 3 of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
Act.

Commission” means the 
Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

"Register" means, unless the context 
otherwise requires, both the Register of 
the Members to be kept at the office, 
pursuant to Section 147 of the 
Companies Ordinance 1984 and Central 
Depository Register.

"Register" means, unless the 
context otherwise requires, both 
the Register of the Members to be 
kept at the office, pursuant to 
Section 119 and 120 of the Act  
and Central Depository Register.

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

“Registrar” means a registrar defined in 
Section 2(1)(31), performing the duty of 
registration of companies under the 
Ordinance.

“Registrar” means a registrar 
defined in Section 2(1) (57) 
performing the duty of registration 
of companies under the 
Companies Act 2017.
“Share Registrar” means the 
Registrar appointed by Board 
of Directors possessing such 
qualification and performing 
such functions as specified by 
the Commission under the 
Share Registrar and Balloters 
Regulations 2017

“Ordinance” means Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, applicable to Pakistan 
or any modification or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force

“Act” means the Companies 
Act, 2017, as in force and any 
amendment or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in 
force

Business

3 4
Commencement

Section 146 Section 19

SHARE

4

7
Power To Issue Shares 

with Different Rights 
and Privileges

Section 90 , 85 and 95(4) Section 58 , 86 and 87

5

9 & 11
Allotment of Shares 

under the control of the 
Directors

Section 73 Section 68 to 70

CERTIFICATE

6
21

Book-Entry Securities / 
Share Certificates

Section 74 Section 71

7 23
Duplicate Certificate Section 75 Section 73

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

8 25
Registration of Transfer

A fee as determined by the Board 
from time to time, not exceeding 
fifty ten rupees. If the directors 
refuse to register a transfer of 
shares, they shall within one 
month, or when the transferee is a 
Central Depository, within five 
days, or such other period as may 
be required by the applicable Law,

A fee as determined by the 
Board from time to time, not 
exceeding fifty ten rupees. If 
the directors refuse to 
register a transfer of shares, 
they shall within fifteen days 
or when the transferee is a 
Central Depository, within 
ten days, or such other 
period as may be required by 
the applicable Law.

9
30                                         

Nomination by 
members

section 80 section 79 

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

ALTERATION AND FURTHER ISSUE OF CAPITAL

10

34
Consolidation 
Division, Sub-
Division and 

Cancellation of 
Shares

Subject to the provision of Section 
92(1)(d), 92(3) and 93 of the Central 
Depositories Act 1997, the company 
may by  ordinary resolution:

Subject to the provision of 
Section 85 of the Act and 
section 13 of the Central 
Depositories Act 1997, the 
company may by  ordinary 
resolution:

GENERAL MEETINGS

11

38                            
Statutory 
Meeting

section 157 the Statutory General 
Meeting of the company shall be 
held within a period of not less 
than three months and not more 
than six months from the date of 
entitlement of commencement of 
business

section 131 the Statutory 
General Meeting of the 
company shall be held within 
a period of one hundred and 
eighty days from the date of 
entitlement of 
commencement of business 
or within nine months from 
the date of its incorporation 
whichever is earlier.

39
Annual General 

Meeting

A general meeting, to be called 
annual general meeting, shall be 
held in accordance with the section 
158 and the Listing Requirements, 
within eighteen months from the 
date of incorporation of the 
company and thereafter once at 
least in every year within the 
period as per applicable law.

A general meeting, to be 
called annual general 
meeting, shall be held in 
accordance with the 
provisions of section 132 of 
the Act and the Rule book of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, 
within sixteen months from 
the date of incorporation of 
the company and thereafter 
once in every calendar year 
within a period of one 
hundred and twenty days 
following the close of 
financial year or the period 
as per applicable law.

Annual general meetings 
shall be held in the town in 
which the registered office of 
the company is situate or in a 
nearest city

12

40
Extra Ordinary 

General Meeting

An Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
may, at any time, be called by the 
Managing Director or by the 
Directors and shall be so called on 
a requisition of shareholders 
having not less than one tenth of 
voting power as provided by 
section 159 of the Companies 
Ordinance 1984.

All general meetings of a 
company other than the 
statutory meeting or an 
annual general meeting 
mentioned in section 131 
and 132 of the Act 
respectively shall be called 
extraordinary general 
meetings.

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship 
and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies 
have to be approved by the shareholders.
In order to comply with the provisions of Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June 30, 2020.

Special Resolution
Revision of Article of Association of Company

In order to comply with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules and 
regulations introduced by the Commission for listed companies, it is proposed to substitute the present 
Articles of Association with new Article of Association and to pass the following resolution with or without 
modification, as Special Resolution; 
“Resolved that the changes/update in Articles of Association, as proposed by the Board of Directors, be 
and are hereby adopted.”
“Further Resolved that the Company Secretary, be and hereby authorized and empowered to do all acts, 
deeds and things that may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
“Further Resolved that in case the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan(SECP) suggests any 
correction in the text of the Articles of Association, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to 
make necessary corrections in the documents as permitted under the law in letter and spirit.”

dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our 
record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through 
email. However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the 
same shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND Members are informed that the rates of deduction 
of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been 
revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL) which as under:

 a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%. 
 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 

members whose names are not entered in to the ATL provided on website of Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their names are 
entered in ATL.

 Further, according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on 
Filer/Non-Filer status of Principal Member as well as Join-holder(s) based on their shareholding 
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

 PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL ON WEBSITE Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30,2019 have been placed on Company’s website i.e. 
www.tatapakistan.com/tata-textile-mills

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 
 This statement is annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting of the members of Tata Textile Mills Ltd. 

to be held on November 21, 2019 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special Business 
to be transacted at the meeting for approval of members.

OrdinaryResolution
1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 

ended June 30, 2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) 
were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant 
to Clause 15 of Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017.
During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in the 
General Meeting.
In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 35 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 
The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2020 
to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.
The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course 

13

41
Calling of Extra 

Ordinary General 
Meeting

The Directors calling any General 
Meeting and the Shareholders calling 
any Extraordinary General Meeting other 
than a meeting for the passing of a 
special resolution, shall respectively give 
at least twenty one (21) days clear notice 
or such other period as per applicable 
law with a statement of the business to 
be transacted at the meeting specifying 
the time and place of the meeting. Where 
it is proposed to pass a special 
Resolution, at least twenty one days' 
notice or such other period as per 
applicable law must be given specifying 
the intention to propose the resolution as 
a Special Resolution

The directors may, whenever 
they think fit, call an 
extraordinary general 
meeting. Extraordinary 
general meeting shall also be 
called on such requisition, or 
in default, may be called by 
such requisitionists, as is 
provided under the 
applicable law. If at any time 
there are not within Pakistan 
sufficient number of directors 
capable of acting to form a 
quorum, any director of the 
company may call an 
extraordinary general 
meeting in the same manner 
as nearly as possible as that 
in which meetings may be 
called by the directors

14

41-A                  
Attendance at 

General Meeting 
through Video 

Conference

The company may provide video 
conference facility to its Members at 
places other than the town in which 
general meeting is taking place after 
considering the geographical dispersal of 
its Members, subject to the condition that 
Members collectively holding ten percent 
(10%) or more shareholding residing at a 
geographical location provide their 
consent to participate in the general 
meeting through video conference at 
least ten (10) days prior to the date of the 
general meeting. The company shall 
arrange video conference facility subject 
to availability of such facility in that city 
and intimation to the Members shall be 
given by the Company at least five (5) 
days before the date of general meeting 
regarding venue of video conference 
facility along with complete information. 
However, the quorum, as required under 
the Ordinance, as well as the Chairman 
of the general meeting, shall be present 
at the place of the general meeting.

The company may provide video 
link facility to its Members on the 
demand residing in a city subject 
to the condition that Members 
collectively holding ten percent 
(10%) or more shareholding 
provide their consent to 
participate in the general meeting 
through video link at least seven 
days prior to the date of the 
general meeting.

NOTICE AND PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
15

42
Notice of Meeting

Section (36) In the case of an emergency 
affecting the business of the Company, 
hold, with permission of the Registrar an 
Extraordinary General Meeting at such 
shorter notice as may be specified

Section 2(1)(66) In the case of an 
emergency affecting the business 
of the Company, hold, with 
permission of the Registrar and/or 
Commissioner Securities 
Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan, an Extraordinary 
General Meeting at such shorter 
notice as may be specified

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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16
44

Quorum

At least Ten members or such other 
numbers as required by the applicable 
law, entitled to vote and present in 
person, representing not less than twenty 
five per cent of the total voting power 
either of their own account or as proxy 
shall be a quorum for General Meeting 
for all purposes

No business shall be 
transacted at any general 
meeting unless a quorum of 
members is present at that 
time when the meeting 
proceeds to business; save 
as herein otherwise 
provided, not less than ten 
members having twenty five 
per cent of the voting power, 
present personally, or 
through video link or such 
other number as required by 
the applicable law, 
personally present shall be a 
quorum.

17 46
Adjourned Meeting

by proxy through video link 

18
51

Manner and Time of 
taking Poll

Section 168 Section 145 

VOTES OF MEMBERS

19 53
Right to Vote Section 160 and 178 Section 134 and 159

20 53-A
E-Voting

The provisions and requirements for E-
voting as prescribed by the Commission 
from time to time shall be deemed to be 
incorporated in these Articles of 
Association, irrespective of the other 
provisions of these Articles and 
notwithstanding anything contradictory 
therein

A member may exercise his 
vote at a meeting by postal 
ballot or electronic means by 
e-voting in the manner 
prescribed by the 
Commission under the 
Companies (Postal Ballot 
Regulations, 2018 as may be 
in force from time to time.

21

54
Vote may be given 
either personally or 
proxy and voting by 

corporate 
representative

Votes may be given either personally or by 
proxy, or by agent acting under a duly 
executed power of attorney.
Where a corporation (whether a company 
within the meaning of the Ordinance or not) 
is a member of the Company, a person duly 
appointed by resolution of directors to 
represent such corporation at a meeting of 
the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 162 shall not be 
deemed to be an instrument of proxy or 
power of attorney and the production at the 
meeting of a copy of such resolution 
certified as being a true copy by a Director 
of such corporation or by the Managing 
Director thereof (if any) shall on production 
at the meeting be accepted by the 
Company as sufficient evidence of the 
validity of his appointment

A corporation, foundation or 
a Company being a Member 
of the Company may by a 
resolution of its Directors 
under Section 138 of the Act 
authorize any of its officers
or any other to act as its 
representative at any 
General Meeting of the 
Company and the person so 
authorized shall be entitled 
to exercise the same power 
on behalf of the Company 
which he represents as if 
he/she were an individual 
Member of the Company.

22
57

Proxy to be in 
Writing

Section 161 Section 137

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

77www.tatapakistan.com

23 59
Form of Proxy Regulation 39 Regulation 42

ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

24
62                            

Period of Office Section 178 Section 157 

25
63                            

Election Sections 174 to 178 and 180 and 184 Sections 154 to 159 161 to 167 

26

The appointment of Independent 
Directors shall be made in 
accordance with the Act and Code 
of Corporate Governance issued 
by the Commission.

The minority Members, as a class, 
shall be facilitated to contest 
election of Directors by proxy 
solicitation as laid down in the 
Code of Corporate Governance 
issued by the Commission.

The Board may have such 
member of female directors as laid 
down in the Code of Corporate 
Governance issued by the 
Commission as amended from 
time to time.

27
65

Casual Vacancy

Any casual vacancy occurring on 
the Board of directors may be filled 
up by the directors within the time 
period required by the applicable 
law, but the person so chosen shall 
be subject to retirement at the 
same time as if he had become a 
director on the day on which the 
director in whose place he is 
chosen was last elected as 
director. 

The directors may at any 
time appoint any persons to 
be a Director to fill a casual 
vacancy in the Board within a 
period of ninety (90) days. 
Any director so appointed 
shall hold office for the 
remainder of the term of the 
Director in whose place he is 
appointed

28
67

Removal of Director Section 181 , 176 ,180 and 178 Section 163 , 157 or Section 161 
and 159

29 68                           
Vacation of office section 187 and 195 section 153 and 182

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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POWER AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

30

74                         
Duties of 
Directors

Ordinance with regard to the 
keeping of a register of the 
shareholding of certain persons 
specified in section 220 thereof. 
The Directors shall further comply 
with such general or special orders 
of the commission issued from 
time to time under section 246 of 
the Ordinance as may be 
applicable to the company in 
regard to the submission of 
periodical statements of accounts, 
information and other reports as 
specified in such orders.

Without prejudice to the 
powers conferred in this 
Article the Directors shall 
also comply with the 
provisions of section 168 and 
204 of the Act and as defined 
in Code of Corporate 
Governance or other 
applicable law.

31
76                           

Mortgages and 
charges

Section 135  ,  121 , 122  and 132 Section 112 , 100 and 109 

32

77                                
Disclosure of 

interest by 
Directors

section 214 section 205 

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

33 79                              
Ineligibility section 187 section 153

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

34 80
Meeting of Directors

The Chief Executive Officer / Managing 
Director or any Director may at any time 
convene a meeting of the Directors. The 
Board may determine to hold a meeting 
through telephone and video 
conferencing or any other technology 
whereby all the Directors can 
simultaneously,

At least once in each quarter of a 
year.
The Chairman may at any time, 
and shall on the written 
requisitions of the Managing 
Director, or of any two Directors, 
summon a meeting of the Board.
At least seven days’ notice shall 
be given to all the Directors for the 
meeting of the Board, and such 
notice shall set forth the purpose 
or purposes for which such 
meeting is summoned, and such 
notice shall be sent by courier, 
facsimile or email to the Directors.
With the consent in writing of all 
the Directors entitled to receive 
notice of a meeting, or to attend or 
vote at any such meeting, a 
meeting of the Board may be 
convened by shorter notice than 
specified in this Article.
The Board may determine to hold 
a meeting through telephone and 
video conferencing or any other 
technology whereby all the 
Directors can simultaneously,

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

35

88                             
Appointment of 
chief executive 

officer and term of 
office

section 198 to 201 section 186 to 189

36
89                                 

Eligibility for 
Reappointment

Section 198 to 199 Section 186 to 187

37
93                         

Ineligibility Section 187 section153

38
95                                 

Other Principal 
Officers

Section 204(a) Section 194 and 195

THE SEAL

39 98
Official Seal Section 213 Section 203

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVE

40 111
Mode of Payment

Unless otherwise directed any dividend 
may be paid by cheque or warrant sent 
through the post to the registered 
address of the member entitled, or in the 
case of joint holders to the registered 
address of that one whose name stands 
first on the register in respect of the joint 
holding and every cheque or warrant so 
sent shall be made payable to the order 
of the person to whom it is sent.
The Company shall not be responsible 
for the loss in transmission of any 
Cheque or warrant or other document 
sent through the post to the registered 
address of any Member, whether or not 
at his request.

Dividend payable in cash 
shall only be paid through 
electronic mode directly in 
the bank account designated 
by the entitled Members. A 
notice of the foregoing 
seeking information from 
Member for payment of 
dividend through electronic 
mode shall be obtained by 
the Company in accordance 
with the provision of Section 
242 of the Act. The Company 
shall place Standard 
Request Form for payment of 
dividend electronically on 
website of the Company.

41

113
Unclaimed 
Dividends

All dividends unclaimed for one year 
after having been declared may be 
invested or otherwise made use of by 
the Directors for the benefit of the 
Company until claimed and all 
dividend unclaimed for three (3) years 
after having been declared may be 
forfeited by the Directors for the 
benefit of the company.

Dividends which have been 
declared by the Company 
and remained un-claimed or 
un-paid for a period of three 
(3) years from the date it is 
due and payable or any 
share which remained un-
claimed for a period of three 
(3) years, the Company shall 
give ninety (90) days notice 
to the Member/Shareholders 
to file claim in accordance 
with the provisions of section 
244 of the Act.

After expiry of notice period 
of ninety (90) days, final 
notice in the specified form 
shall be published in two 
daily newspaper of which 

S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments
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S. 
No Clause No. Subject Present Proposed Change / Amendments

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

one will be in Urdu and one 
in English having wide 
circulation.

If no claim is made before the 
Company by the 
Members/Shareholders, the 
Company shall after ninety 
(90) days from the date of 
publication of the notice, the 
un-claimed / un-paid 
dividends shall be deposited 
to the credit of the Federal 
Government. The un-claimed 
shares shall be reported and 
delivered to the Commission.

42
114

Time of Payment

The dividends shall be paid to the 
members, within forty five (45) 
days of its declaration, or such 
other period as may be required by 
the applicable law.

The Profits distribution as 
dividends shall be declared 
and paid within the periods 
for payment thereof specified 
in the Act.

BOOKS AND ACCOUNT

43

123                                   
Transmission of 
Annual Audited 

Accounts

section 245 Listing Requirements section 237 Listing Regulation

AUDIT

44 124                                     
Audit section 252 to 255 section 246 to 249

45
125                         

Accounts to be 
audited

section 252 to 257 section 246 to 251

AMALGAMATION, DIVISION AND RECONSTRUCTION

46

131
Amalgamation, 

Division and 
Reconstruction

Section 287 Section 282

INDEMNITY

47

133
Directors and other 
Right to Indemnity Section 488 Section 492
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Tata Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for 
the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 40 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of 
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations  require  the  Company  to  place  before  the  Audit  Committee,  and  upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and 
also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and 
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and 
determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions 
were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TATA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies 

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

Chartered Accountants 

Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2019
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Tata Textile Mills Limited (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all 
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the 
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial 
position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Paki-
stan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finan-
cial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the key audit matters: 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TATA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter

1. Revenue Recognition

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of 
yarn. Revenue recognition policy has been explained in 
notes 3.19, and the related amounts of revenue 
recognized during the year are disclosed in note 22 to the 
financial statements. 

The Company generates revenue from sale of goods to 
domestic and export customers. 

Revenue from the local (including indirect exports) and 
export sales is recognized when control of goods is 
transferred to the customer. 

We identified revenue recognition as key audit matter 
since it is one of the key performance indicators of the 
Company and because of the potential risk that revenue 
transactions may not have been recognized on point in 
time basis i.e. when control of goods is transferred to the 
customer, in line with the accounting policy adopted and 
may not have been recognized in the appropriate period.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
revenue, amongst others, included the following:

•  obtained understanding and evaluated design and 
implementation of controls designed to ensure that 
revenue is recognized in the appropriate accounting 
period and based on transfer of control of goods to the 
customers;

•  assessed appropriateness of the Company’s 
accounting policies for revenue recognition in light of 
applicable accounting and reporting standards;

•  checked on a sample basis whether the recorded local 
and export sales transactions were based on actual 
transfer of control of goods to the customer; and

•  tested timeliness of revenue recognition by comparing 
individual sales transactions before and after the year 
end to underlying documents.

2. Valuation of stock in trade

Stock-in-trade has been valued following an accounting 
policy as stated in note 3.4 and the related value of 
stock-in-trade is disclosed in note 8 to the financial 
statements. Stock-in-trade forms material part of the 
Company’s assets comprising of around 25% of total 
assets. 

The valuation of finished goods within stock-in-trade at 
cost has different components, which includes judgment 
in relation to the allocation of overheads costs, which are 
incurred in bringing the finished goods to its present 
location and condition. Judgments are also involved in 
determining the net realizable value (estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale) of  stock-in-trade items in line with 
accounting policy.  

Our audit procedures to address the valuation of 
stock-in-trade, included the following:

•  obtained an understanding of mechanism of recording 
purchases and valuation of stock-in-trade;

•  tested on a sample basis purchases with underlying 
supporting documents; 

•  verified on test basis, the weighted average 
calculations of raw material stock as per accounting 
policy; 

•  tested the calculations of the actual overhead costs 
and checked allocation of labor and overhead costs to 
the finished goods and work in process;

•  obtained an understanding of management’s process 
for determining the net realizable value and checked:

Due to the above factors, we have considered the 
valuation of stock in trade as key audit matter.
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Stock-in-trade has been valued following an accounting 
policy as stated in note 3.4 and the related value of 
stock-in-trade is disclosed in note 8 to the financial 
statements. Stock-in-trade forms material part of the 
Company’s assets comprising of around 25% of total 
assets. 

The valuation of finished goods within stock-in-trade at 
cost has different components, which includes judgment 
in relation to the allocation of overheads costs, which are 
incurred in bringing the finished goods to its present 
location and condition. Judgments are also involved in 
determining the net realizable value (estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 
cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale) of  stock-in-trade items in line with 
accounting policy.  

Due to the above factors, we have considered the 
valuation of stock in trade as key audit matter.

• future selling prices by performing a review of sales 
close to and subsequent to the year-end; and 

• determination of cost necessary to make the sales.

•  checked the calculations of net realizable value of 
itemized list of stock-in-trade, on selected sample and 
compared the net realizable value with the cost to 
ensure that valuation of stock-in-trade is in line with 
the accounting policy.

3. Revaluation of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and electric installations

As disclosed in note 3.1 to the accompanying financial 
statements, freehold land, buildings on freehold land, 
plant and machinery and electric installations are carried 
at revaluation model. 

The revaluation exercise performed by the management 
external valuer (the expert) during the year has resulted in 
an increase of Rs. 812 million bringing carrying value from 
Rs. 3,848 million to Rs. 4,660 million.

We have considered the above matters to be a key audit 
matter due to the judgments inherent within the valuation 
exercise.

Our audit procedures to address the revaluation of 
freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and 
machinery and electric installations, included the 
following:

• discussed with management and challenged the 
appropriateness of the valuation methodology 
adopted by the management expert through 
involvement of our own valuation expert;

• our valuation expert checked the reasonableness of 
the fair values recorded by management;

• checked the relevance, completeness and accuracy 
of source data; and

• assessed the accounting implications in accordance 
with the applicable financial reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take necessary actions as required under law. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
 estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 

2017); 
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensivew income, the statement of changes in 

equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil. 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take necessary actions as required under law. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
 estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 

2017); 
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensivew income, the statement of changes in 

equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take necessary actions as required under law. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
 estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 

2017); 
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensivew income, the statement of changes in 

equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil. 

Chartered Accountants
Date: October 22, 2019
Place: Karachi
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2019 2018
NoteASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 4,681,699,589 3,935,298,709
Intangible assets 5 1,080,493 1,003,715
Long term investments 6 26,700,000 -
Long-term deposits 2,852,489 2,669,999

4,712,332,571 3,938,972,423

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 7 50,920,323 70,433,465
Stock-in-trade 8 2,039,034,860 1,089,873,525
Trade debts 9 615,002,181 777,982,907
Loans and advances 10 340,199,817 279,606,412
Short-term prepayments 1,774,120 1,278,364
Other receivables 11 59,949,689 95,723,936
Other financial assets 12 19,670,177 19,670,177
Sales tax refundable 96,014,827 116,432,069
Cash and bank balances 13 153,624,682 113,398,663

3,376,190,676 2,564,399,518

TOTAL ASSETS 8,088,523,247 6,503,371,941

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital 14 173,247,500 173,247,500
General reserve 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Unappropriated profit 820,629,722 723,170,297
Surplus on revaluation of 

 property, plant and equipment 15 2,476,256,047 1,841,046,318
4,470,133,269 3,737,464,115

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term finances 16 440,243,398 464,100,070
Deferred liabilities 17 493,193,193 365,863,157

933,436,591 829,963,227
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 18 298,452,932 388,852,527
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 19 60,653,587 27,442,086
Short-term borrowings 20 2,154,374,361 1,361,957,480
Current portion of long-term finances 16 96,173,676 118,366,991
Unclaimed dividend 4,396,363 4,892,900
Provision for income tax 70,902,468 34,432,615

2,684,953,387 1,935,944,599

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,088,523,247 6,503,371,941

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.……….………. Rupees ……….……

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEENSHAHID ANWAR TATA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ADEEL SHAHID TATA 
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2019 2018
Note

Revenue from contract with customers - net 22 6,727,419,432 6,041,555,707

Cost of goods sold 23 (6,101,937,407) (5,407,032,219)

Gross profit 625,482,025 634,523,488

Distribution cost 24 (78,963,699) (101,915,011)
Administrative expenses 25 (138,088,733) (128,903,890)
Other operating expenses 26 (25,798,891) (39,397,816)
Finance cost 27 (280,674,922) (150,398,905)

(523,526,245) (420,615,622)
Other income 28 6,280,185 107,525,326

Profit before taxation 108,235,965 321,433,192

Provision for taxation 29 (75,426,454) (75,329,679)

Profit for the year 32,809,511 246,103,513

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently through
 profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 5,589,238 619,205
Less: deferred tax thereon (618,729) (64,707)

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property
   plant and equipment due to change in tax rate (10,304,792) (16,482,029)

Surplus on revaluation of land, buildings, electric 812,457,748 762,503,311
   installations and plant and machinery
Less: deferred tax thereon (89,939,072) (65,503,415)

717,184,393 681,072,365

Total comprehensive income for the year 749,993,904 927,175,878

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 30 1.89 14.21

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

…….….…….Rupees……….….….

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEENSHAHID ANWAR TATA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ADEEL SHAHID TATA 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note

A.   CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 108,235,965 321,433,192
   Adjustments for :
      Depreciation 4.4 196,182,560 156,399,877
      Amortization 5 340,233 167,098
      Provision for staff gratuity 33,728,523 31,993,079
      Provision for compensated absences 7,625,368 7,363,055

 Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 508,087 -
      Finance cost 27 280,674,922 150,398,905

28 (3,489,122) 18,848,135

   Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 623,806,536 686,603,341
  Decrease / (increase) in current assets

  Stores, spares and loose tools 19,513,142 (19,610,817)
  Stock-in-trade (949,161,335) 25,028,369
  Trade debts 162,472,639 (369,032,496)
  Loans and advances 7,059,336 (35,206,531)
  Short-term prepayments (495,756) 431,247
  Other receivables 35,774,247 (73,952,820)
  Other financial assets - 249,690,571
  Sales tax refundable 20,417,242 (54,704,637)

Increase / (decrease)  in current liabilities
  Trade and other payables (90,399,595) 162,050,963

 Cash (used in) / generated from operations (171,013,544) 571,297,190

  Finance cost paid (247,463,421) (139,329,798)
  Income tax paid (94,376,433) (56,190,422)
  Staff gratuity paid (13,897,336) (23,497,815)
  Staff compensated absences paid (7,632,783) (7,247,325)

  Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (534,383,517) 345,031,830

B.   CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment (141,149,443) (417,177,302)
  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 14,512,873 14,594,463
  Purchase of intangible assets (417,011) (699,016)
  Long term investments (26,700,000) -
  Long term deposits (182,490) (442,500)

  Net cash used in investing activities (153,936,071) (403,724,355)

…….….…….Rupees……….….….

      (Gain) / loss on disposal  / write off of property, pant
         and equipment
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2019 2018
Note

C.   CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  Long-term finance obtained 72,317,000 347,483,310
  Repayment of long-term finance (118,366,987) (61,874,309)
  Short-term borrowings proceed / (repaid) - net 881,103,602 (232,251,282)
  Dividend paid (17,821,287) (24,995)

  Net cash generated from financing activities 817,232,328 53,332,724

     Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 128,912,740 (5,359,801)

     Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (1,058,431,275)  (1,053,071,474)

     Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31     (929,518,535)  (1,058,431,275)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

……..…….Rupees………….

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEENSHAHID ANWAR TATA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ADEEL SHAHID TATA 
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Issued, subscribed Capital reserves Total
and paid up General Unappropriated Revaluation 

capital reserve profit surplus
Note

Balance at June 30, 2017 173,247,500 1,000,000,000 400,245,838 1,236,794,899 2,810,288,237

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 246,103,513 - 246,103,513

Surplus on revaluation of land, buildings, electric - - - 762,503,311 762,503,311
installations and plant and machinery

Less: deferred tax thereon - - - (65,503,415) (65,503,415)
696,999,896 696,999,896

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plan - - 619,205 - 619,205

Less: deferred tax thereon - - (64,707) - (64,707)

554,498 554,498
Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of 
property plant and equipment due to change 
 in tax rate  

- - - (16,482,029) (16,482,029)

Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 246,658,011 680,517,867 927,175,878

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment on account of:

- incremental depreciation - - 55,875,398 (55,875,398) -
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - 20,391,050 (20,391,050) -

15 - - 76,266,448 (76,266,448) -

Balance at June 30, 2018 173,247,500 1,000,000,000 723,170,297 1,841,046,318 3,737,464,115

Transaction with owners

Final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018
 @ Re. 1 per share - - (17,324,750) - (17,324,750)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - 32,809,511 - 32,809,511

Surplus on revaluation of land, buildings, electric - - - 812,457,748 812,457,748
installations and plant and machinery

Less: deferred tax thereon - - - (89,939,072) (89,939,072)
- - - 722,518,676 722,518,676

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plan - - 5,589,238 - 5,589,238
Less: deferred tax thereon - - (618,729) - (618,729)

- - 4,970,509 - 4,970,509

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of 
property plant and equipment due to change 
 in tax rate  - - - (10,304,792) (10,304,792)

Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 4,970,509 712,213,884 717,184,393

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment on account of:
- incremental depreciation - - 73,175,143 (73,175,143) -
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - 3,829,012 (3,829,012) -

15 - - 77,004,155 (77,004,155) -

Balance at June 30, 2019 173,247,500 1,000,000,000 820,629,722 2,476,256,047 4,470,133,269

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Revenue reserves

………..…………………………..Rupees…………………………………………

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEENSHAHID ANWAR TATA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ADEEL SHAHID TATA 



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

93www.tatapakistan.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

-
- recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value.
- certain financial instruments measured at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

-    Revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment (note 3.1)
-    Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 3.1)
-    Useful lives of intangible assets (note 3.2)
-    Valuation of stores and spares and stock-in-trade (note 3.3 and 3.4)
-    Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (note 3.7)
-    Staff retirement benefit - gratuity scheme (note 3.12)
-    Taxation (note 3.18)

2.5

Tata Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on April 15, 1987 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed) (now The Companies' Act 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 6th floor, Textile Plaza, M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi, in the province of Sindh. The
principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The Company's manufacturing facilities are located at District
Muzaffargarh, in the province of Punjab.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

property, plant and equipment measured at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation thereon; and

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgment that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively
commencing from the period of revision. Areas where judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2019

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2019. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures, except for IFRS 9.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

2.5.1New accounting standards and amendments that are not yet effective

Changes in accounting policies due to the applicability of certain international financial reporting standards (IFRS)

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 July 2018. IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies to all revenuearising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of
other standards. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Company is not required
to restate the prior year results.

The effect of adopting IFRS 15 is only to the extent of change in terminologies as in accordance with IFRS 15 "Revenue from
contracts with customers" is used for "Sales".

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs, which do not have a significant effect on the financial
reporting of the Company and therefore have not been discussed here. 

Effective from accounting periods 
beginning on or after:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customer' - This standard superseded IAS 18, IAS 11, 
IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon its effective date.

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property' - Clarification on transfers of property to or from 
investment property

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' - Provides guidance on 
transactions where consideration against non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is 
denominated in foreign currency.

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarification on the classification and 
measurement of share-based payment transactions

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts' - Amendments regarding the interaction of 
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - This standard superseded IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement upon its effective date.

Effective from accounting periods 
beginning on or after:

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

July 01, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Amendments regarding the definition of 
business

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2019

Effective from accounting period 
beginning on or after a date to be 
determined. Earlier application is 

permitted.

January 01, 2019

IFRS 16 'Leases' - This standard will supersede IAS 17 'Leases' upon its effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and IAS 28 'Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding prepayment features 
with negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities.
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Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

- IFRS 1  'First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

- IFRS 14  'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

- IFRS 17  'Insurance Contracts'

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Amendments regarding the definition of 
material.

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' - Clarifies the accounting treatment in 
relation to determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12 
'Income Taxes'.

Effective from accounting periods 
beginning on or after:

January 01, 2019

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to income during the year in which these are incurred.

Freehold land, building, plant and machinery and electric installations are stated at revalued amount being the fair value at
the date of revaluation, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are performed 
with sufficient regularity so that the fair value and carrying value do not differ materially at the reporting date. 

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 4. Depreciation on all
additions in fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals upto the month
preceding the month of disposal.

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Amendments regarding plan amendments, 
curtailments or settlements.

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Amendments 
regarding long term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net 
investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

Property, plant and equipment except free hold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and electric
installations are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. 

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP):

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2019

The residual values, depreciation method and assets' useful lives are reviewedand adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profits.
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Capital work-in-progress

3.2 Intangible assets

3.3 Stores, spares and loose tools

3.4 Stock-in-trade

- Raw material - at moving average cost.
- Material in transit  - at invoice value plus other charges incurred upto reporting date.
- Work-in-process -  at average manufacturing cost.
- Finished goods  - at average manufacturing cost.

Waste stock is valued and recorded at net realizable value.

3.5 Trade debts and other receivables

Where NRV charge subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the stock in trade is also increased to the extent that the
revised carrying value does not exceed the amount that would have been determined had no NRV charge been recognised. A
reversal of NRV is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
loss allowance, if any. The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are adjusted from their
respective carrying amounts.

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow
to the Company and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are generally recognised as an expense as incurred.
However, costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overheadcost.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any, thereon.

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life. Amortization on all
additions in intangible assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals upto the
month of disposal. Amortization charge is recognised in the profit and loss account. The rates of amortization are disclosed
in note 5.

These are valued at cost. The cost is determined on moving average basis less allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items.  Stores and spares in transit are stated at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the following basis:

Average manufacturing cost signifies, in relation to work in process and finished goods, the moving average cost which
consist of prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads. 

Net realizable value (NRV) represents the estimated selling price at which the stock in trade can be realized in the normal
course of business less net estimated cost of completion and selling expense.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) is stated at cost less any impairment loss, if any. All expenditures connected to specific
assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under CWIP. Expenditures include borrowing costs as
referred to in note 3.14. Items are transferred to operating property, plant and equipment as and when assets are ready for
their intended use.
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3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

3.7 Adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

3.7.1 Classification and measurement 

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets:

-  Measured at amortized cost (“AC”),
-  Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and

-  Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). 

Financial asset at amortised cost

1)

2)

Financial Asset at FVTOCI

1)

2)

Financial asset at FVTPL

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with banks, highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known
amount of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value, and short-term running finances. Running finances under
mark-up arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2014. This standard is adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018, and
consequently has been adopted by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to
instruments that continue to be recognised as at July 01, 2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at July 01, 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to be
recognised as at July 01, 2018 have not been restated as allowed by IFRS 9.

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Company's financial statements are described below
except the General Hedge Accounting which the Company does not apply. The Company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9. 

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for:

1)  The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
2)  Impairment of financial assets, and 
3)  General hedge accounting.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 
FVTPL;

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.
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Recognition

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

-

-

Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of ECLs

Impact of the new impairment model

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. The impact of ECL on trade debts is very minimal and
hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

For other financial assets, majority of the assets of the Company exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties which have
high credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore,management believes that
the impact of ECL would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recorded in the profit or loss.

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. 

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract or the contract is a
derivative contract.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires as
follows:

The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through 
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss. 

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment based on expected credit loss
(ECL) model rather than incurred credit loss model as previously required under IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the Company is
required to measure loss allowance of an amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk. 
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Impact of change in accounting policies due to adoption of IFRS 9

Financial assets
Long term deposits LR AC          2,669,999            2,669,999 -
Trade debts LR AC      777,982,907        777,982,907 -
Loans to employees LR AC          8,361,477            8,361,477 -
Other receivables LR AC             309,599              309,599 -
Cash and bank balances LR AC      113,398,663        113,398,663 -
Other financial assets LR AC        19,670,177          19,670,177 -

Financial liabilities
Long term finance including current portion OFL AC      582,467,061        582,467,061 -
Trade and other payables OFL AC      365,526,728        365,526,728 -
Unclaimed dividend OFL AC          4,892,900            4,892,900 -
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings OFL AC        27,442,086          27,442,086 -
Short term borrowings OFL AC    1,361,957,480     1,361,957,480 -

- "LR" is loans and receivables
- "AC" is amortised cost
- "OFL" is other financial liabilities

Original 
classification as 

per IAS 39

New 
classification as 

per IFRS 9

Carrying
amount as
per IAS 39

as on
June 30, 2018

Financial assets and financial 
liabilities

Carrying
amount on initial 
adoption of IFRS 9 

on July 01, 2018

Effect on
July 01, 2018
on Retained

Earnings

3.7.2 Measurement principles and provision

Basis of valuation of instruments at amortised cost

3.7.3 Derecognition

3.7.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

3.8

3.8.1 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition in the following categories depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired:

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as amortised cost are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortised cost are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The measurement basis of financial instruments is determined as follows:

Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Accounting policies applied to financial instruments prior to July 01, 2018.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if
the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Loans and receivables

(iii) Available-for-sale

(iv) Held to maturity

Financial liabilities

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that any investment is impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment. Impairment
losses recognised in the profit and loss account on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through the profit and loss account.

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and
loss account.

Loans and receivables are non-derivativefinancial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the
reporting date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables comprise trade debts, loans,
advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and bank balances in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivativesthat are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or the
management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months from the reporting date.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has intention and
ability to hold till maturity are classified in this category.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date (the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset). Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-salefinancial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-saleare recognised in other comprehensive income. When
securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are included in the profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment. Mark-up on available-for-
sale debt securities calculated using the effective interest rate method is recognised in the profit and loss account. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the
Company’s right to receive payments is established. Amortization of premium on acquisition of the investments is carried out 
using the effective yield method and charged to profit and loss account.

The fair values of quoted equity investments are based on current market prices. Subsequent to initial measurement equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term and are classified as current assets.
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3.8.2 Derivatives 

3.8.3 Impairment

Financial assets

3.8.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

3.9 Share capital

3.10 Dividend distribution

3.11 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

3.12 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan - Workmen

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, net of tax, in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference
between depreciation based on the revaluedcarrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on
the asset’ s original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation surplus to retained earnings.

The Company manages two unfunded schemes for its workmen and non-workmen categories, the details of which are as
follows: 

The Company operates a gratuity scheme for all its employees under workmen category who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service as defined under the respective schemes. Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the
scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to profit and loss and other comprehensive income. All actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in 'other comprehensive income' as they occur. The most recent valuation was carried out
as at June 30, 2019 using 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. The amount recognized in the balance sheet represents the
present value of defined benefit obligation. 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution to shareholders.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at their fair values. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account. 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet, if the Company has a
legal enforceable right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Defined benefit plan - Non workmen

The Company also maintains an unfunded contributory gratuity scheme for its employees under non-workmen category.
Under this scheme, every eligible employee is entitled to receive benefit of one month salary based on last month of each
year's service. The Company accounts for liability of each employee at year end and such liability is treated as full and final
with respect to that year. In future years, the liability amount is not revised for any increase or decrease in salary.
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Compensated absences

3.13 Ijarah contracts

The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailedbalance of leave in the period in which the
leave is earned based on one gross salary of the employee. Under the policy, leaves of 10 and 14 days for non-workmen and
workmen category respectively can be accumulated and carried forward. 

Ijarah agreements irrespective of whether significant portion of risks and rewards relating to ownership of the asset are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under these agreements are recognized in the
profit and loss account on straight-line basis over the period of the agreement.

3.14 Borrowing cost

3.15 Provisions

3.16 Trade and other payables

3.17 Borrowings

3.18 Taxation

Current

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting date between
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes after considering, the effects on
deferred taxation on the portion of income subject to final tax regime.

Deferredtax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferredtax asset is recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and carried forwardunused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to carrying amount of the respective
liability.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated at amortized
cost. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of borrowings in
foreign currency are added in the carrying amount of the borrowing.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current tax rates after taking into account tax credits and
rebates available, if any or on turnover at the specified rates or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section 113C of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where necessary,
relating to prior years which arise due to assessment framed / finalized during the year.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined using effective interest
rate method.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of the past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. In 
this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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3.19 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis using the effective rate of return.

3.20 Earnings per share

3.21 Segment reporting 

3.22 Impairment of non financial asset

3.23 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied i.e.
control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred tax assets and
stock in trade may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and
loss account. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss account, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as an increase in revaluation surplus.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees (functional currency) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at year end into Pak Rupees using
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date
are included in profit and loss account.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). The Company considers Chief Executive as its CODM who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company
considers itself to be a single reportable segment.

2019 2018
NotePROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets 4.1 4,660,234,184 3,920,329,534

Capital work in progress 4.8 21,465,405 14,969,175

4,681,699,589 3,935,298,709

……….Rupees……….
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2019 2018

Note
4.4 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:

Cost of goods manufactured 23.1 189,992,432     149,790,838 

Administrative expenses 25 6,190,128        6,609,039 

196,182,560     156,399,877 

4.5

Cost Accumulated Written down Cost Accumulated Written down

depreciation value depreciation value

Freehold land 41,735,490 - 41,735,490 41,735,490 - 41,735,490

Buildings on freehold land 426,397,337 178,030,726 248,366,611 405,249,597 165,650,388 239,599,209

Plant and machinery  2,682,636,241 1,155,557,467 1,527,078,774 2,603,504,538 1,078,690,928 1,524,813,610

Electric installations 60,961,474 43,839,735 17,121,739 60,961,474 41,937,319 19,024,155

 3,211,730,542 1,377,427,928 1,834,302,614 3,111,451,099 1,286,278,635 1,825,172,464

4.6

4.7 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

 Total Area
(In acres) 

 Covered
Area

(In sq. ft) 

a) 10-KM M.M. Road, Khanpur,
Baggasher, Muzaffargarh

138.975        6,053,751 

Force sale values of freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery (including electric installation) is Rs. 

253.92 million, 742.20 million and 2,671.47 million respectively.

Revaluation of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and electric installations was carried out on

September 30, 2003, June 30, 2008, June 30, 2012, December 31, 2015, June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019. All the

revaluations were conducted by the independent professional valuer M/s. Iqbal A. Nanjee & Co. on the basis of market value

or depreciated replacement values as applicable. In estimating the fair value of the assets, the highest and best use of the

premises is its current use. Revaluation surplus has been credited to equity account to comply with the requirements of

International Accounting Standards 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Location
 Usage of

immovable
property 

…...…….Rupees…………..

Had there been no revaluation the related figures of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and electric 

installations, would have been as follows :

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

………..……………………………………….…...………Rupees…………………………………………………………….

Manufacturing facility
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2019 2018
9. TRADE DEBTS Note

Considered good

Export - secured 9.1 47,967,028     461,993,435 
Local - unsecured 9.2 & 9.3 567,035,153     315,989,472 

Considered doubtful
Local - unsecured 174,356           682,443 

   Less: provision for doubtful debts 9.4 (174,356)          (682,443)
-                   -   

615,002,181 777,982,907

9.1 These are secured against letters of credit in favor of the Company.

9.2

9.3

2019 2018
Note

Ageing of past due but not impaired
1-30 days 461,797,636     249,768,166 
31-90 days 35,228,454      30,350,159 
91 days and above 27,036,798           305,063 

524,062,888 280,423,388

9.4 The movement in provision during the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 682,443 682,443
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts (508,087) -

Balance at the end of the year 174,356 682,443

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 90 days credit term.

As at June 30, 2019, local trade debts aggregating Rs. 524.06 million (2018: Rs. 280.42 million) were past due for which the
Company has made a provision of Rs. 0.17 million (2018: Rs. 0.68 million). The ageing of these past due trade debts is as
follows:

……..…….Rupees……………..

……….Rupees……….

7.1
2019 2018

Note8. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material 8.1 1,661,509,731     861,045,325 
Work-in-process 60,209,737      47,895,397 
Finished goods 8.2 283,008,448     118,406,584 
Waste stock 34,306,944      62,526,219 

2,039,034,860 1,089,873,525

8.1

8.2

Stores, spares and loose tools include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

……….Rupees……….

Raw material includes stock in transit amounting to Rs. 870.34 million (2018: Rs 115.02 million).

The above balances are net of provision for write-down of inventories to their net realizable values aggregating to Rs.1.65 
million (2018: Rs. 0.93 million).

2019 2018
Note6. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortised cost
Government bonds 6.1          26,700,000                   -   

6.1

2019 2018
7. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares 50,888,581      70,409,653 
Loose tools 31,742             23,812 

50,920,323 70,433,465

…….…….Rupees……………

This represent 267 government bonds having face value Rs. 100,000 received as refund against sales tax refundable with
maturity of three years and carrying markup @ 10% per annum.

…….…….Rupees……………
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10.1

2019 2018
11. OTHER RECEIVABLE Note

Rebate on export sales 43,901,699 95,414,337
Others 16,047,990 309,599

59,949,689 95,723,936

12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Term Deposit Receipts 12.1 19,670,177 19,670,177

12.1

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
   In current accounts 29,373,596 10,309,046
   In savings accounts 13.1 122,676,412 101,541,364

152,050,008 111,850,410
Cash in hand 1,574,674 1,548,253

153,624,682 113,398,663

13.1 These carry markup rates ranging from 4.5% to 10.25% (2018: 3.75% to 4.5%) per annum.

14. SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2019 2018

Authorised
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000     200,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each: 

- issued for cash 131,000,000 131,000,000
- issued as bonus shares 42,247,500 42,247,500

173,247,500 173,247,500

14.1

14.2 2019 2018

Island Textile Mills Limited 434,789 434,789
14.3 The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

15. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

This represents surplus over book value resulting from the revaluation of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery and electric installations. (refer note 4.1).

17,324,750

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. The holders are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
Following shares of the Company were held by an associated company as at the reporting date.

Number of ordinary shares 
of Rs. 10 each

20,000,000

13,100,000
4,224,750

17,324,750

20,000,000

13,100,000
4,224,750

……….Rupees……….

2019 2018
Note ……….Rupees……….

These represent term deposit receipts held at Soneri Bank Ltd. for a period of four months with a markup rate ranging from
6% to 8.85% per annum (2018: 5.75%).

2018
Number of shares ……….Rupees……….

These represent short-term interest free loans to employees as per Company's policy. These are adjustable against salaries
and recoverable within a period of one year. 

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good

Due from employees 10.1 19,583,449 8,361,477
Advance to creditors 52,906,347 66,041,205
Advance for expenses 140,383 95,666
Advance income tax 255,073,333 187,420,592
Advance against letters of credit 4,842,705 9,099,320
Advance ijarah rental 7,653,600 8,588,152

340,199,817 279,606,412



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

111www.tatapakistan.com

2019 2018
Note

Balance at July 01 2,023,718,898 1,345,006,455
Revaluation surplus during the year 812,457,748 762,503,311
Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of

 - incremental depreciation (73,175,143) (55,875,398)
 - disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,829,012) (20,391,050)

Related deferred tax liability (8,986,969) (7,524,420)
(85,991,124) (83,790,868)

Balance at June 30 2,750,185,522 2,023,718,898
Less:
Related deferred tax liability

Balance at July 01 182,672,580 108,211,556
Effect of revaluation carried out during the year 17.2 89,939,072 65,503,415
Adjustment due to change in rate on

- income subject to final tax regime 15.1 10,304,792 16,482,029
Transferred  to profit and loss on account of:
- incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax (8,510,334) (5,144,897)

   - disposal - net of deferred tax (476,635) (2,379,523)
Balance at June 30 (273,929,475) (182,672,580)

2,476,256,047 1,841,046,318

15.1

2019 201816. LONG-TERM FINANCE Note
From banking companies - secured
Demand finances                       -        33,067,344 
Term finances 16.1        120,345,672     157,848,138 
SBP - LTFF 16.2        411,327,220     380,481,823 
Diminishing musharika 16.3            4,744,182      11,069,756 

536,417,074 582,467,061
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

Demand finances -     (33,067,344)
Term finances (33,732,690)     (37,502,468)
SBP - LTFF (57,696,804)     (41,471,603)
Diminishing musharika (4,744,182)       (6,325,576)

(96,173,676) (118,366,991)
440,243,398 464,100,070

16.1

16.2

16.3

The finances are secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future plant & machineries, land and building as
well as charge on specific machineries. These facilities are subject to markup at SBP rate plus bank spread i.e. (2% + 1.5%
to 1.75%) per annum ((2018: 2% + 1.5% to 1.75%) per annum). These are repayable in 32 equal quarterly installments.

The facility is obtained to finance the import of machineries which is subject to profit chargeable at the rate of three months
KIBOR + 1.25% per annum. The facility is secured against first exclusive hypothecation charge over musharika assets up to
their respective values and 25% security margin over and above of facility limit is being covered through first pari passu
hypothecation charge over plant and machinery of the Company. This loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installments ending
on February 26, 2020.

…………....Rupees…………….

This represents effect on opening deferred tax liability due to revision of deferred tax rate from 10.45% to 11.07% (2018:
8.98% to 10.45%) in order to incorporate the affect of change in proportion of export sales to local sales which falls under
Final Tax Regime (FTR).

……….Rupees……….

The finances are secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets including land, building, plant
and machinery and charge on specific machinery. These facilities are subject to markup at the rate 3 and 6 months' average
KIBOR plus 1% and 1.75% per annum (2018: 3 and 6 months' averageKIBOR plus 1% and 1.75%). These are repayable in
equal half yearly installments upto October 2024.
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Cash flows
July 1, 2018 Obtained Repaid June 30, 2019

Demand finances 33,067,344 - (33,067,344) -
Term finances 157,848,138 - (37,502,466) 120,345,672
SBP - LTFF 380,481,823 72,317,000 (41,471,603) 411,327,220
Diminishing musharika 11,069,756 - (6,325,574) 4,744,182

582,467,061 72,317,000 (118,366,987) 536,417,074

2019 2018
Note

17. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Staff gratuity 17.1        129,783,177     115,541,228 
Compensated absences            1,671,377        1,678,792 
Deferred taxation 17.2        361,738,639     248,643,137 

493,193,193 365,863,157

17.1 Staff gratuity
Defined benefit plan

Workmen 17.1.1          63,502,543      58,030,214 
Non-workmen          66,280,634      57,511,014 

129,783,177 115,541,228

17.1.1 Workmen - Defined benefit scheme

2019 2018
Net liability in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 63,502,543 58,030,214

17.1.2 Expense recognised in the profit and loss account
Current service cost 14,903,325 15,363,849
Interest cost 5,976,142 3,961,141

20,879,467 19,324,990

17.1.3 Remeasurement gain recognised in other
comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation
- Experience adjustments (5,589,238) (619,205)

(5,589,238) (619,205)

…...…….Rupees…………..

……….Rupees……….

The details of the workmen - defined benefit plan obligation based on actuarial valuations carried out by independent actuary
as at June 30, 2019 under the Projected Unit Credit Method, are as follows:

16.4 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from long term financing activities

The table below details changes in the Company's liabilities arising from the financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes, if any. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Company's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

17.1.4 Movement in defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation 58,030,214 48,700,929
Current service cost 14,903,325 15,363,849
Interest cost 5,976,142 3,961,141
Actuarial gain (5,589,238) (619,205)
Benefits paid during the year (9,817,900) (9,376,500)

Closing defined benefit obligation 63,502,543 58,030,214
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17.1.5 Movement in net liability in the balance sheet

Opening balance of net liability as at July 01 58,030,214 48,700,929
Add: Charge for the year 20,879,467 19,324,990

           Remeasurement (gain) recognised in other 
        comprehensive income (5,589,238) (619,205)
Less: Payment made during the year (9,817,900) (9,376,500)

Closing balance of net liability as at June 30 63,502,543 58,030,214

17.1.6 The principal assumptions used in the valuation of gratuity
(Workmen - Defined benefit scheme)

Discount rate (% per annum) 12.00 11.25
Expected rate of salary increase (% per annum) 12.00 11.25
Mortality rate

Expected withdrawal rate for actuarial assumptions Moderate Moderate
17.1.7 Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are:

Discount rate 1% (6,640,026) 8,007,780
Expected rate of salary increase 1% 8,565,626 (7,199,612)
Withdrawal limited 10% 3,142,833 3,418,903
Mortality rate 1 year (49,119) 48,642

For comparative period

Discount rate 1% (8,540,495) 10,679,538
Expected rate of salary increase 1% 11,186,944 (9,051,026)
Withdrawal limited 10% - -
Mortality rate 1 year - -

 Adjusted SLIC 
2001-05 

 Adjusted SLIC 
2001-05 

 Impact on obligation 

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
liability for gratuity recognised within the balance sheet.

…….…….Rupees……………

 Increase in 
assumption 

 Decrease in 
assumption 

17.1.8 The scheme exposes the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

Salary risks

Mortality / withdrawal risks

Longevity risks

The risks that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what was assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experience is different. The effect depends upon the beneficiaries' service /
age distribution and the benefit.

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of the retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over
the entire retiree population.
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2019 2018

Year 1 3,769,000        3,671,478 

Year 2 4,965,299        5,037,807 

Year 3 5,855,420        6,777,519 

Year 4 6,560,649        6,789,424 

Year 5 7,134,681        7,533,229 

Year 6 to year 10 39,763,263      47,263,263 

Year 11 to and above 133,139,521     599,569,658 

17.1.12 There are no plan assets against defined benefit obligation.

2019 2018

17.1.13 Non workmen - Defined benefit scheme

Opening balance 57,511,014 58,964,240
Charge for the year          12,849,056      12,668,089 
Payment during the year (4,079,436) (14,121,315)

Closing balance 66,280,634 57,511,014

17.2 Deferred taxation

Balance At 
July 01, 2018

Profit and loss 
account

 Other 
comprehensive 

income

Balance At 
June 30, 2019

Movement for the year ended June 30, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences
arising in respect of :

- Property, plant and equipment 98,446,209 1,883,762 - 100,329,971
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
   equipment 182,672,580 (8,986,969) 100,243,864 273,929,475
- Trade debts - 2,794,764 - 2,794,764

281,118,789 (4,308,443) 100,243,864 377,054,210
Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences

arising in respect of :
- Staff gratuity (12,074,058) (2,911,669) 618,729 (14,366,998)
- Leave encashment - (185,017) - (185,017)
- Provision of doubtful debts (71,315) 20,752 - (50,563)
- Intangible assets (309,507) 311,123 - 1,616
- Unused tax losses (20,020,772) 19,306,163 - (714,609)

248,643,137 12,232,909 100,862,593 361,738,639

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

Deferred tax recognised in

……………….……………………….. Rupees …………………………………

Undiscounted payments

17.1.9 Expected contribution to the scheme for the year ending June 30, 2020 is Rs. 22,704,249.

17.1.10 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is year 11.629 years (2018: 16.97 years).

17.1.11 The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit obligation is:
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Balance At 
July 01, 2017

Profit and loss 
account

 Other 
comprehensive 

income

Balance At 
June 30, 2018

Movement for the year ended June 30, 2018

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences
arising in respect of :

- Property, plant and equipment 70,184,006 28,262,203 - 98,446,209
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
   equipment 108,211,556 (7,524,420) 81,985,444 182,672,580

178,395,562 20,737,783 81,985,444 281,118,789
Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences

arising in respect of :

- Staff gratuity (9,668,332) (2,470,433) 64,707 (12,074,058)
- Provision of doubtful debts (61,283) (10,032) - (71,315)
- Intangible assets - (309,507) - (309,507)
- Unused tax losses (42,814,300) 22,793,528 - (20,020,772)

125,851,647 40,741,339 82,050,151 248,643,137

Deferred tax recognised in

……………….……………………….. Rupees ……………………………………

2019 2018
 Note 

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 18.1 64,999,826 38,452,341
Accrued liabilities 18.2 215,751,642 207,745,657
Foreign bills payable - 114,139,044
Retention money - 5,168,632
Withholding income tax 2,943,869 994,340
Workers' profit participation fund 18.4 5,756,576 17,980,426
Workers' welfare fund 8,979,014 4,351,033
Other liabilities 22,005 21,054

298,452,932 388,852,527

18.1 Creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 12 to 45 days terms.

18.2

18.3

2019 2018
 Note 

18.4 Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Opening balance 17,980,426 2,154,924
Add: Allocation for the year 26 5,756,576 17,980,426

Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business (note 26) 18.4.1 534,486 100,824
24,271,488 20,236,174

Less:  Payments made to the fund during the year (18,514,912) (2,255,748)
Closing balance 5,756,576 17,980,426

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

This includes Rs. 91.09 million (2018: 78.28 million) provision for Sindh Development and Infrastructure Cess which was
levied by the Excise and Tax Department of Governmentof Sindh on goods entering or leaving the province through air or sea
at prescribed rate under Sindh Finance Ordinance, 2001. The levy was challenged by the Company along with other
companies in Sindh High Court (SHC). SHC through its interim order passed on May 31, 2011 ordered that for every
consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of infrastructure cess should be paid in cash and a bank
guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted until the final order is passed. The management is confident for a
favorableoutcome, however, as a matter of prudence Company has paid Rs. 91.09 million upto June 30, 2019 (50%) of the
value of infrastructure cess in cash and recorded liability for the remaining amount which is supported by a bank guarantee. 

Creditors includes Rs. 6.88 million payable to Island Textile Mills Limited (related party) against purchase of greek cotton at
year end which is also the maximum aggregate amount that is outstanding in any of the month end.
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18.4.1 Interest on funds utilized is charged @ 9.22% (2018: 8.25%) per annum.

19. INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED ON BORROWINGS

Long-term finances 3,631,659 4,945,346

Short-term borrowings 57,021,928 22,496,740
60,653,587 27,442,086

20. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Running / cash finances 20.1 1,083,143,217 1,171,829,938
Finance against import / export 20.2 1,071,231,144 190,127,542

20.3 2,154,374,361 1,361,957,480

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from long term financing activities

Cash flows
July 1, 2018 Obtained Repaid June 30, 2019

Running / cash finances 1,171,829,938 6,988,046,834 (7,076,733,555) 1,083,143,217
Finance against import / export 190,127,542 2,963,532,789 (2,082,429,187) 1,071,231,144

1,361,957,480 9,951,579,623 (9,159,162,742) 2,154,374,361

21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1 Contingencies

The Company filed a suit before the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess (GIDC) Act, 2011. The Sindh High Court has restrained the Federation and gas companies from recovering GIDC over
and aboveRs. 13 per MMBTU. On August 22, 2014, the Supreme Court of Pakistan declared that the levy of GIDC as a tax
was not levied in accordance with the Constitution and hence not valid.

These are subject to mark-up at the rate of one to three months' KIBOR plus spread ranging between 0.5% and 1.75%
(2018: one to three months' KIBOR plus spread ranging between 0.5% and 0.8%) per annum. These facilities are secured
against pledge of stock and pari passu charge over stocks and receivables.

These facilities are subject to mark-up at the rate of six months' KIBOR plus spread ranging between 0.5% to 1.5%. (2018:
mark-up at the rate of six months' KIBOR plus spread ranging between 0.5% to 1%) per annum. These arrangements are
secured against pledge of stocks of the Company 

In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated GIDC Ordinance No. VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of
the Supreme Court on the ground that GIDC was a 'Fee' and not a 'Tax'. In May 2015, the said Ordinance was approvedin
the Parliament and became an Act. Since the GIDC Act 2015 has also ultra vires to constitute and issue is being faced by
all industry at large, management is confident based on the discussion with lawyer that the decision of the case will be in
the favour of company. However, the Company on prudent basis, recognized provision for GIDC as at June 30, 2019
amounting to Rs. 24.50 million (2018: Rs. 14.94 million) in these financial statements. 

Total facilities available from various commercial banks amounts to Rs. 4,623 million (2018: Rs. 4,495 million) from which the
aggregate unavailed short-term borrowings facilities are of Rs. 2,469 million (2018: Rs. 3,133 million).

The table below details changes in the Company's liabilities arising from the financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes, if any. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Company's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

2019 2018
 Note ……….Rupees……….
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2019 2018
21.2 Commitments Note

( i ) Civil works 1,567,673      14,855,328 

( ii ) Letters of credit
- plant and machinery -      30,359,687 
- stores and spares 42,866,751      12,357,210 
- raw material -        9,410,746 

42,866,751      52,127,642 

( iii ) Bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company 21.2.1 193,295,157     178,627,690 

( iv ) Bills discounted
- Export 264,404,619     264,633,680 
- Local -      29,053,000 

264,404,619 293,686,680

( v )  Rentals under ijarah finance agreements
-  not later than one year 40,893,235      48,345,851 
-  later than one year and not later than 5 years 62,089,474     103,943,430 
-  later than 5 years -                   -   

21.2.2 102,982,709 152,289,281

( vi ) Outstanding sales contract 411,185,677     194,587,713 

21.2.1

21.2.2

2019 2018

22. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Export

-Yarn 1,551,067,787 2,250,227,619
-Yarn (indirect export) 2,656,842,507 1,796,775,695
-Waste 15,624,180 78,109,114

4,223,534,474 4,125,112,428
Local

-Yarn 1,946,947,206 1,442,102,876
-Raw material - 48,757,338
-Waste 592,696,847 450,137,049

2,539,644,053 1,940,997,263
Less:  Sales tax (35,759,095) (24,553,984)

6,727,419,432 6,041,555,707

22.1 Following are the details of export sales other than indirect export:

Jurisdiction
Asia 6,696,824,625 5,856,853,481
Europe 30,594,807 184,702,226

6,727,419,432 6,041,555,707

……….Rupees……….

This includes bank guarantee related to Sindh Development Infrastructure Cess amounting to Rs.77.20 million (2018: Rs.
58.70 million). Refer note 18.2.

Represents four ijarah agreements entered into with an Islamic Bank in respect of machineries. Total future ijarah payments
under agreements are Rs. 102.98 million (2018: Rs. 152.29 million) and are payable in quarterly installments latest by June,
2022. These commitments are secured against the exclusive ownership of machineries and third ranking charge against
property, plant and equipment with 25% margin.

……...…….Rupees…….……….
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23. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods manufactured 23.1 6,238,319,995 5,268,181,542
Finished goods (including waste)
 Opening stock 180,932,804 271,812,810
 Closing stock (317,315,392) (180,932,803)

(136,382,588) 90,880,007

Cost of goods sold 6,101,937,407 5,359,061,549
Cost of raw material sold - 47,970,670

6,101,937,407 5,407,032,219

2019 2018
Note

23.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw material consumed 23.1.1 4,928,709,587 4,068,901,900
Stores and spares 96,547,187 84,671,004
Packing material 77,170,959 78,170,547
Power and fuel 528,808,902 457,869,144
Salaries, wages and benefits 23.2 351,409,178 340,629,972
Depreciation 4.4 189,992,432 149,790,838
Insurance 11,020,274 10,125,605
Repairs and maintenance 5,337,645 5,053,582
Ijarah rentals 52,907,761 60,575,290
Other overheads 8,730,410 8,465,032

6,250,634,335 5,264,252,914
Work-in-process

Opening stock 47,895,397 51,824,025
Closing stock 8 (60,209,737) (47,895,397)

(12,314,340) 3,928,628
6,238,319,995 5,268,181,542

23.1.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock 861,045,325 791,265,059
Purchases - net 5,729,173,993 4,138,682,166

6,590,219,318 4,929,947,225
Closing stock 8 (1,661,509,731) (861,045,325)

4,928,709,587 4,068,901,900

23.2
2019 2018

Note
24. DISTRIBUTION COST

Brokerage and commission 33,891,752      43,597,839 
Staff salaries and benefits 24.1 9,137,500        6,166,667 
Ocean freight 4,145,045      11,416,136 
Inland freight on export 4,821,780        9,730,450 
Inland freight on local sales 10,075,165        9,349,850 
Bank charges and commission 6,806,185        8,365,238 
Customers claims -           158,025 
Export development surcharge 2,286,504        5,420,511 
Wharfage 2,786,957        3,888,755 
Forwarding charges 517,575           694,307 
Miscellaneous export expenses 378,001           395,071 
Postage and telegram 1,342,533        1,051,320 
Others 2,774,702        1,680,842 

78,963,699 101,915,011

……...…….Rupees…….……….

 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 27.95 million (2018: Rs. 26.64 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 

……….Rupees……….
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24.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs. 0.53 million (2018: Rs. 0.43 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2019 2018
Note

25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits 25.1 & 32 67,515,157 57,261,051
Director's remuneration 10,915,000 10,720,000
Travelling and conveyance 5,803,306 2,591,924
Donation 25.1.1 15,021,394 21,522,091
Vehicles running 4,590,062 4,002,943
Legal and professional 4,608,322 4,602,340
Rent, rates and taxes 4,315,250 4,314,184
Utilities 3,055,023 3,521,488
Fees and subscription 6,194,542 4,705,987
Printing and stationery 974,651 1,003,926
Postage and telephone 1,873,823 1,803,548
Depreciation 4.4 6,190,128 6,609,039
Amortization 5 340,233 167,097
Repairs and maintenance 2,679,861 2,931,501
Auditors' remuneration 25.2 1,265,896 840,800
Insurance 789,596 742,768
Advertisement 186,980 198,259
Others 1,769,509 1,364,944

138,088,733 128,903,890

25.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs. 5.25 million (2018: Rs. 4.93 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

25.1.2

2019 2018

25.2 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 840,000           650,000 
Fee for review of :

- Condensed interim financial information 100,000             80,000 
- Code of Corporate Governance 30,000             25,000 

Certification 295,896             85,800 
1,265,896 840,800

26. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 5,756,576 17,980,426
Workers' Welfare Fund 4,627,981 1,244,947
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 18,848,135
Realised foreign exchange loss - net 14,937,189 -
Reversal of rebate on export sales 145,333 -
Expenses of agriculture farm - net 331,812 1,324,308

25,798,891 39,397,816

25.1.1 Donation charged in these financial statements is paid to The Citizen Foundation Rs. 8.1 million (2018: 18.53 million), Habib
University Rs. 5 million (2018: Nil), The Indus Hospital Rs. 1.46 million (2018: 2.2 million) and Textile Institute of Pakistan
Rs. 0.22 million (2018: Rs. Nil).

Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata, Chief Executive Officer of the Company is also the member of Board Committee in the Textile
Institute of Pakistan. Other than the above, none of the directors or their spouse had any interest in the donee's fund.

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….



Tata Textile Mills Ltd.  Annual Report  2019

120 www.tatapakistan.com

2019 2018
27. FINANCE COST

Interest / mark-up on :
Long-term finances 33,439,983 21,705,935
Short-term borrowings 228,808,499 115,189,606
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 534,486 100,824

Letters of credits discounting charges 10,067,167 8,378,541
Bank guarantee commission 2,215,127 985,403
Bank charges 5,609,660 4,038,596

280,674,922 150,398,905

28. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Profit on bank accounts and term deposit receipts 1,834,182 1,676,613
Unrealised foreign exchange gain - net 417,714 10,224,098
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 508,087 -
Realised foreign exchange gain - net - 9,273,994

Income from non-financial assets
Rebate on export sales - 86,233,881
Gain on disposal / write off of property and equipment 3,489,122 -
Others 31,080 116,740

6,280,185 107,525,326

29. TAXATION

Current 

-for the year 70,902,468 34,432,615
-for prior year (7,708,923) 155,725

Deferred 12,232,909 40,741,339

75,426,454 75,329,679

29.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit 108,235,965 321,433,192

Tax rate % 29% 30%

Tax on accounting profit 31,388,430 96,429,958

Tax Effect of:
Income subject to final tax regime 21,112,450 (36,123,716)
Minimum tax 13,185,856 (911,005)
Change in tax rate on opening deferred tax 14,752,033 20,601,550
Income tax for prior years (7,708,923) 155,725
Investment tax credit (4,519,915) (24,962,622)
Unused tax losses utilized during the year 9,056,353 19,171,912
Others (1,839,830) 967,877

75,426,454 75,329,679

……….Rupees……….

29.2 As per section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 , “For tax year 2018 and onwards, a tax shall be
imposed at the rate of fivepercent of its accounting profit before tax on every public company, other than
a scheduled bank or a modaraba, that derives profit for a tax year but does not distribute at least twenty
percent of its after-tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year through cash.”
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
2019 2018

Profit for the year Rupees 32,809,511 246,103,513
Weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year 17,324,750 17,324,750

Earnings per share Rupees

Note

1.89 14.21

2019 2018

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

   Cash and bank balances 13 153,624,682 113,398,663
   Running / cash finances 20.1 (1,083,143,217) (1,171,829,938)

(929,518,535) (1,058,431,275)

32. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial remuneration 10,915,000 50,764,348 10,720,000 48,800,392
Bonus / Ex-gratia 865,000 5,051,915 865,000 3,452,373
Retirement benefits 865,000 4,495,248 - 4,278,022
Leave encashment - 1,498,417 - 1,426,007
Utilities 1,132,697 - 1,246,536 -

13,777,697 61,809,928 12,831,536 57,956,794

Number of persons 1 21 1 21

32.1

32.2

………….….…………... Rupees …..……………………

The Chief Executive and Executive Directors are also entitled for use of car owned and maintained by the 
Company.

An amount of Rs. 0.535 million (2018: Rs 0.34 million) has been charged in these financial statements in 
respect of fee paid to Directors for attending Board meetings.

 Chief    
Executive 

  Executives

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share 
of the Company which is based on :

The impact of above mentioned clause with respect to FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19
amounted to Rs. 6.28 million, Rs. 16.1 million and Rs. 5.4 million respectively. However, management
has taken stay order against aforesaid clause of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, therefore no provision
has been recognized in these financial statements.

……….Rupees……….

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration and benefits to the
  Chief Executive and Executives are as follows: 

2019 2018
 Chief 

Executive   Executives
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2019 2018
33. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Number of spindles installed 44,400 44,400
Number of spindles worked 44,400 44,400
Number of shifts per day 3 3
Installed capacity after conversion into 20/s count-kgs 15,312,002 15,312,002
Actual production of yarn after conversion into 20/s count-kgs 15,830,562 16,362,283

34. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Average number of employees during the year 1,235 1,262

Number of employees as at June 30 1,229 1,240

35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

35.1 Name and nature of relationship

Associated Companies due to common directorship & common management

Island Textile Mills Ltd.
Salfi Textile Mills Ltd.
Tata Energy Ltd. 
Tata Best Foods Ltd. 

2019 2018

Relationship with the party Nature of transactions

Associated undertakings Share of expenses paid 5,604,789 5,108,664
Share of expenses received 1,907,592 2,865,701
Purchase of cotton 106,885,246 -
Purchase of store 995,887 3,314,451
Sale of cotton - 48,390,472
Sale of fixed assets - 5,000,000
Sale of store and spares 36,363 -
Dividend paid 434,798 -

Directors
Rent expense

- godown 240,000 240,000
- office premises 4,090,200 4,090,200

Dividend paid 10,214,276 -

……..….Rupees………...

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel and their relatives.
The Company carries out transactions with various related parties at agreed rates. Detail of related parties (with
whom the Company has transacted along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than
those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 2019 2018

36.1 Financial instrument by category
Financial assets as per balance sheet

Amortized cost

- Long term deposits 2,852,489 2,669,999
- Long term investments 26,700,000 -
- Trade debts 615,002,181 777,982,907
- Other financial assets 19,670,177 19,670,177
- Loans to employees 19,583,449 8,361,477
- Other receivables 16,047,990 309,599
- Cash and bank balances 153,624,682 113,398,663

853,480,968 922,392,822

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
- Long term finance including current portion 536,417,074 582,467,061
- Trade and other payables 280,751,468 365,526,728
- Unclaimed dividend 4,396,363 4,892,900
- Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 60,653,587 27,442,086
- Short term borrowings 2,154,374,361 1,361,957,480

3,036,592,853 2,342,286,255

………. Rupees ……….

36.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

36.2.1 Financial risk factors

Introduction and overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- market risk
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- operational risk

Financial risk factors and risk management framework

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, Company's objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk and fair value of financial instruments.

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on having cost effective funding as well as to manage financial
risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. 

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders' value. Risk is inherent in
Company's activities but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are based on internal controls set
on different activities of the Company by the Board of Directors. These controls reflect the business strategy and market
environment of the Company as well as the level of the risk that the Company is willing to accept.

The Board along with the Company’s finance and treasury department oversees the management of the financial risks
reflecting changes in the market conditions and also the Company's risk taking activities providing assurance that these
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that the financial risk are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company policies and risk appetite.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.
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36.2.2 Market risk

Under market risk the Company is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (equity price risk).

(a) Currency risk

(b) Interest rate risk

Carrying amount
2019 2018

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
-  Saving accounts   122,676,412 101,541,364
Financial liabilities 
- Long term finance   125,089,854   201,985,238
- Short term borrowings  2,154,374,361  1,361,957,480

(2,279,464,215) (1,563,942,718)

Net financial liabilities at variable interest rates (2,156,787,803) (1,462,401,354)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would have increased or decreased the profit for the year
and shareholder's equity by Rs. 21.57 million (2018: Rs.14.62 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2018.

The Company has invested an amount of Rs. 19.67 million (2018: 19.67 million) at interest rate of 8.85% per anum
(2018: 5.75%) in Term Deposits Receipts (TDRs). The company has received 267 government bonds having face value
Rs. 100,000 as refund against sales tax refundable with maturity of three years and carrying markup @ 10% per
annum.

The company does not measure fixed rate instruments at fair value, therefore, a change in market interest rate would
not effect the profit and loss account. 

……….Rupees……….

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company exports yarn and waste stock to foreign customers and maintain
foreign currency accounts for the payment to foreign suppliers which exposes it to currency risk. As at June 30, 2019,
financial assets include Rs. 54.54 million (2018: Rs. 467.08 million) equivalent to US$ 0.33 million (2018: US$ 3.85
million) and financial liabilities include foreign commission payable amounting to Rs. 11.38 million (2018: Rs. 14.02
million) equivalent to US$ 0.07 million (2018: US$ 0.12 million). The averagerates applied during the year is Rs. 136.3  / 
US $ (2018: Rs. 121.8 /US $) and the spot rate as at June 30, 2019 was Rs. 164 / US$ (2018: Rs. 121.4 /US$).

At June 30, 2019, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, loss / profit for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 4.32 million (2018: Rs. 45.31
million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of US Dollar-denominated trade debts and
accrued expenses.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposit accounts, long term finance, term deposit receipts and short
term borrowings amounting to Rs. 2.16 billion (financial liabilities on a net basis) (2018: Rs. 1.46 billion). These are
benchmarked to variable rates which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk only.
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(c)  Equity price risk

As at year end, there are no financial instruments which are subject to equity price risk. 

36.2.3 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk related to receivables

Credit risk related to other assets

36.2.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity and interest risk table

Credit risk from other assets primarily relates to Company's investment in term deposits issued by bank (note 12). The risk
is managed through ensuring that investments are made in instruments issued by reputed banks with good credit ratings.
The credit rating of the investee banks is AA- and A1+ for long term and short term respectively.

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and
creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts. 84% of the Company’s debt will mature in less than one year at June 30, 2019 (2018: 76%) based on the
carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements.

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivativefinancial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Trade debts consist of a large number of customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable, where appropriate. The Company does not have any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Out of the total financial assets of Rs.
853.48 million (2018: Rs. 922.39 million), the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 825.21
(2018: Rs. 920.82 million).

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily balances with banks, trade debts and loans
and advances and other receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions
and other financial instruments. The credit risk on liquid funds (cash and bank balances) is limited because the counter
parties are banks with a reasonably high credit rating.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure is continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is 
controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management annually.
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Average 
Interest rate

Less than 1 
month

1 - 3 months  3 months - 1 
years

1 - 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

3 and 6 month 
KIBOR plus 1% 

to 1.75%
- 23,596,435 72,577,237 360,338,417 79,904,985 536,417,074

Trade and other payables - 64,999,826 215,751,642 - - - 280,751,468
Unclaimed dividend 4,396,363 - - - - 4,396,363
Interest / mark-up 
accrued on loans - 57,021,928 3,631,659 - - - 60,653,587
Short-term borrowings

One to three 
months Kibor 
plus 0.50% to 

1.75%

- - 1,083,143,217 - - 1,083,143,217

Six months 
Kibor plus 0.5% 

to 1.5%. 
- - 1,071,231,144 - - 1,071,231,144

126,418,117 242,979,736 2,226,951,598 360,338,417 79,904,985 3,036,592,853

Average 
Interest rate

Less than 1 
month

1 - 3 months  3 months - 1 
years

1 - 5 years More than 5 
years

Total

3 month KIBOR 
plus 1% to 

1.75%
- 18,731,458 99,635,533 338,355,979 125,744,091 582,467,061

Trade and other payables - 38,452,341 327,074,387 - - - 365,526,728
Unclaimed dividend - 4,892,900 - - - - 4,892,900

-
22,496,740 4,945,346 - - - 27,442,086

Short-term borrowings

One to three 
months Kibor 
plus 0.50% to 

0.80%

- - 1,171,829,938 - - 1,171,829,938

Six months Kibor 
plus 0.5% to 1%. 

- - 190,127,542 - - 190,127,542

65,841,981 350,751,191 1,461,593,013 338,355,979 125,744,091 2,342,286,255

37. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be receivedto sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differencescan arise between carrying values and the fair value
estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Long term financing 
including current 
portion

Interest / mark-up 
accrued on loans 

Running finance / 
cash finance

Finance against 
import / export

………………………………….…….………….….…………... Rupees …..……………………………………………….………….

2019 ………………………………….…….………….….…………... Rupees …..……………………………………………….…

Long term financing 
including current 
portion

Running finance / 
cash finance

Finance against 
import / export

2018
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- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

-

-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- 317,400,000 - 317,400,000
- 927,748,677 - 927,748,677
- 3,254,565,631 - 3,254,565,631
- 84,773,831 - 84,773,831

June 30, 2019 - 4,584,488,139 - 4,584,488,139

- 317,400,000 - 317,400,000
- 679,870,614 - 679,870,614
- 2,780,169,287 - 2,780,169,287
- 71,450,462 - 71,450,462

June 30, 2018 - 3,848,890,363 - 3,848,890,363

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The gearing ratio at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings on free hold land
Plant and machinery
Electric installations

Freehold land
Buildings on free hold land
Plant and machinery
Electric installations

The objectives of the Company when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its business. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividendpayment to the
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.

…………………………....Rupees……………………...………

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observablefor the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

As at year end, there are no financial instruments carried at fair value which require classification in the above mentioned
levels.
The Company's freehold land, buildings on freehold land,plant and machinery and electric installations are stated at
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair value measurements of the Company's freehold land, building and plant and
machinery as at June 30, 2019 were performed by M/s Iqbal A.Nanjee & Company (Private) Limited (valuer), independent
valuer not related to the Company. The valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have appropriate
qualification and experience in the fair value measurement of properties, plant and machinery. The fair value of the freehold
land was determined by ascertaining the current market value of similar land, which is being sold in the near
surroundings.The fair value of the buildings on freehold land was determined by carrying out the physical inspection of
buidling with actual measurement and have worked out covered area of each building occupation wise with specification of
civil works. The fair value of the plant and machinery and electric installations was determined by comparing the values of
similar plants from various machinery dealors. In estimating the fair value of the assets, the highest and best use of the premises
is its current use.

Details of Company's free hold land, building, electric installations and plant and machinery and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at end of 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:
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2019 2018

Total debts 2,690,791,435 1,944,424,541 
Less: Cash and bank balances (153,624,682) (113,398,663)

Net debt 2,537,166,753 1,831,025,878 
Total equity 4,470,133,269 3,737,464,115 

Adjusted capital 7,007,300,022 5,568,489,993 

                    0.36                     0.33 

39. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

40. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

41. GENERAL

……….Rupees……….

Gearing ratio

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorized for issue on October 22, 2019 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

41.1 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on October 22, 2019 have proposed a dividend of Re. 0.50 per share (2018: Re. 
1 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2019, amounting to Rs. 8.66 million (2018: Rs. 17.32 million), subject to the approval 
of members at the annual general meeting to be held on November 21, 2019.

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation. No significant
rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the current year. 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEENSHAHID ANWAR TATA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ADEEL SHAHID TATA 
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Form of Proxy
I/We ___________________________________________of _______________________________________________, being a

Member of Tata Textile Mills Limited, holder of ______________________________________, Ordinary Share(s) as per Register 

Folio No___________________ hereby Appoint Mr.___________________________________________________, having 

CNIC No. __________________________________   as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us, and on 

my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on November 21, 2019 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ___________ day of ____________2019.

Signature across Rs.5
Revenue Stamp

Witness 1 _________________________________ Witness 2 __________________________________

Signature _________________________________ Signature ___________________________________

Name ____________________________________ Name ______________________________________

CNIC # ___________________________________ CNIC # _____________________________________

NOTES:

1. This instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in   writing, or if 
the appointer is a corporation either under the common seal or under the hand of an official or attorney so authorized. No person shall 
be appointed as proxy who is not member of the company qualified to vote except that a corporation being a member may appoint a 
person who is not a member.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified 
copy of that power of authority, shall be deposited at the office of the Company not less than 48 (forty eight) hours before the time for 
holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of a proxy shall not 
be treated as valid.

3. CDC Shareholders or their Proxies should bring their original CNICs or Passport along with the Participant’s ID Number and their 
Account Number to facilitate their identification. Detail procedure is given in Notes to the Notice of AGM.
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AGM
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